
AGENDA
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF MONO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Regular Meetings: First, Second, and Third Tuesday of each month. Location of meeting is specified below.
Teleconference Only - No Physical Location

Regular Meeting
April 13, 2021

TELECONFERENCE INFORMATION
As authorized by Governor Newsom’s Executive Order, N-29-20, dated March 17, 2020, the meeting will be
held via teleconferencing with members of the Board attending from separate remote locations. This altered
format is in observance of recommendations by local officials that precautions be taken, including social
distancing, to address the threat of COVID-19.
Important Notice to the Public Regarding COVID-19  
Based on guidance from the California Department of Public Health and the California Governor’s Officer, in
order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, please note the following:  
1. Joining via Zoom
There is no physical location of the meeting open to the public. You may participate in the Zoom Webinar,
including listening to the meeting and providing public comment, by following the instructions below.
To join the meeting by computer:
Visit https://monocounty.zoom.us/j/98979707716
Or visit https://www.zoom.us/ click on "Join A Meeting" and use the Zoom Meeting ID 989 7970 7716.
To provide public comment (at appropriate times) during the meeting, press the “Raise Hand” button on your
screen.
To join the meeting by telephone:
Dial (669) 900-6833, then enter Webinar ID 989 7970 7716.
To provide public comment (at appropriate times) during the meeting, press *9 to raise your hand.
2. Viewing the Live Stream
If you are unable to join the Zoom Webinar of the Board meeting you may still view the live stream of the
meeting by visiting http://monocounty.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=8c4d8d56-9aa6-4b8a-ace3-
1fbaaecbf14a

NOTE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact Shannon Kendall, Clerk of the Board, at (760) 932-5533. Notification 48 hours
prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting (See 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 35.130).
ON THE WEB: You can view the upcoming agenda at http://monocounty.ca.gov. If you would like to receive an
automatic copy of this agenda by email, please subscribe to the Board of Supervisors Agendas on our website
at http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos.
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED BY TIME, ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR EITHER THE MORNING OR
AFTERNOON SESSIONS WILL BE HEARD ACCORDING TO AVAILABLE TIME AND PRESENCE OF
INTERESTED PERSONS. PUBLIC MAY COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS AT THE TIME THE ITEM IS
HEARD.

Page 1 of 6

http://monocounty.ca.gov/
http://monocounty.ca.gov/bos


9:00 AM Call meeting to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

1. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Please refer to the Teleconference Information section to determine how to
make public comment for this meeting.

2. RECOGNITIONS - NONE

3. COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE

CAO Report regarding Board Assignments
Receive brief oral report by County Administrative Officer (CAO) regarding work
activities.

4. DEPARTMENT/COMMISSION REPORTS

Receive brief oral report on emerging issues and/or activities.

5. CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters on the consent agenda are to be approved on one motion unless a
board member requests separate action on a specific item.)

A. Budget Policy
Departments: Finance

The Budget Policy was bought before the board as part of a fiscal policy
workshop on February 9, 2021.  Revisions were made to the Budget Policy
based on the fiscal policy workshop. 

Recommended Action: Adopt the revised budget policy.

Fiscal Impact: None.
B. Resolution Approving Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant

Program
Departments: Probation

Proposed resolution approving an application to the Proposition 64 Public Health
and Safety Grant Program and authorizing the County Administrative Officer on
behalf of the Board of Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this funding
and sign the Grant Agreement, in substantially the form set forth in the attached
proposal package, with the Board of State and Community Corrections.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution R21-___,  Approving an
application to the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant Program and
authorizing the County Administrative Officer on behalf of the Board of
Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this funding and sign the Grant

Page 2 of 6



Agreement with the Board of State and Community Corrections. Provide any
desired direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: Probation Department has proposed grant funding in the amount
of  $814,798 over a period of three years from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2024.

C. 2021 Maintained Mileage
Departments: Public Works - Roads

Section 2121 of the California Streets and Highways Code provides that in May
of each year each County shall submit to the Department of Transportation
(Caltrans) any additions or exclusions from its mileage of maintained County
roads.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution R21-___, Specifying
additions and/or exclusions to the maintained mileage within the County road
system and establishing maintained mileage for fiscal year 2021-2022. Provide
any desired direction to staff. This action continues unchanged the County’s total
maintained miles of 679.26 miles

Fiscal Impact: The proposed action will result in no change to the County
Maintained Road Mileage from the previous report. As such, associated Road
Funding is not expected to have any impact on the budget or operations in the
future.  

6. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED - NONE

Direction may be given to staff regarding, and/or the Board may discuss, any item
of correspondence listed on the agenda.

7. REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING

A. COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update
1 hour

(Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Bryan Wheeler, Public Health Director) - Update on
Countywide response and planning related to the COVID-19 pandemic, including
reports from the Emergency Operations Center (EOC), Unified Command (UC),
and the various branches of the EOC, including Community Support and
Economic Recovery, Joint Information Center (JIC), and Public Health. 

Recommended Action: None, informational only.

Fiscal Impact: None.
B. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget Update

Departments: Finance
45 minutes (20 minutes presentation; 25 minutes discussion)

(Janet Dutcher, Finance Director, Megan Mahaffey, Accountant II) - CAO and

Page 3 of 6



Finance will update the Board about the FY 2021-22 budget development
process.

Recommended Action: Receive information and discuss.

Fiscal Impact: None.

8. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Please refer to the Teleconference Information section to determine how to
make public comment for this meeting.

9. CLOSED SESSION

A. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency designated representative(s): Bob Lawton, Stacey Simon,
Janet Dutcher, Dave Wilbrecht, and Anne Frievalt. Employee Organization(s):
Mono County Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's
Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County
Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA), Mono County Public Safety Officers
Association (PSO). Unrepresented employees: All.

B. Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code
section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

THE AFTERNOON SESSION WILL RECONVENE NO EARLIER THAN 1:00
P.M.

10. OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Please refer to the Teleconference Information section to determine how to
make public comment for this meeting.

11. REGULAR AGENDA - AFTERNOON

A. Community Development Block Grant 2021 Notice of Funding Availability
Departments: Finance
PUBLIC HEARING: 1:00 PM (15 minutes)

(Megan Mahaffey. Finance Accountant II) - The CDBG 2021 NOFA was released
on January 29, 2021.  This year’s Notice of Funding Availability is for
approximately $30 million of which Mono County is eligible for $1.5 million.  This
is a public hearing required as part of the grant application process. 

Page 4 of 6



Recommended Action: Conduct a pubic hearing to gauge public interest in
Mono County submitting a grant application for the 2021 NOFA.  Provide
feedback on the development of the Mono County Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) application for homeownership assistance.

Fiscal Impact: None.
B. Mono County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Update

Departments: Finance
10 minutes

(Megan Mahaffey, Finance Accountant II, Patricia Robertson, Mammoth Lakes
Housing Executive Director) - Mammoth Lakes Housing has utilized the RLF for a
total of five (5) purchases of deed-restricted properties between September 26,
2017 and December 31, 2019.  The outstanding loan that received a 6-month
extension was paid back on March 24, 2021.  

Recommended Action: No action; informational only. 

Fiscal Impact: $3,053 of interest earned on the recent loan payoff was moved
into the Mono County Affordable Housing Fund.

C. Mountain View Fire Update
Departments: Mountain View Fire Emergency Operations Center
10 minutes

(Justin Nalder, EOC Director) - Update on the Mountain View Fire in Walker,
California.

Recommended Action: Receive update from Incident Command for the
Mountain View Fire and involved staff regarding impacts of the fire, recovery
efforts, County response, debris removal and related topics. Provide any desired
direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: No impact from this update.
D. Proposed Agreements Supporting County Effort to Facilitate the

Provision of Trailers to Residents in Mono County in Need of Temporary
Housing as a Result of the Mountain View Fire, the COVID-19 Pandemic or
Otherwise
Departments: Mountain View Fire Emergency Operations Center
5 minutes

(Justin Nalder, EOC Director) - The proposed agreements facilitate and support
the transfer of trailers by the City of Los Angeles to IMACA and ultimately to
residents of Mono County experiencing homelessness and include: 
1)  MOU among the City of Los Angeles, Mono County, and Inyo Mono
Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) governing the transfer of 36 trailers by
the City of LA to IMACA in return for indemnification by IMACA and Mono County.

Page 5 of 6



2)  MOU between Mono County and IMACA indemnifying Mono County against
any and all claims relating to the transfer of the trailers from the City of Los
Angeles to IMACA and use by IMACA to serve homelessness in the County and
possibly the tri-county region under certain, specified circumstances. 
3)  Agreement among Mono County, IMACA and any trailer recipient indemnifying
Mono County against any and all claims relating to the transfer of the trailers from
IMACA to the individual recipient.

Recommended Action: Approve County entry into and authorize CAO’s
signature on the proposed agreements and authorize the CAO, in consultation
with County Counsel, to administer said agreements, including making minor
amendments as the CAO may deem necessary provided such amendments do
not substantially alter the scope of the agreements and are approved as to form
and legality by County Counsel. Provide any desired direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: Trailers are being transferred at no cost. Transportation fees and
needed supplies will be paid for by donated funds from Direct Relief, not to
exceed $80,000.

E. Allocation List Amendment - Probation Department
Departments: Probation
15 minutes

(Karin Humiston, Chief Probation Officer) - Proposed resolution authorizing the
County Administrative Officer to amend the County of Mono List of Allocated
Positions to add one (1) Behavioral Health Services Coordinator, remove one (1)
Deputy Probation Officer III position and add one (1) Deputy Probation Officer IV
position in Probation.

Recommended Action: Adopt proposed resolution R21-___, Amending the
County of Mono List of Allocated Positions to add one (1) Behavioral Health
Services Coordinator, remove one (1) Deputy Probation Officer III position and
add one (1) Deputy Probation Officer IV position in Probation. Provide any
desired direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact to the General Fund. The cost of promoting the
existing Deputy Probation Officer from a III to a IV position for the remainder of
this fiscal year is $1,203 and $5,105 annually. The salary and benefits for the
Behavioral Health Services Coordinator position for the remainder of this fiscal
year is $17,284 and $89,877 annually. Additional salary and benefit costs are to
be paid for from a combination of the new Department of Social Services Family
Urgent Response System (FURS) fund and SB 678 fund. 

12. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

The Board may, if time permits, take Board Reports at any time during the
meeting and not at a specific time.

ADJOURN

Page 6 of 6



OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Finance
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Budget Policy

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

The Budget Policy was bought before the board as part of a fiscal policy workshop on February 9, 2021.  Revisions were
made to the Budget Policy based on the fiscal policy workshop. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt the revised budget policy.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Megan Mahaffey

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1836 / mmahaffey@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Budget Policy v2021 FINAL

 Budget Policy v2021 TRACK CHANGES

 Budget Policy v2011 ORIGINAL

History

Time Who Approval
4/6/2021 1:17 PM County Counsel Yes

4/6/2021 10:03 AM Finance Yes

4/9/2021 12:12 PM County Administrative Office Yes

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25162&ItemID=13230

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25199&ItemID=13230

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25200&ItemID=13230

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25201&ItemID=13230


 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
   

Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 
Treasurer -  Tax Collector 

 
 
Date:  April 13, 2021 
 
To:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Janet Dutcher, Finance Director 
  Megan Mahaffey, Accountant II 
 
Subject: Budget Policy adoption  
 
Recommended Action 

1. Review and adopt Budget Policy as updated from the Fiscal Policy workshop with the 
Board of Supervisors on February 9, 2021 

 
Fiscal Impact 
None. 
 
Discussion 
 
As per staff goal to review Mono County’s fiscal policies as part of the annual budget process, a 
Fiscal policy workshop took place on February 9, 2021.  The Board of Supervisors reviewed 
revisions to the budget policy adopted in 2011 as well as the adopted Debt Policy.  The Budget 
policy was revised as per direction from the board. The revised Mono County Budget Policy 
includes revisions to the adopted 2011 version including a section on General Fund Contingency 
policy. 
 
The revisions before you today ensure relevance and usefulness. Fiscal policies are an important 
foundation that allow an organization to become fiscally resilient despite changes in our 
environment.  Financial policies serve as guidelines for operational and strategic decision 
making. They establish operating parameters by identifying the acceptable or preferred courses 
of action and those which are unacceptable. The policy for adoption today puts Mono County in 
line with the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommendations and 
establishes a Mono County standard for budget.  Internal procedures and control mechanisms 
will ensure compliance. 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The most crucial policy setting action the Mono County Board of Supervisors performs 
every year is the adoption of a balanced budget.  The budget development process takes 
months and requires collaboration from all its operating departments as well as the Board 
of Supervisors to propose an integrated spending plan that delivers public services for 
twelve months. The process includes an estimate of taxpayer resources available for 
appropriation.  These revenues set the limit for required and discretionary spending that 
support public service delivery efforts.  The budget communicates to our citizens their 
government’s priorities for meeting community needs.  Yet, budgetary decision-making 
must support only those efforts that are sustainable and fiscally responsible. The budget 
focuses all County efforts and ultimately drives employee behavior and decision making. 

 
A budget policy is a shared understanding establishing goals aimed at allocating public 
resources that efficiently and effectively provide services to citizens and visitors within 
the County. While not all our shared goals are achievable every fiscal year, the existence 
of such goals serve to guide the Board of Supervisors in its decision-making.  One of 
Mono County’s Strategic Goals is to be fiscally resilient.  This demonstrates the 
importance of financial sustainability beyond adopting a balanced budget as required by 
law in the County Budget Act. Instead, Mono County aims to adopt a structurally 
balanced budget where recurring revenues are equal to recurring spending.  Once 
achieved, annual budget surpluses will fund reserves and one -time expenditures. Mono 
County’s objective is to achieve and maintain explicit reserve balances equal to 25% of 
average General Fund spending.   

 

The County of Mono developed its budget policy out of the experiences of the last three 
decades. We recognize that maintaining a conservative budget approach and prudently 
addressing unfunded liabilities while also ensuring the fiscal sustainability of the 
County’s workforce and rebuilding adequate reserves are vital to sound fiscal 
management and achieving the Mono County Mission: to support all our communities by 
providing superior services while protecting our unique rural environment.  

 
I. BALANCED BUDGET 
 

A. The County is required by state law to adopt a budget that is balanced.  This means that 
total appropriations (or annual spending) cannot be more than estimated resources, which 
includes beginning fund balance plus anticipated revenues). This is the minimum criteria 
for budget adoption. 
 

B. The County’s goal is to adopt a structurally balanced budget which means that ongoing 
revenues are at least equal to ongoing spending.  This ensures continuation of current 
services despite cyclical downturns in revenue streams.  The elimination of reliance on 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

2 

 

fund balance to legally balance the budget is a key step towards achieving fiscal 
resilience. 

 
II. RESERVE BALANCES 
 

Establishing and maintaining adequate reserve balances ensures the County retains the 
fiscal ability to maintain essential public services when events such as cyclical economic 
downturns cause temporary revenue losses.  Given Mono County’s tourism-based 
economy, the recommended minimum level of reserve balances is 25% of average annual 
general fund spending.  Additional specific reserve accounts should be established as the 
need for future resources arises to pay for long-term capital, facility, and infrastructure 
projects. 

 
A. Establish and maintain a general reserve balance of at least 10% of the average annual 

general fund expenditures.  The purpose of the general reserve balance is to provide 
spending resources in case of emergencies, as enumerated in Government Code Section 
29127 of the County Budget Act.  The general reserve is to be carried forward in the 
budget from year to year. Except in cases of legally declared emergencies, the general 
reserve is established, cancelled, increased or decreased only at the time the budget is 
adopted. 

 
B. Establish and maintain an economic stabilization balance of at least 15% of the average 

annual general fund expenditures.  The purpose of the economic stabilization balance is 
to provide resources to support the workforce and the delivery of essential public services 
during an economic downturn having a negative effect on the County’s revenues. 

 
C. When the fiscal year budget permits, the Board will consider placing prior year unspent 

expenditure contingencies and any portion of the prior year fund balance in the economic 
stabilization reserve. 

 
D. As resources become available, the Board of Supervisors will establish additional reserve 

accounts for the purpose of accumulating funds for specific long-term purposes such as 
retirement of long-term debt, paying down unfunded liabilities, paying for facility 
improvements, and funding infrastructure replacement or expansion projects. 

 
III. EXPENDITURE CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT 
 

Each budget shall establish an appropriation for expenditure contingencies at a minimum 
level of 1% of the budgeted general fund expenditures (but not to exceed 10% of total 
appropriations) in each fiscal year for unanticipated expenditures. All expenditures from 
the contingency account are at the discretion of the CAO and Board of Supervisors. As 
required by State law, any transfer of contingency to another budget unit within the 
General Fund requires a 4/5ths vote of the Board of Supervisors.  For more detail on the 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

3 

 

expenditure contingency appropriation, please see the General Fund Contingency 
Appropriation Policy. 
 

IV. GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION POLICY 
 

It is observed that the absence of a specific General Fund (GF) Contingency 
Appropriation policy contributes to over-estimating of budgeted expenditure amounts and 
leads to a widening gap between fiscal year budgeted appropriations and actual 
expenditures where budgeted appropriations at the account level exceed actual 
expenditures by more than five percent. It is also believed this situation artificially 
increases the GF structural budget deficit and impacts the Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
financing decisions. While the County’s past budget policy requires adoption of a GF 
Contingency Appropriation account at a minimum level of 1% of the budgeted GF 
expenditures, it provides no guidance about the use of this contingency balance during 
the fiscal year. 
 
This General Fund Contingency Appropriation policy is designed to provide GF 
departments with the framework to tighten budgetary cost controls at the account level 
for the purpose of achieving a structurally balanced budget. The objective is to establish 
and maintain a GF contingency appropriation in each year’s budget to accommodate 
unexpected increases in expenditures, which could not have reasonably been anticipated 
at the time the budget was developed. It is to provide a margin of safety and a source of 
temporary funding to GF departments to encourage an attitude of cost control within each 
account. It is further intended to promote collaborative teamwork in managing the 
finances of the County’s GF. 

 
This section of the policy has five elements as noted below: 

1. Scope 
2. Compliance with applicable Government Code (GC) sections 
3. Establishing the contingency appropriation 
4. Use of the contingency appropriation 
 

1. Scope 
 

This policy applies only to the County’s General Fund. 
 
The contingency appropriation is not a contingency reserve. A contingency reserve is a 
budgetary provision setting aside a portion of the GF fund balance (carryover) for an 
identified purpose. It is not a financing source in the County’s annual budget. This policy 
directs the creation of a contingency appropriation in the County’s annual budget and 
equals the amount which is set aside each year to be appropriated for that year’s 
unforeseen expenditure requirements. 

 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

4 

 

2. Compliance with Applicable Government Code Sections 
 

The County shall adhere to the County Budget Act (Act) which is referenced in GC 
29000 through GC 29144, and is also included in Appendix B of the County Budget 
Guide (2010 Edition, Revision #1) issued by the California State Controller’s Office. 
This policy is to be consistent with all provisions of the Act affecting appropriations for 
contingencies which are restated in this section. This section is provided as a summary 
only and not meant to be a full recitation of the County Budget Act or laws governing 
county budgets. 

 
GC 29006: The adopted budget shall include, at a minimum, estimated or actual amounts 

by fund for … (d) appropriations for contingencies. 
 

GC 29084: The budget may contain an appropriation(s) for contingencies in such 
amounts as the BOS deems sufficient. 
 

GC 29125: Transfers and revisions to appropriation for contingencies is made by formal 
action of the BOS, by a four�fifths vote. 
 

GC 29126: For any appropriation in whole or in part that is not needed, the Board of 
Supervisors may cancel the unneeded appropriation and transfer the amount to 
appropriation for contingencies. 
 

3.  Establishing the Contingency Appropriation 
 
Subject to BOS approval, the County will establish a GF contingency appropriation with 
each budget cycle using the guidelines provided in this section. 
 
The amount of the GF contingency appropriation is targeted at a minimum of 1% but no 
more than 10% of budgeted GF expenditures (not including this GF contingency 
appropriation). 
 
The GF contingency appropriation will be established and/or adjusted with each budget 
cycle, will be included as a separate department of the GF budget, and the balance left in 
the contingency appropriation at the end of each fiscal year will terminate and lapse as a 
contribution to GF carryover fund balance. 
 
The GF contingency appropriation cannot be more than the following for each budget 
year: 
 

Total GF funding sources 
Less all other GF appropriations 
Plus amounts available from GF unassigned fund balance. 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

5 

 

 
In times of declining revenues and/or budget deficits, the BOS may temporarily eliminate 
or reduce the GF contingency appropriation until the fiscal crisis is resolved. 
 
The amount of the contingency appropriation may be adjusted by 4/5ths vote of the BOS 
at any time during the fiscal year after the adoption of the County’s final budget. 
 

4. Use of the Contingency Appropriation 
 
Only GF departments may request use of the contingency appropriation. 
The department initiates a request for use of the contingency appropriation in either of 

two ways: 
 

• By submitting an individual agenda item through the County’s agenda 
software program which must be reviewed by the CAO, County Counsel, and 
the Finance Department prior to being placed on the Board’s agenda. The 
agenda transmittal must include a statement by the department justifying the 
use of the contingency appropriation consistent with this policy. 

 
• By requesting the use of the contingency appropriation, as instructed, during 

the mid-year (or other intra-period) budget review process.  The Department 
must document their justification for the use of the contingency appropriation 
consistent with this policy. 

 
Transfer from the contingency appropriation must be approved by the BOS with a 4/5ths 
vote prior to recording the requested transfer. 
 
Use of the contingency appropriation is allowed for the following reasons and 

circumstances: 
 

• Unforeseen expenditures that could not have been anticipated at the time the 
annual budget was adopted. 

 
• When the department is impacted by legislative changes not known at the time 

of budget development and which has a negative impact on the department’s 
expenditures (ie..increases expenditures). 

 
• Increases in expenditures necessary to maintain current service levels.  

 
• Economic events that increase vendor costs such as utility rate increases or an 

increase in a vendor’s rates. 
 

• Unanticipated operational changes. 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

6 

 

 
Use of contingency should not be used to fund new expenditures of an on-going nature. 

 
Prior to requesting use of the contingency appropriation, the department must have: 
 

• No unanticipated revenue that has not been appropriated. 
 

• No other appropriations within its own budget which can be reallocated to 
cover the budget shortfall. 

 
• No other appropriation available in another fund that it controls that can be 

legally applied to cover the budget shortfall. 
 
V. FUND BALANCES 

 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54 requires the 
County to segregate fund balances into five basic categories. These categories are:  

 
1. Nonspendable fund balance (such as inventories or prepaid expenditures) is used for 

amounts that are not in spendable form to segregate them in fund balance so that it 
cannot be appropriated.  

2. Restricted fund balance (such as creditors, grant providers or contributors) is used for 
amounts restricted to specific purposes by external parties.  

3. Committed fund balance (to cover commitments the Board of Supervisors has made) 
is used for amounts determined by formal action (i.e., resolution) of the Board of 
Supervisors to be used for a specific purpose.  

4. Assigned fund balance (such as covering deficit fund balances) is used for amounts 
intended to for a specific purpose and can be established by the Board or the CAO.  

5. Unassigned fund balance (everything not included in the other types of fund balance). 
 

Restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance amounts together 
constitute spendable fund balance and these amounts are available for appropriation and 
use in balancing next year’s budget. 

 
The Finance Director is responsible for segregating each fund balance by category and 
amount and informing the CAO and the Board of Supervisors of the amount of spendable 
fund balance available for use in balancing the budget for the upcoming year. 

 
VI. STRATEGIC PLANNING 
 

The County uses a strategic planning process for setting priorities and making budgetary 
decisions.  This allows development, initiation, and funding of new or revised programs 
over a five-year period, in sync with a comprehensive planning process that establishes 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

7 

 

the Board’s priorities for satisfying long-term community needs.  All new or revised 
services are evaluated within the framework of the five-year strategic plan.  The strategic 
plan is updated every year to span a five-year period. 

 
VII. FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

 
Mono County uses fiscal management principles to ensure resiliency by: 

 
1. Maintaining a conservative budgeting approach. This means to limit budget deficits 

whenever possible.  Concerning revenues, it requires forecasting that is not overly 
optimistically but instead relies on accepted analytical methodologies such as 
historical trends and economic indicators as the basis for estimating revenues. 
Concerning expenditures, it requires limiting spending amounts based on work plans 
to continue delivery of existing public services. 
 

2. Annually consider reduction of long-term debt and unfunded liabilities. 
 
3. Establish an equitable basis for allocating internal costs to all service users. 
 
4. Review fees periodically. Fees should be calculated to include all actual costs of 

providing the service, including overhead.  Only the Board of Supervisors can decide 
to set a fee at less than its cost to provide the service.  Adjust and establish new fees 
as needed. 

 
5. Incorporate long-term financial planning into the budget cycle to guide financial 

decision-making. 
 

VIII. INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Consider contributions from the general fund, grants and state/federal allocations, 
annually or whenever available, for the improvement of county infrastructure and 
facilities. Incorporate plans to improve infrastructure and facilities into long-term plans 
and prioritize setting aside funds to pay for these projects (but also see the County Debt 
Policy about borrowing to pay for large projects).  Work with regional partners to reduce 
County costs for maintaining and improving the County infrastructure and facilities 
which is shared with other jurisdictions. 

 
Plan for new facilities only if operating and maintenance costs for those facilities are 
fully recognized and accounted for in multi-year financial plans. Provide adequate routine 
maintenance each year to avoid the higher cost of deferred maintenance. 

 
 
 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

8 

 

VIII. NEW SERVICES 
 
Add new services only after identifying a need (see section on strategic planning) and 
only when adequate resources for staffing and on-going operational funding are available 
in multi-year financial plans. 

 
IX. GUIDELINES FOR OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES 

 
1. Provide County services in the most cost effective and operationally efficient manner. 

 
2. When program funding is cut or eliminated, reduce, or eliminate the program 

accordingly, unless otherwise mandated. 
 

3. Provide staffing levels that consider multi-year needs, reasonable workload per 
employee, and minimize the possibility of layoffs or furloughs resulting from 
inadequate revenues. 
 

4. For special projects or certain expertise in the short-term, utilize temporary 
employees (not to exceed 1,000 hours) and consultants. 

 
5. Utilize community expertise on a voluntary basis, as appropriate. 
 
6. Ensure that fee-supported services are staffed appropriately to render the services for 

which customers have paid.  Minimize the use of subsidies to support continuation of 
such services. 

 
7. Work through partnerships, JPA's, and regional relationships to share costs for local 

programs whenever possible. 
 
X. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

 
Attract and retain competent employees for the County work force by compensating 
employees fairly (consistent with smaller rural counties), provide adequate training 
opportunities, ensure safe working conditions, and maintain a professional work 
environment.  For additional policy direction, see the Compensation Philosophy 
Statement adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
XI. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Achieve organized, sustainable community development for the communities and citizens 
of Mono County through the budget process by providing an expanded and diversified 
economic base while preserving our scenic beauty, open space, small town charm and 
historical assets. 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

9 

 

 
XII. BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. The County will utilize a targeted “base-year” operating budget where the budget 
team estimates resources available, costs out workforce and non-discretionary 
spending, and communicates with operating departments about their share of the 
remaining General Fund spendable resources. A base year budget incorporates the 
following elements: 

 
1. The same staffing levels and the same allocated classifications as prior year's 

adopted budget. 
 
2. The same level of supplies, materials, and services as purchased in prior years, 

increased to account for known price increases. 
 

3. Replacement, in-kind, of capital equipment not to exceed $10,000 
 

B. The County will utilize a process to approve additions over and above the targeted 
“base-year” budget by considering a list of policy items. Policy items are defined 
as follows: 

 
1. Additional allocation of staff. 
 
2. Reclassification of existing staff to higher classifications or salary range (other 

than promotions within approved series classifications). 
 

3. Supplies, materials or services, $1,000 above base year budget, excluding 
known price increases. 

 
4. Any new capital equipment more than $5,000 that are not replacement items. 

 
5. Any capital improvement projects identified in the capital improvement plan. 

 
C. The Board, CAO and Department Heads will consider both resources and 

priorities in determining which policy items to fund. Priorities are determined by 
the strategic planning process. 

 
D. The role of department heads is to develop a fiscally responsible department 

budget consistent with past spending patterns and within the resources anticipated 
available for spending, in a timely fashion and to submit the operating budget and 
policy items to the CAO and Finance Director. 

 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised April 2021) 
 

10 

 

E. The role of the Finance Director is to work with departments and consider 
departmental budgets for submission into the County’s proposed budget. The 
Finance Director will involve the CAO on both the expenditure and the revenue 
estimates for submission to the Board for approval. 

 
F. The role of the CAO is as the County’s chief budget officer who recommends the 

budget to the Board of Supervisors. 
 

G. The Board will consider the budget and provide direction to staff. 
 

H. The general budget development timeline includes: 
 

1. Establish budget calendar – January 
 

2. Develop base budget, estimate discretionary revenues, and cost internal 
services and workforce amounts – February 

 
3. Strategic planning and development of the capital improvement plan – 

February 
 

4. Departments submit their proposed budgets and meet one-on-one with the 
budget development team – April 

 
5. Budget workshop and development of the recommended budget – May 

 
6. Public hearing and budget adoption – by June 30 

 
 



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

1 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

INTRODUCTION 
 

The most crucial policy setting action the Mono County Board of Supervisors performs 
every year is the adoption of a balanced budget.  The budget development process takes 
months and requires collaboration from all its operating departments as well as the Board 
of Supervisors to propose an integrated spending plan that delivers public services for 
twelve months. The process includes an estimate of taxpayer resources available for 
appropriation.  These revenues set the limit for required and discretionary spending that 
support public service delivery efforts.  The budget communicates to our citizens their 
government’s priorities for meeting community needs.  Yet, budgetary decision-making 
must support only those efforts that are sustainable and fiscally responsible. The budget 
focuses all County efforts and ultimately drives employee behavior and decision making. 

 
A budget policy is a shared understanding establishing goals aimed at allocating  public 
resources that efficiently and effectively provide services to citizens and visitors within 
the County. While not all our shared goals are achievable every fiscal year, the existence 
of such goals serve to guide the Board of Supervisors in its decision-making.  One of 
Mono County’s Strategic Goals is to be fiscally resilient.  This demonstrates the 
importance of financial sustainability beyond adopting a balanced budget as required by 
law in the County Budget Act. Instead, Mono County aims to adopt a structurally 
balanced budget where recurring revenues are equal to recurring spending.  Once 
achieved, annual budget surpluses will fund reserves and one -time expenditures. Mono 
County’s objective is to achieve and maintain explicit reserve balances equal to 25% of 
average General Fund spending.   

 
The County of Mono developed its budget policy out of the experiences of the last three 
decades. We recognize that maintaining a conservative budget approach and prudently 
addressing unfunded liabilities while also ensuring the fiscal sustainability of the 
County’s workforce and rebuilding adequate reserves are vital to sound fiscal 
management and achieving the Mono County Mission: to support all our communities by 
providing superior services while protecting our unique rural environment.  

 
I. BALANCED BUDGET 
 

A. The County is required by state law to adopt a budget that is balanced.  This means that 
total appropriations (or annual spending) cannot be more than estimated resources, which 
includes beginning fund balance plus anticipated revenues). This is the minimum criteria 
for budget adoption. 
 

B. The County’s goal is to adopt a structurally balanced budget which means that ongoing 
revenues are at least equal to ongoing spending.  This ensures continuation of current 
services despite cyclical downturns in revenue streams.  The elimination of reliance on 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

2 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

fund balance to legally balance the budget is a key step towards achieving fiscal 
resilience. 

 
II. RESERVES BALANCES 
 

Establishing and maintaining adequate reserve balances ensures the County retains the 
fiscal ability to maintain essential public services when events such as cyclical economic 
downturns cause temporary revenue losses.  Given Mono County’s tourism-based 
economy, the recommended minimum level of reserve balances is 25% of average annual 
general fund spending.  Additional specific reserve accounts should be established as the 
need for future resources arises to pay for long-term capital, facility, and infrastructure 
projects. 

 
A. Establish and maintain a general reserve balance of at least 10% of the average annual 

general fund expenditures.  The purpose of the general reserve balance is to provide 
spending resources in case of emergencies, as enumerated in Government Code Section 
29127 of the County Budget Act.  The general reserve is to be carried forward in the 
budget from year to year. Except in cases of legally declared emergencies, the general 
reserve is established, cancelled, increased or decreased only at the time the budget is 
adopted. 

 
B. Establish and maintain an economic stabilization balance of at least 15% of the average 

annual general fund expenditures.  The purpose of the economic stabilization balance is 
to provide resources to support the workforce and the delivery of essential public services 
during an economic downturn having a negative effect on the County’s revenues. 

 
C. When the fiscal year budget permits, the Board will consider placing prior year unspent 

expenditure contingencies and any portion of the prior year fund balance in the economic 
stabilization reserve. 

 
D. As resources become available, the Board of Supervisors will establish additional reserve 

accounts for the purpose of accumulating funds for specific long-term purposes such as 
retirement of long-term debt, paying down unfunded liabilities, paying for facility 
improvements, and funding infrastructure replacement or expansion projects. 

 
III. EXPENDITURE CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT 
 

Each budget shall establish an appropriation for expenditure contingencies at a minimum 
level of 1% of the budgeted general fund expenditures (but not to exceed 10% of total 
appropriations) in each fiscal year for unanticipated expenditures. All expenditures from 
the contingency account are at the discretion of the CAO and Board of Supervisors. As 
required by State law, any transfer of contingency to another budget unit within the 
General Fund requires a 4/5ths vote of the Board of Supervisors.  For more detail on the 

Formatted: Font color: Blue
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Font: 14 pt



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

3 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

expenditure contingency appropriation, please see the General Fund Contingency 
Appropriation Policy. 

  
 

IV. GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION POLICY 
 

It is observed that the absence of a specific General Fund (GF) Contingency 
Appropriation policy contributes to over-estimating of budgeted expenditure amounts and 
leads to a widening gap between fiscal year budgeted appropriations and actual 
expenditures where budgeted appropriations at the account level exceed actual 
expenditures by more than five percent. It is also believed this situation artificially 
increases the GF structural budget deficit and impacts the Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
financing decisions. While the County’s past budget policy requires adoption of a GF 
Contingency Appropriation account at a minimum level of 1% of the budgeted GF 
expenditures, it provides no guidance about the use of this contingency balance during 
the fiscal year. 
 
This General Fund Contingency Appropriation policy is designed to provide GF 
departments with the framework to tighten budgetary cost controls at the account level 
for the purpose of achieving a structurally balanced budget. The objective is to establish 
and maintain a GF contingency appropriation in each year’s budget to accommodate 
unexpected increases in expenditures, which could not have reasonably been anticipated 
at the time the budget was developed. It is to provide a margin of safety and a source of 
temporary funding to GF departments to encourage an attitude of cost control within each 
account. It is further intended to promote collaborative teamwork in managing the 
finances of the County’s GF. 

 
This section of the policy has five elements as noted below: 

1. Scope 
2. Compliance with applicable Government Code (GC) sections 
3. Establishing the contingency appropriation 
4. Use of the contingency appropriation 
 

1. ScopeCOPE 
 

This policy applies only to the County’s General Fund. 
 
The contingency appropriation is not a contingency reserve. A contingency reserve is a 
budgetary provision setting aside a portion of the GF fund balance (carryover) for an 
identified purpose. It is not a financing source in the County’s annual budget. This policy 
directs the creation of a contingency appropriation in the County’s annual budget and 
equals the amount which is set aside each year to be appropriated for that year’s 
unforeseen expenditure requirements. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt
Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: I, II, III, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Black
Formatted: List Paragraph

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Not Bold, Font color: Auto
Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.79"
Formatted: Font: Not Bold
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

4 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

 
2. 2.0 Compliance with Applicable Government Code SectionsOMPLIANCE WITH 

APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 
 

The County shall adhere to the County Budget Act (Act) which is referenced in GC 
29000 through GC 29144, and is also included in Appendix B of the County Budget 
Guide (2010 Edition, Revision #1) issued by the California State Controller’s Office. 
This policy is to be consistent with all provisions of the Act affecting appropriations for 
contingencies which are restated in this section. This section is provided as a summary 
only and not meant to be a full recitation of the County Budget Act or laws governing 
county budgets. 

 
GC 29006: The adopted budget shall include, at a minimum, estimated or actual amounts 

by fund for … (d) appropriations for contingencies. 
 

GC 29084: The budget may contain an appropriation(s) for contingencies in such 
amounts as the BOS deems sufficient. 
 

GC 29125: Transfers and revisions to appropriation for contingencies is made by formal 
action of the BOS, by a four‐fifths vote. 
 

GC 29126: For any appropriation in whole or in part that is not needed, the Board of 
Supervisors may cancel the unneeded appropriation and transfer the amount to 
appropriation for contingencies. 
 

3. 3.0 Establishing the Contingency AppropriationSTABLISHING THE 
CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATION 

 
Subject to BOS approval, the County will establish a GF contingency appropriation with 
each budget cycle using the guidelines provided in this section. 
 
The amount of the GF contingency appropriation is targeted at a minimum of 1% but no 
more than 10% of budgeted GF expenditures (not including this GF contingency 
appropriation). 
 
The GF contingency appropriation will be established and/or adjusted with each budget 
cycle, will be included as a separate department of the GF budget, and the balance left in 
the contingency appropriation at the end of each fiscal year will terminate and lapse as a 
contribution to GF carryover fund balance. 
 
The GF contingency appropriation cannot be more than the following for each budget 
year: 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt
Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 2 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"
Formatted: Font: Not Bold
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt
Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 2 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(54,95,146))
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

5 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Total GF funding sources 
Less all other GF appropriations 
Plus amounts available from GF unassigned fund balance. 
 

In times of declining revenues and/or budget deficits, the BOS may temporarily eliminate 
or reduce the GF contingency appropriation until the fiscal crisis is resolved. 
 
The amount of the contingency appropriation may be adjusted by 4/5ths vote of the BOS 
at any time during the fiscal year after the adoption of the County’s final budget. 
 

4. 4.0 Use of the Contingency AppropriationSE OF THE CONTINGENCY 
APPROPRIATION 

 
Only GF departments may request use of the contingency appropriation. 
 
 
The department initiates a request for use of the contingency appropriation in either of  

two ways: 
 

 By submitting an individual agenda item through the County’s agenda 
software program which must be reviewed by the CAO, County Counsel, and 
the Finance Department prior to being placed on the Board’s agenda. The 
agenda transmittal must include a statement by the department justifying the 
use of the contingency appropriation consistent with this policy. 

 
 By requesting the use of the contingency appropriation, as instructed, during 

the mid-year (or other intra-period) budget review process.  The Department 
must document their justification for the use of the contingency appropriation 
consistent with this policy. 

 
Transfer from the contingency appropriation must be approved by the BOS with a 4/5ths 
vote prior to recording the requested transfer. 
 
Use of the contingency appropriation is allowed for the following reasons and 

circumstances: 
 

 Unforeseen expenditures that could not have been anticipated at the time the 
annual budget was adopted. 

 
 When the department is impacted by legislative changes not known at the time 

of budget development and which has a negative impact on the department’s 
expenditures (ie..increases expenditures). 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Not Bold, Font color: Auto
Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 2 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

6 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

 Increases in expenditures necessary to maintain current service levels.  
 

 Economic events that increase vendor costs such as utility rate increases or an 
increase in a vendor’s rates. 

 
 Unanticipated operational changes. 
 

Use of contingency should not be used to fund new expenditures of an on-going nature. 
 

Prior to requesting use of the contingency appropriation, the department must have: 
 

 No unanticipated revenue that has not been appropriated. 
 

 No other appropriations within its own budget which can be reallocated to 
cover the budget shortfall. 

 
 No other appropriation available in another fund that it controls that can be 

legally applied to cover the budget shortfall. 
 
 

 
 
IV.V. FUND BALANCES 

 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54 requires the 
County to segregate fund balances into five basic categories. These categories are:  

 
1. Nonspendable fund balance (such as inventories or prepaid expenditures) is used for 

amounts that are not in spendable form to segregate them in fund balance so that it 
cannot be appropriated.  

2. Restricted fund balance (such as creditors, grant providers or contributors) is used for 
amounts restricted to specific purposes by external parties.  

3. Committed fund balance (to cover commitments the Board of Supervisors has made) 
is used for amounts determined by formal action (i.e., resolution) of the Board of 
Supervisors to be used for a specific purpose.  

4. Assigned fund balance (such as covering deficit fund balances) is used for amounts 
intended to for a specific purpose and can be established by the Board or the CAO.  

5. Unassigned fund balance (everything not included in the other types of fund balance). 
 

Restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance amounts together 
constitute spendable fund balance and these amounts are available for appropriation and 
use in balancing next year’s budget. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Bold
Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

7 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

The Finance Director is responsible for segregating each fund balance by category and 
amount and informing the CAO and the Board of Supervisors of the amount of spendable 
fund balance available for use in balancing the budget for the upcoming year. 

 
VI. STRATEGIC PLANNING 
 

The County uses a strategic planning process for setting priorities and making budgetary 
decisions.  This allows development, initiation, and funding of new or revised programs 
over a five-year period, in sync with a comprehensive planning process that establishes 
the Board’s priorities for satisfying long-term community needs.  All new or revised 
services are evaluated within the framework of the five-year strategic plan.  The strategic 
plan is updated every year to span a five-year period. 

 
VI.VII. FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

 
Mono County uses fiscal management principles to ensure resiliency by: 

 
1. Maintaining a conservative budgeting approach. This means to limit budget deficits 

whenever possible.  Concerning revenues, it requires forecasting that is not overly 
optimistically but instead relies on accepted analytical methodologies such as 
historical trends and economic indicators as the basis for estimating revenues. 
Concerning expenditures, it requires limiting spending amounts based on work plans 
to continue delivery of existing public services. 
 

2. Annually consider reduction of long-term debt and unfunded liabilities. 
 
3. Establish an equitable basis for allocating internal costs to all service users. 
 
4. Review fees periodically. Fees should be calculated to include all actual costs of 

providing the service, including overhead.  Only the Board of Supervisors can decide 
to set a fee at less than its cost to provide the service.  Adjust and establish new fees 
as needed. 

 
5. Incorporate long-term financial planning into the budget cycle to guide financial 

decision-making. 
 

5.  
 

VII.VIII. INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Consider contributions from the general fund, grants and state/federal allocations, 
annually or whenever available, for the improvement of county infrastructure and 
facilities. Incorporate plans to improve infrastructure and facilities into long-term plans 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: I,
II, III, … + Start at: 7 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0"
+ Indent at:  0.5"

Commented [MM1]: Add in budget Expenditure policy 
here  

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering, Adjust space between Latin and Asian text,
Adjust space between Asian text and numbers
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75",  No bullets or
numbering
Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue
Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: I,
II, III, … + Start at: 7 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0"
+ Indent at:  0.5"



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

8 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

and prioritize setting aside funds to pay for these projects (but also see the County Debt 
Policy about borrowing to pay for large projects).  Work with regional partners to reduce 
County costs for maintaining and improving the County infrastructure and facilities 
which is shared with other jurisdictions. 

 
Plan for new facilities only if operating and maintenance costs for those facilities are 
fully recognized and accounted for in multi-year financial plans. Provide adequate routine 
maintenance each year to avoid the higher cost of deferred maintenance. 

 
VIII. NEW SERVICES 

 
Add new services only after identifying a need (see section on strategic planning) and 
only when adequate resources for staffing and on-going operational funding are available 
in multi-year financial plans. 

 
IX. GUIDELINES FOR OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES 

 
1. Provide County services in the most cost effective and operationally efficient manner. 

 
2. When program funding is cut or eliminated, reduce or eliminate the program 

accordingly, unless otherwise mandated. 
3. Provide staffing levels that consider multi-year needs, reasonable workload per 

employee, and minimize the possibility of layoffs or furloughs resulting from 
inadequate revenues. 
 

4. For special projects or certain expertise in the short-term, utilize temporary 
employees (not to exceed 1,000 hours) and consultants. 

 
5. Utilize community expertise on a voluntary basis, as appropriate. 
 
6. Ensure that fee-supported services are staffed appropriately to render the services for 

which customers have paid.  Minimize the use of subsidies to support continuation of 
such services. 

 
7. Work through partnerships, JPA's, and regional relationships to share costs for local 

programs whenever possible. 
 
X. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

 
Attract and retain competent employees for the County work force by compensating 
employees fairly (consistent with smaller rural counties), provide adequate training 
opportunities, ensure safe working conditions, and maintain a professional work 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

9 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

environment.  For additional policy direction, see the Compensation Philosophy 
Statement adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
XI. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
Achieve organized, sustainable community development for the communities and citizens 
of Mono County through the budget process by providing an expanded and diversified 
economic base while preserving our scenic beauty, open space, small town charm and 
historical assets. 

 
XII. BUDGET DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. The County will utilize a targeted “base-year” operating budget where the budget 
team estimates resources available, costs out workforce and non-discretionary 
spending, and communicates with operating departments about their share of the 
remaining General Fund spendable resources. A base year budget incorporates the 
following elements: 

 
1. The same staffing levels and the same allocated classifications as prior year's 

adopted budget. 
 
2. The same level of supplies, materials and services as purchased in prior years, 

increased to account for known price increases. 
 

3. Replacement, in-kind, of capital equipment not to exceed $10,000 
 

B. The County will utilize a process to approve additions over and above the targeted 
“base-year” budget by considering a list of policy items. Policy items are defined 
as follows: 

 
1. Additional allocation of staff. 
 
2. Reclassification of existing staff to higher classifications or salary range (other 

than promotions within approved series classifications). 
 

3. Supplies, materials or services, $1,000 above base year budget, excluding 
known price increases. 

 
4. Any new capital equipment in excess of $5,000 that are not replacement 

items. 
 

5. Any capital improvement projects identified in the capital improvement plan. 
 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Font color: Blue



MONO COUNTY 
BUDGET POLICY  

(adopted May 2011, revised AprilFebruary 2021) 
 

10 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

C. The Board, CAO and Department Heads will consider both resources and 
priorities in determining which policy items to fund. Priorities are determined by 
the strategic planning process. 

 
D. The role of department heads is to develop a fiscally responsible department 

budget consistent with past spending patterns and within the resources anticipated 
available for spending, in a timely fashion and to submit the operating budget and 
policy items to the CAO and Finance Director. 

 
E. The role of the Finance Director is to work with departments and consider 

departmental budgets for submission into the County’s proposed budget. The 
Finance Director will involve the CAO on both the expenditure and the revenue 
estimates for submission to the Board for approval. 

 
F. The role of the CAO is as the County’s chief budget officer who recommends the 

budget to the Board of Supervisors. 
 

G. The Board will consider the budget and provide direction to staff. 
 

H. The general budget development timeline includes: 
 

1. Establish budget calendar – January 
 

2. Develop base budget, estimate discretionary revenues, and cost internal 
services and workforce amounts – February 

 
3. Strategic planning and development of the capital improvement plan – 

February 
 

4. Departments submit their proposed budgets and meet one-on-one with the 
budget development team – April 

 
5. Budget workshop and development of the recommended budget – May 

 
6. Public hearing and budget adoption – by June 30 

 
 



BUDGET POLICY 
(Adopted May 2011) 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
A budget policy is an adopted guideline that establishes goals for allocation of public 
resources in the manner best suited to the efficient provision of services to citizens and 
visitors present within the County. While not all of the goals may be achievable in the 
current year, the existence of such goals will serve to guide the Board of Supervisors in 
its decision-making. 

 
The County of Mono has forged its budget policy out of the experiences of the last two 
decades, when expenditures grew considerably beyond the County’s revenue capability. 
This resulted in layoffs, downsizing and service reductions throughout County 
government. It is recognized that maintaining a conservative budget approach and 
funding unfunded liabilities, whether maintenance of infrastructure/buildings or employee 
commitments, are vital to sound fiscal management. 

 
I. GENERAL RESERVES 

 
A. Establish a general reserve in the amount of 5% to 15% of the average annual 

general fund expenditures. 
 

B. When the fiscal year budget permits, the Board shall consider placing remaining 
contingencies and a portion of the prior year fund balances in the general reserve 
until the maximum reserve of 15% of general fund expenditures is met. 

 
C. The general reserve will be carried forward in the budget from year to year. Except 

in cases of legally declared emergencies, the general reserve may only be 
established, cancelled, increased or decreased at the time the budget is adopted. 

 
II. CONTINGENCIES 

 
Establish an appropriation for contingencies at a minimum level of 1% of the budgeted 
general fund expenditures (but not to exceed 10% of total appropriations) in each fiscal 
year for opportunities and unanticipated expenditures. All expenditures from the 
contingency line item are at the discretion of the Board of Supervisors. 

 
III. FUND BALANCES 

 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54 requires the 
County to segregate fund balances into five basic categories. These categories are: Non- 
spendable Fund Balance (such as inventories or prepaid expenditures); Restricted Fund 
Balance (such as creditors, grant providers or contributors); Committed Fund Balance (to 
cover commitments the Board of Supervisors has made); Assigned Fund Balance (such 
as covering deficit fund balances); and Unassigned Fund Balance (everything not 



BUDGET POLICY 
(Adopted May 2011) 

 

included in the other types of fund balance). Unassigned Fund Balance is available for 
carry-over and use in preparing the next year’s budget. 

 
The Finance Director/Auditor-Controller shall be responsible for segregating each fund 
balance by category and amount and informing the CAO and the Board of Supervisors of 
the amount of Unassigned Fund Balance available for use in preparing the budget for the 
upcoming year. 

 
IV. FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

 
1. Maintain a conservative budgeting approach. 
2. Annually consider reduction of long-term debt and elimination of negative fund 

balances. 
3. Establish the level of cost recovery, including overhead, from various fees and 

services. 
4. Review fees annually, establish actual costs and adjust and establish new fees as 

needed. 
 
V. INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
Consider contributions from the general fund, grants and state/federal allocations, 
annually or whenever available, for the improvement of county infrastructure. Work with 
building partners, including but not limited to the Mono County Free Library, the 
Administrative Officer of the Court, etc., to reduce County costs to maintain and improve 
the County infrastructure. 

 
VI. NEW SERVICES 

 
Add new services only when a need has been identified and when adequate resources 
for staffing and funding are demonstrably available in multi-year financial plans. 

 
VII. FACILITIES 

 
Plan for new facilities only if operating and maintenance costs for those facilities are fully 
recognized and taken into account in multi-year financial plans. Provide adequate 
routine maintenance each year to avoid the higher cost of deferred maintenance. 

 
VIII. OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES 

 
1. Provide County services in the most cost-efficient manner. 

 
2. When program funding is cut or eliminated, reduce or eliminate the program 

accordingly unless mandated otherwise. 



BUDGET POLICY 
(Adopted May 2011) 

 

 

3. Provide staffing levels that take into account multi-year needs, reasonable workload 
per employee and minimize the possibility of layoffs resulting from inadequate 
revenues. 

 
4. For special projects or certain expertise in the short-term, utilize temporary employees 

(not to exceed 1,000 hours) and consultants. 
 
5. Utilize community expertise on a voluntary basis as appropriate. 

 
6. Ensure that fee-supported services are staffed appropriately to render the services for 

which customers have paid. 
 
7. Work through partnerships, JPA's, and regional relationships to share costs for local 

programs whenever possible. 
 
 
IX. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

 
Attract and retain competent employees for the County work force by compensating 
employees fairly (consistent with smaller rural counties), provide adequate training 
opportunities, ensure safe working conditions, and maintain a professional work 
environment. 

 
 

X. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
Achieve organized, sustainable community development for the communities and citizens 
of Mono County through the budget process by providing an expanded and diversified 
economic base while preserving our scenic beauty, open space, small town charm and 
historical assets. 

 
 
XI. BUDGET FORMATION 

 
A. The County will utilize a “base-year” operating budget. A base year budget is 

defined as follows: 
 

a. The same staffing levels and the same allocated classifications as prior 
year's adopted budget. Note: This includes budgeting for promotions within 
an allocated classification series. 

 
b. The same level of supplies, materials and services as purchased in prior 

years, increased to account for known price increases. 
 

c. Replacement, in-kind, of capital equipment not to exceed $10,000 



BUDGET POLICY 
(Adopted May 2011) 

 

 

B. The County will utilize a process to approve additions over and above the “base- 
year” budget by considering a list of policy items. Policy items are defined as 
follows: 

 
a. Additional allocation of staff. 

 
b. Reclassification of existing staff to higher classifications or salary range 

(other than promotions within approved series classifications). 
 

c. Supplies, materials or services, $1,000 above base year budget, excluding 
known price increases. 

 
d. Any new capital equipment in excess of $5,000 that are not replacement 

items. 
 

e. Any capital improvement projects identified in the capital improvement 
project budget. 

 
C. The Board, CAO and Department Heads will consider both resources and priorities 

in determining which policy items will be funded. 
 

D. The County will strive to develop, consider and approve the County fiscal year 
budget consistent with the California Government Code schedule. 

 
E. The role of department heads will be to develop a department budget in a timely 

fashion and to submit the operating budget and policy items to the CAO and 
Finance Director. 

 
F. The role of the Finance Director will be to work with the department and consider 

departmental budgets for submission into the County proposed budget. The 
Finance Director will involve the CAO on both the expenditure and the revenue 
estimates for submission to the Board for approval. 

 
G. The Board will consider the budget and provide direction to staff. 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Probation
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Resolution Approving Proposition 64
Public Health and Safety Grant
Program

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed resolution approving an application to the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant Program and authorizing
the County Administrative Officer on behalf of the Board of Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this funding and

sign the Grant Agreement, in substantially the form set forth in the attached proposal package, with the Board of State and
Community Corrections.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed resolution R21-___,  Approving an application to the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant
Program and authorizing the County Administrative Officer on behalf of the Board of Supervisors to submit the grant
proposal for this funding and sign the Grant Agreement with the Board of State and Community Corrections. Provide any
desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Probation Department has proposed grant funding in the amount of  $814,798 over a period of three years from May 1,
2021 to April 30, 2024.

CONTACT NAME: Karin Humiston

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325572 / jlmills@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 Proposition 64 Proposal Package

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25091&ItemID=13213

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25088&ItemID=13213

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25089&ItemID=13213


 Proposition 64 Request for Proposals

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/2/2021 10:27 AM County Counsel Yes

 4/6/2021 10:46 AM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:11 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 


                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25090&ItemID=13213


                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 

MAILING: P.O. BOX 596, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
                                                                     BRIDGEPORT OFFICE (760) 932-5570•FAX (760) 932-5571 
                                                                        MAMMOTH OFFICE (760) 924-1730•FAX (760) 924-1731 

   
probation@mono.ca.gov 

Mark Magit 
Presiding Judge 
Superior Court 
 

  

 
Dr. Karin Humiston  
Chief Probation Officer 
  

                                                     
                                                     

 

 
April 13, 2021 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:     K.S. Humiston 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant 
Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the proposed resolution and authorize the County Administrative Officer on 
behalf of the Mono County Board of Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this 
funding and sign the Grant Agreement with the Board of State and Community 
Corrections, including any amendments thereof. 
                  
 
DISCUSSION: 
Mono County Mammoth Lakes After School Program (MLAP) targets the need for youth 
cannabis and substance use prevention and intervention programs; provides trauma 
informed education about health impacts of youth cannabis use for 12 - 21-year-old 
youths and their caregivers and schools; provides a safe environment with caring adults 
after school (3:00 pm - 6:00 pm) for academics, recreation, and program intervention; 
and provides objective evaluation of efficacy of programs on reduction of youth referrals 
for cannabis use. Mono County Probation will enter a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with the Mammoth Unified School District to provide the location of the MLAP 
and use of its facilities. Mono County Probation will also contract with a social worker 
for individual and family referrals and conduct intake assessments for all involved youth 
Adverse Childhood Experiences Scale (ACES) and the Mono Arts Council for Theater 
and Arts directed classes. Grant funding will be used for prevention and intervention 
program material, salary for the ASP Director, overtime salary for teachers and coaches 
providing direct assistance, mentor stipend, snacks and meals for youth, recreational 



 
equipment, sports and Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) 
equipment, theater, arts and crafts materials and partial salary for the deputy probation 
officer and Chief of Probation for evaluation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Probation Department has proposed grant funding in the amount of $814,798.00 over a 
period of three years from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2024. Recommendations from the 
Proposition 64 Scoring Panel for funding go before the Board of State and Community 
Corrections on April 8, 2021. 
 
 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

 

- 1 - 

 
 

R21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
APPROVING AN APPLICATION TO THE PROPOSITION 64 PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

SAFETY GRANT PROGRAM 
 
 

WHEREAS, In November of 2016, voters approved Proposition 64, the Control, 
Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act (AUMA). AUMA legalized the recreational use 
of marijuana in California for individuals 21 years of age and older. Proposition 64, in pertinent 
part, provides that a portion of the tax revenue from the cultivation and retail sale of cannabis 
will be appropriated to the Board of State and Community Corrections; and  

 
WHEREAS, The Board of State and Community Corrections will make grants to local 

governments to assist with law enforcement, fire protection, or other local programs addressing 
public health and safety associated with the implementation of the Control, Regulate and Tax 
Adult Use of Marijuana Act (AUMA); and 

 
WHEREAS, The Mono County Probation Department in conjunction with the 

Mammoth Unified School District plans the use of grant funding to startup the Mammoth Lakes 
After School Program, which targets the need for youth cannabis and substance use prevention 
and intervention programs; provides trauma informed education about health impacts of youth 
cannabis use; provides a safe environment after school for academics, recreation and program 
intervention; and provides objective evaluation of programs on reduction of youth referrals for 
cannabis use; and 

 
WHEREAS, The County of Mono desires to participate in the Proposition 64 Public 

Health and Safety Grant funded through the California State and Local Government Law 
Enforcement Account and administered by the Board of State and Community Corrections; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DOES  

HEREBY FIND AND RESOLVE that the County Administrative Officer be authorized on 
behalf of the Mono County Board of Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this funding 
and sign the Grant Agreement with the Board of State and Community Corrections, including 
any amendments thereof. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be used to 
supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County of Mono agrees to abide by the terms and 
conditions of the Grant Agreement as set forth by the Board of State and Community 
Corrections.   

 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED BY THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS this _________ day of ____________, 2021, by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

            
      Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
      Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
            
Clerk of the Board    Mono County Counsel’s Office 



















































































































































































































 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Public Works - Roads
TIME REQUIRED PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT 2021 Maintained Mileage

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Section 2121 of the California Streets and Highways Code provides that in May of each year each County shall submit to the
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) any additions or exclusions from its mileage of maintained County roads.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed resolution R21-___, Specifying additions and/or exclusions to the maintained mileage within the County
road system and establishing maintained mileage for fiscal year 2021-2022. Provide any desired direction to staff. This
action continues unchanged the County’s total maintained miles of 679.26 miles

FISCAL IMPACT:
The proposed action will result in no change to the County Maintained Road Mileage from the previous report. As such,
associated Road Funding is not expected to have any impact on the budget or operations in the future.  

CONTACT NAME: Kevin Julian

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325449 / kjulian@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 Attachment A to Resolution

 2021 Maintained Mileage Map

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25216&ItemID=13204

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25072&ItemID=13204

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25101&ItemID=13204

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25102&ItemID=13204


 Time Who Approval
 4/2/2021 10:21 AM County Counsel Yes

 4/6/2021 10:12 AM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:11 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

MONO COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
POST OFFICE BOX 457 • 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET • BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517 

760.932.5440 • Fax 760.932.5441 • monopw@mono.ca.gov • www.monocounty.ca.gov 

 
 

  

 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

Date: April 13, 2021 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

From: Kevin Julian, Road Operations Superintendent 

Subject: County Maintained Mileage for FY21-22 
 
Recommended Action: 

Adopt Resolution No. R21-___ “A Resolution of the Mono County Board of Supervisors 
Specifying Additions and/or Exclusions to the Maintained Mileage Within the County Road 
System and Establishing Maintained Mileage for Fiscal Year 2021 – 2022.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

The proposed action will result in no change to the County Maintained Road Mileage from the 
previous report. As such, associated Road Funding is not expected to have any impact on 
the budget or operations in the future. 
 
Discussion: 

Section 2121 of the California Streets and Highways Code provides that in May of each year 
each County shall submit to the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) any additions or 
exclusions from its mileage of maintained County roads. 
 
The mileage reported to Caltrans in May of 2020 was 679.26 miles. This year, the County will 
report the same maintained mileage of 679.26 miles.  
 
A copy of the draft resolution is enclosed as Exhibit 1 to this staff report for Board 
consideration. The detailed list of County-maintained roads, including their designations and 
mileage, is included as Attachment A to the resolution. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact me at 760.932.5449 or at 
kjulian@mono.ca.gov. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Kevin Julian 
Road Operations Superintendent  
 
enclosure: Exhibit 1 – Draft Resolution 



Board of Supervisors 4.13.21 

County Maintained Road Mileage Page 2 of 2 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

 Attachment A – FY 21-22 Maintained Mileage 



  

Page 1 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R21- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

SPECIFYING ADDITIONS AND/OR EXCLUSIONS TO THE 

MAINTAINED MILEAGE WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD SYSTEM AND 

ESTABLISHING MAINTAINED MILEAGE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 941 of the California Streets and Highways Code, the County of 

Mono has in place a system of roads that it maintains for public convenience; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2121 of the California Streets and Highways Code provides that in May of 

each year, each County shall submit to the State Department of Transportation any additions or 

exclusions from its mileage of maintained County roads, specifying the termini and mileage of each 

route added or excluded; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Transportation certified to the State Controller on December 

31, 2020, that the total road mileage maintained by the County of Mono was 679.26 miles; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County finds that since that date, there have been no changes in maintained 

mileage, as indicated on “Attachment A,” attached hereto. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the total mileage of maintained County roads to 

be submitted to the State Department of Transportation in 2021 is 679.26, as indicated on the 

tabulation for 2021, which is on file with the Mono County Department of Public Works. 



  

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of April, 2021, by the following vote of the Board of 

Supervisors, County of Mono: 

AYES :  

NOES :  

ABSENT :  

ABSTAIN :  

 
   

 Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
 Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: Approved as to Form: 

  
    

Clerk of the Board County Counsel 
 



Road No Road Name 2021 Miles 2020 Miles difference

2001 Lower Rock Creek Road 9.31 9.31 0.00

2003 Rock Creek Road 8.07 8.07 0.00

2005 Crowley Lake Drive 8.65 8.65 0.00

2006 Owens Gorge Road 9.51 9.51 0.00

2008 Sunny Slopes Road 0.17 0.17 0.00

2009 Spillway Road 0.23 0.23 0.00

2010 Rainbow Tarns Road 0.50 0.50 0.00

2011 South Landing Road 0.99 0.99 0.00

2012 Hilton Creek Trail 0.40 0.40 0.00

2013 Gregory Lane 0.25 0.25 0.00

2014 McGee Creek Road 3.28 3.28 0.00

2015 Crowley Lake Place 0.62 0.62 0.00

2016 Mt. Morrison Road 0.68 0.68 0.00

2017 Benton Crossing Road 30.26 30.26 0.00

2018 Convict Lake Road 2.73 2.73 0.00

2019 Convict Campground Road 0.80 0.80 0.00

2020 Layton Springs Road 0.51 0.51 0.00

2021 Casa Diablo Mine Cutoff 6.00 6.00 0.00

2022 Round Mountain Road 4.56 4.56 0.00

2023 Casa Diablo Mine Road 16.80 16.80 0.00

2024 Sheep Camp Road 3.40 3.40 0.00

2025 Chidago Canyon Road 14.33 14.33 0.00

2026 Deer Springs Road 2.08 2.08 0.00

2027 Barker Mine Road 4.23 4.23 0.00

2028 Cattle Drive Road 1.72 1.72 0.00

2029 Yellow Jacket Road 8.24 8.24 0.00

2030 Pumice Mill Road 0.72 0.72 0.00

2032 Joe Main Road 0.76 0.76 0.00

2033 Rabbit Ranch Road 1.23 1.23 0.00

2034 Morris Mine Road 3.29 3.29 0.00

2035 Chidago Loop Road 5.56 5.56 0.00

2036 Lone Star Road 2.12 2.12 0.00

2037 Lone Star Mine Road 1.02 1.02 0.00

2038 Pumice Mill Road 0.60 0.60 0.00

2039 Chalfant Loop Road 2.02 2.02 0.00

2040 White Mountain Estates Road 0.88 0.88 0.00

2041 Sequoia Street 0.20 0.20 0.00

2042 Ponderosa Street 0.20 0.20 0.00

2043 Tenaya Drive 0.13 0.13 0.00

2044 Petroglyph Road 0.38 0.38 0.00

2045 White Mountain Ranch Road 0.59 0.59 0.00

2046 Fish Slough Road 17.25 17.25 0.00

2047 Hieroglyph Road 0.09 0.09 0.00

2048 Dawson Ranch Road 0.76 0.76 0.00

2049 Indian Creek Road 0.25 0.25 0.00

2050 Hammil Road 0.79 0.79 0.00



2051 Cinnamon Ranch Road 0.24 0.24 0.00

2052 Crestview Drive 0.50 0.50 0.00

2053 Black Rock Mine Road 8.11 8.11 0.00

2054 Van Loon Cutoff 2.68 2.68 0.00

2055 Walker Place 0.08 0.08 0.00

2056 South Road 0.31 0.31 0.00

2057 Goolsby Ranch Road 0.44 0.44 0.00

2058 Christie Lane 0.36 0.36 0.00

2059 Reichart Ranch Road 0.68 0.68 0.00

2060 Clark Ranch Road 0.41 0.41 0.00

2061 Foothill Road 4.20 4.20 0.00

2062 G-Bar-T Ranch Road 0.90 0.90 0.00

2063 Sipes Ranch Road 1.03 1.03 0.00

2064 Pedro Ranch Road 0.84 0.84 0.00

2065 Bramlette Ranch Road 1.72 1.72 0.00

2066 Truman Meadows Road 1.73 1.73 0.00

2067 Black Lake Road 0.10 0.10 0.00

2068 Canyon Road 2.49 2.49 0.00

2069 Ranch Road 1.50 1.50 0.00

2070 Aspen Springs Ranch Road 0.74 0.74 0.00

2071 Hot Creek Ranch Road 1.06 1.06 0.00

2072 Owens River Road 16.14 16.14 0.00

2073 School Road 0.01 0.01 0.00

2074 Whitmore Tubs Road 2.70 2.70 0.00

2076 Pit Road 0.96 0.96 0.00

2077 Summers Road 0.22 0.22 0.00

2078 Substation Road 1.52 1.52 0.00

2080 Casa Diablo Cutoff 0.05 0.05 0.00

2081 Antelope Springs Road 9.65 9.65 0.00

2082 Huntley Mine Road 0.11 0.11 0.00

2083 Dry Creek Cutoff 2.46 2.46 0.00

2084 Deadman Creek Road 6.16 6.16 0.00

2085 Glass Creek Road 0.45 0.45 0.00

2086 Owens River Ranch Road 0.15 0.15 0.00

2088 Airport Road 1.30 1.30 0.00

2089 Sherwin Creek Road 3.93 3.93 0.00

2090 Sawmill Road 1.11 1.11 0.00

2091 Hot Creek Hatchery Road 4.94 4.94 0.00

2101 Westridge Road 0.45 0.45 0.00

2102 Paradise Point 0.04 0.04 0.00

2103 Scott Road 0.07 0.07 0.00

2104 Summit Road 0.19 0.19 0.00

2105 Dennis Way 0.03 0.03 0.00

2106 Glen Court 0.04 0.04 0.00

2107 Alison Lane 0.10 0.10 0.00

2108 Sherwin Trail 0.12 0.12 0.00

2109 Deer Peak Trail 0.16 0.16 0.00



2110 Eagle Vista 0.09 0.09 0.00

2111 Valley View Road 0.33 0.33 0.00

2112 Rimrock Drive 0.97 0.97 0.00

2115 Pinon Drive 0.32 0.32 0.00

2116 Quail Circle 0.10 0.10 0.00

2120 Sierra Vista Circle 0.04 0.04 0.00

2201 Swall Meadows Road 1.47 1.47 0.00

2202 Wilson Road 0.14 0.14 0.00

2204 Willow Road 0.14 0.14 0.00

2205 Orchard Road 0.20 0.20 0.00

2206 Meadow Road 0.10 0.10 0.00

2207 Foothill Road 0.22 0.22 0.00

2208 North Valley View Drive 0.22 0.22 0.00

2209 Mountain View Drive 0.84 0.84 0.00

2210 Pine Drive 0.23 0.23 0.00

2211 Sky Meadows Road 1.05 1.05 0.00

2301 Meadow View Drive 0.24 0.24 0.00

2302 Lake Manor Place 0.18 0.18 0.00

2303 Aspen Terrace 0.27 0.27 0.00

2304 Delta Drive 0.27 0.27 0.00

2305 Placer Road 0.11 0.11 0.00

2306 Hilton Creek Drive 0.23 0.23 0.00

2307 Hilton Creek Place 0.10 0.10 0.00

2308 Crowley Lake Circle 0.04 0.04 0.00

2309 Elderberry Lane 0.11 0.11 0.00

2310 Pearson Road 0.29 0.29 0.00

2311 Wild Rose Drive 0.05 0.05 0.00

2312 Sierra Springs Drive 0.64 0.64 0.00

2313 Larkspur Lane 0.15 0.15 0.00

2314 Shanna Circle 0.03 0.03 0.00

2401 Hunter Avenue 0.26 0.26 0.00

2402 Valley Road 0.71 0.71 0.00

2403 Virginia Avenue 0.20 0.20 0.00

2404 Chase Avenue 0.20 0.20 0.00

2405 Mountain View Avenue 0.25 0.25 0.00

2406 Brown's Subdivision Road 0.10 0.10 0.00

2407 Locust Street 0.50 0.50 0.00

2408 Chidago Way 0.21 0.21 0.00

2409 Piute Lane 0.08 0.08 0.00

2410 Cold Water Road 0.10 0.10 0.00

2411 White Mountain Drive 0.17 0.17 0.00

2412 Sacramento Street 0.25 0.25 0.00

2413 Chalfant Road 0.93 0.93 0.00

2414 Coyote Road 0.21 0.21 0.00

2415 Buena Vista Drive 0.23 0.23 0.00

2416 Lisa Lane 0.28 0.28 0.00

2417 Ronda Lane 0.18 0.18 0.00



2418 Mary Lane 0.18 0.18 0.00

2801 Wheeler View Drive 0.02 0.02 0.00

2802 Montana Road 0.05 0.05 0.00

3001 Big Springs Road 5.31 5.31 0.00

3002 Obsidian Dome Road 1.54 1.54 0.00

3003 Bald Mountain Road 11.16 11.16 0.00

3004 Bald Mountain Springs Road 2.29 2.29 0.00

3005 Pumice Mine Road 4.71 4.71 0.00

3006 West Portal Road 3.44 3.44 0.00

3008 Pine Cliff Road 0.98 0.98 0.00

3009 Aspen Road 0.22 0.22 0.00

3010 Dream Mountain Drive 0.20 0.20 0.00

3012 Parker Lake Road 3.10 3.10 0.00

3015 Oil Plant Road 1.04 1.04 0.00

3016 Test Station Road 5.56 5.56 0.00

3017 Rush CreekRoad 3.08 3.08 0.00

3018 Dross Road 0.39 0.39 0.00

3019 Sand Flat Cutoff 4.54 4.54 0.00

3020 Pilot Springs Road 4.08 4.08 0.00

3021 Logging Camp Road 5.53 5.53 0.00

3022 Wet Meadow Road 20.03 20.03 0.00

3023 Johnny Meadows Road 1.98 1.98 0.00

3024 Crooked Meadows Road 0.43 0.43 0.00

3025 Sage Hen Meadows Road 9.06 9.06 0.00

3026 Baxters Road 0.56 0.56 0.00

3027 Dobie Meadows Road 30.86 30.86 0.00

3028 Adobe Ranch Road 4.41 4.41 0.00

3029 McGee Canyon Road 8.48 8.48 0.00

3030 River Springs Road 3.72 3.72 0.00

3031 Black Canyon Road 1.42 1.42 0.00

3032 Sawmill Meadows Road 11.52 11.52 0.00

3033 Sawmill Crossover Road 4.77 4.77 0.00

3034 Log Cabin Mine Road 4.84 4.84 0.00

3035 Poole Power Plant Road 3.34 3.34 0.00

3036 Ellery Lake Campground Road 0.24 0.24 0.00

3037 Saddlebag Lake Road 2.49 2.49 0.00

3038 Junction Campground Road 0.23 0.23 0.00

3039 Picnic Grounds Road 4.18 4.18 0.00

3040 Picnic Shortcut Road 0.10 0.10 0.00

3041 McPherson Subdivision Road 0.32 0.32 0.00

3042 Cemetery Road 5.89 5.89 0.00

3043 Thompson Road 1.02 1.02 0.00

3044 Lundy Lake Road 6.58 6.58 0.00

3045 Lundy Cutoff 0.57 0.57 0.00

3046 Lundy Dam Road 0.47 0.47 0.00

3048 Mill Creek Powerhouse Road 0.72 0.72 0.00

3049 Conway Ranch Road 3.38 3.38 0.00



3050 Rattlesnake Gulch Road 0.61 0.61 0.00

3051 Cooney Road 2.42 2.42 0.00

3052 Goat Ranch Cutoff 7.05 7.05 0.00

3053 Cottonwood Canyon Road 10.85 10.85 0.00

3054 Coyote Springs Road 6.53 6.53 0.00

3101 Big Rock Road 0.12 0.12 0.00

3102 Lakeview Drive 0.28 0.28 0.00

3103 Knoll Avenue 0.18 0.18 0.00

3104 North Crawford Avenue 0.07 0.07 0.00

3104 South Crawford Avenue 0.22 0.22 0.00

3105 Foster Avenue 0.12 0.12 0.00

3106 Brenner Street 0.07 0.07 0.00

3107 Forest Road 0.41 0.41 0.00

3108 Bruce Street 0.22 0.22 0.00

3109 Leonard Avenue 0.38 0.38 0.00

3110 Howard Avenue 0.07 0.07 0.00

3111 East Granite Avenue 0.04 0.04 0.00

3111 West Granite Avenue 0.17 0.17 0.00

3112 Gull Lake Road 0.14 0.14 0.00

3113 Lyle Terrace Road 0.37 0.37 0.00

3114 Gull Lake Campground Road 0.31 0.31 0.00

3116 Alderman Street 0.20 0.20 0.00

3120 Northshore Drive 3.53 3.53 0.00

3201 Pumice Road 0.12 0.12 0.00

3202 Airport Road 0.55 0.55 0.00

3203 Utility Road 0.86 0.86 0.00

3204 Lee Vining Avenue 0.44 0.44 0.00

3205 Fourth Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

3206 C Street 0.05 0.05 0.00

3207 D Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

3208 Mono Lake Avenue 0.16 0.16 0.00

3209 Third Street 0.11 0.11 0.00

3210 Yosemite Drive 0.07 0.07 0.00

3211 Paoha Drive 0.12 0.12 0.00

3212 Second Street 0.07 0.07 0.00

3214 East First Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

3214 West First Street 0.03 0.03 0.00

3215 Mattly Avenue 0.53 0.53 0.00

3301 East Mono Lake Drive 1.22 1.22 0.00

3302 Blue Lake Way 0.05 0.05 0.00

3303 Twin Lakes Drive 0.17 0.17 0.00

3304 Green Lake Court 0.04 0.04 0.00

3305 Lake Helen Court 0.05 0.05 0.00

3306 Peeler Lake Drive 0.38 0.38 0.00

3307 Silver Lake Way 0.09 0.09 0.00

3401 Conway Road 0.33 0.33 0.00

3402 Wilson Creek Road 0.38 0.38 0.00



3403 Glacier Canyon Way 0.26 0.26 0.00

3404 Lundy Circle 0.06 0.06 0.00

3405 Bodie Circle 0.06 0.06 0.00

4001 Virginia Lakes Road 6.20 6.20 0.00

4002 Dunderberg Meadows Road 8.47 8.47 0.00

4003 Little Virginia Lakes Road 0.17 0.17 0.00

4004 Green Creek Road 8.80 8.80 0.00

4005 Upper Summers Meadows Road 6.71 6.71 0.00

4007 Bodie Road 10.42 10.42 0.00

4008 Bodie Masonic Road 19.25 19.25 0.00

4010 Cow Camp Road 5.12 5.12 0.00

4011 Boundary Road 1.79 1.79 0.00

4012 Twin Lakes Road 13.39 13.39 0.00

4013 Hunewill Ranch Road 1.06 1.06 0.00

4014 Hackamore Place 0.50 0.50 0.00

4015 Spur Court 0.07 0.07 0.00

4016 Kayak Road 0.09 0.09 0.00

4017 South Twin Road 2.22 2.22 0.00

4018 Garbage Pit Road 0.04 0.04 0.00

4019 Ramp Road 0.30 0.30 0.00

4020 Masonic Road 8.04 8.04 0.00

4021 Buckeye Road 7.69 7.69 0.00

4022 Buckeye Creek Road 0.64 0.64 0.00

4101 Jack Sawyer Road 0.19 0.19 0.00

4102 Bridge Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

4103 Hays Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

4104 Kingsley Street 0.37 0.37 0.00

4105 Laurel Avenue 0.11 0.11 0.00

4106 North Sinclair Street 0.15 0.15 0.00

4106 South Sinclair Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

4107 North School Street 0.10 0.10 0.00

4107 South School Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

4108 Kirkwood Street 0.11 0.11 0.00

4109 Emigrant Street 0.50 0.50 0.00

4110 Day Lane 0.06 0.06 0.00

4111 Stock Drive 0.51 0.51 0.00

4112 Court Street 0.06 0.06 0.00

4113 Bryant Street 0.21 0.21 0.00

4114 Aurora Canyon Road 7.84 7.84 0.00

4115 Cemetery Road 0.05 0.05 0.00

4116 Cameron Drive 0.11 0.11 0.00

4117 Sierra View Drive 0.30 0.30 0.00

4118 North Buckeye Drive 0.25 0.25 0.00

5001 Burcham Flat Road 14.62 14.62 0.00

5002 Pine Nut Road 0.69 0.69 0.00

5003 Hackney Drive 0.14 0.14 0.00

5004 Shop Road 0.07 0.07 0.00



5005 Mill Canyon Road 8.12 8.12 0.00

5006 Golden Gate Road 5.94 5.94 0.00

5007 Eastside Lane 8.04 8.04 0.00

5008 Camp Antelope Road 0.80 0.80 0.00

5009 Patricia Lane 0.43 0.43 0.00

5010 Lone Company Road 0.56 0.56 0.00

5011 Eastside Road 1.14 1.14 0.00

5012 Offal Road 0.35 0.35 0.00

5013 Larson Lane 2.07 2.07 0.00

5014 Cunningham Lane 2.83 2.83 0.00

5015 Topaz Lane 3.51 3.51 0.00

5016 Charlebois Road 0.19 0.19 0.00

5017 Lobdell Lake Road 6.78 6.78 0.00

5018 Little Walker Road 6.65 6.65 0.00

5019 Mule Deer Road 0.08 0.08 0.00

679.26 679.26



Dustin Lane

Dorsey Lane

RiverRoadEa
st 

Mi
ll C

ree
k L

an
e

Cl
ov

er
 L

an
eThomas Lane

HFU

Circle

Ha
ck

ne
y D

riv
e

Ea
st

sid
e L

an
e

Pine Nut Road

Ea
st

sid
e R

oa
d

Mi
ll C

ree
k Dr

ive

Highway 395

W
es

tM
ill

Cr
ee

kL
an

e

Lo
ne

 C
om

pa
ny

 R
oa

d

Camp Antelope Road

Meadow Drive

Mule Deer Road

Hare Court

Burcham Flat Road

Hixon Drive

W
es

te
rn

 D
riv

e

Shetler Drive

Dr
y C

an
yo

n 
Dr

ive

Pearlm
an

Place

Cranney Lane

Pa
tri

cia
 L

an
e

Jocelyn Lane

North River Lane

Ca
mp

Antelope

WALKER

Highway 6

Inca Place

Montgomery Way

Hovde Road

Walker Place

Richardson Road

South Road

Goolsby Ranch Road

Christie Lane

Re
ich

ar
t R

an
ch

 R
oa

d

Clark Ranch Road

Colby Drive

Highway 120

BENTON

Highway 395

Emigrant Street

Main Street

Sage Brush Drive

Sierra View Drive

Milk Ranch Road

Tra
ver

tine Road

Au
ro

ra
Ca

ny
on

Road

Cameron Dr
ive

Stock Drive

Hays Street

Cemetery Road

South School Street

North
Sinclair Street

North School Street

South Sinclair Street

Ki
rk

wo
od

 S
tre

et

Brid
ge

Stree
t

Jack Sawyer Road

Garbage Pit Road

Tw
in

 L
ak

es
 R

oa
d

Kingsley Street

Hi
gh

wa
y 1

82

Da
y L

an
e

Court Street

South Buckeye Drive

Bryant Street

Pi
ne

 N
ut

 C
irc

le

Ki Ba W
ay

South Tam
arackDrive

Laurel Avenue

Ridge Road

Highway 395

Taboo'oo Way

North Buckeye Drive

North Tam
arack Drive

BRIDGEPORT

Highway 6

Crestview Drive

Dawson Ranch Road

Zack Ranch Road

Black Rock Mine Road Cinnamon Ranch Road

Marble CreekRanch Road

Ind
ian

 C
ree

k R
oa

d

Sl
im

 P
rin

ce
ss

 W
ay

Hammil Valley Road

Ham
m

il Road

HAMMIL
VALLEY

Va
lle

y R
oa

d
White Mountain Estates Road

Hunter Avenue

Chalfant Road

Ch
alf

an
t L

oo
p 

Ro
ad

Sacramento Street

Tenaya Drive

Li
sa

 L
an

e

Mountain View Avenue

Pi
ut

e L
an

e

W
hi

te
 M

ou
nt

ain
 D

riv
e

Tu
ol

um
ne

 R
oa

d

Highway 6

Chidago Way

Cold Water Road

Mary Lane

Ronda Lane

WatkinsPlace

Se
qu

oia
 St

ree
t

Po
nd

er
os

a S
tre

et

Re
dw

oo
d D

riv
e

Qu
ig

ley
 La

ne

Ch
as

e A
ve

nu
e

Vi
rg

in
ia 

Av
en

ue

Coyote Road

Osage Circle

Roadrunner Lane

Buena Vista Drive

Locust Street

CHALFANT

Highway 395

Sc
ho

olh
ou

se
Ro

ad

East Mono Lake Drive

Goat R
anch Cutoff

Tw
inLakes Drive

Si
lve

r L
ak

e W
ay

Gr
ee

n L
ak

e C
ou

rt

Mill Cree
k Pow

erh
ou

se
Roa

d

Lundy Lake Road

La
ke

 H
ele

n C
ou

rt

Bl
ue

 La
ke

 W
ay

Highway 167

Mo
no

La
ke

Cou
rt

LundyCutoff

PeelerLake Drive

MONO CITY

Second Street

Third Street

Le
eV

in
in

g
Av

en
ue

Be
av

er
sL

an
e

Fourth Street

West First Street East First Street

Mattly Avenue

Visitor Center Road

Mo
no

La
ke

Av
en

ue

Main Street

C 
St

re
etPa

oh
a D

riv
e

D Street

Yosemite Drive

Mono
Vista W

ay

Highway 395

LEE VINING

Hi
lls

ide
Ro

ad

Lyle Ter
rac

e

Ro
ad

Chip
mun

k La
ne

Gu
ll M

ea
do

ws
Ro

ad

Gull Lake Road

June LakeCampground Road

Big Rock Road

La
ke

vie
w

Dr
ive

South Craw
ford

Av
en

ue

Highway 158

Knoll Avenue

Leonard Avenue

Hi
gh

lan
dD

rive

Br
uc

e S
tre

et

Al
de

rm
an

Str
ee

t

HighlandPlace

Forest Road

Forest Knoll Road

West Granite Avenue

Alpenglow Court

Howard Avenue

Mountain Vista Drive

Adler Strasse

Ra
ym

on
d Ave

nu
e

Gull Lake

Ca
mp

gr
ou

nd
Ro

ad

Carson View Drive

Lauterbrunnen Strasse

Reversed Creek La
ne

ReversedPeak Road

Skyline Drive

Nort
hs

ho
re

Dr
ive

JuneLake

Campground Road

JUNE
LAKE

Crowley Lake Drive

So
ut

hL
an

di
ng

Ro
ad

De
lta

 D
riv

e

Re
d M

ou
nta

in
Dr

ive

La
ker

idg
eTra

il

Shanna Circle

Red
Bluff Trail

JuniperDrive Crowley

La
ke

Ci
rc

le

Aspen Terrace

Wild Rose Drive

PearsonRoadLa
rks

pu
r L

an
e

Lager LaneTurkey Lane

Watt
ers

on
Dr

ive

Be
rry

Dr
ive

Haakana Lane

Aspen Place

Hilto
n Creek Pl

ac
e

Meadow Vie
w

Dr
ive

Hilton Cree
k

Dr
ive

Placer Road

Appleton Road

Ri
dg

e L
an

e

Si
er

ra
 S

pr
in

gs
 D

riv
e

La
ke

Ma
no

rP
lac

e

Pinon Driv
e

La
rks

pu
rDrive

Winddrift Circle
Willow Brook RoadHilton

Creek Trail

Red BluffTrail

SierraSprings

DriveCROWLEY
LAKE

SkyMeadowsRoad

Si
er

ra
W

av
e

Ridgeview

Swall MeadowsRoad

Rimrock Drive

Mountain View Drive

Wilson Road

Or
ch

ar
d R

oa
d

Meadow RoadFoothill

Ro
ad

PinonDrive

W
illow

Road

Cougar Run

Pine

Drive

Lower
Rock Creek Road

Va
lle

y V
iew

 R
oa

d

Highway 395

Red Tail Ro
ad

SWALL
MEADOWS

Lo
we

rR
oc

k C
ree

k R
oa

d

Westridge RoadDennis W
ay

Paradise Point

De
er

Pe
ak

Tr
ail

Glen Court

Scott Road

Ea
gl

e V
ist

a

Alison LaneSh
er

wi
nT

rai
l

Lower CanyonRoad

Summit Road

Upper Canyon Road

Ainslee
Spring Road

PARADISE

Goat Ranch Cuto
ff

Baxters Road

Poole PowerPlantRoad

Ea
st

sid
e R

oa
d

Hunter Avenue

De
lta

 D
riv

e

TestStationRoad

Ea
st

sid
eL

an
e

Aurora Canyon Road

Dawson Ranch Road

Cott
on

woo
d

Ca
ny

on
Ro

ad

Ro
ck

Cr
ee

kR
oa

d

Saddlebag Lake Road

GlassCreek Road

Kingsley Street
Stock Drive

Chalfant Road

Hackam
ore

Place

Yellow
JacketRoad

TwinLakes Road

Sacramento Street

Bodie Masonic
Road

White Mountain Estates Road

Garbage Pit Road

Virginia Lake
sRoa

d

Ow
en

sGorge

Ro
ad

Rimrock Drive

SubstationRoad

Th
om

ps
on

Road

Log Cabin Mine Road

Shop Road

Mi
llC

an
yo

nR
oa

d

Convic
t La

ke
Ro

ad

Walker Place

Crowley Lake Place

Aspen Road

Christie Lane

Blac
k L

ak
e R

oa
d

Huntley Mine Road

Casa Diablo Mine Cutoff

Bu
rc

ha
m

Fl
at

Ro
ad

Antelope Springs Road

Bu
ck

ey
eR

oa
d

Ronda Lane

Wilson Creek

Ro
ad

South Tw
in

Ro
ad

Charlebois Road

Osage Circle

Summers Road

Sawmill Road

Rabbit Ranch Road

Canyon Road

Cemetery

Ro
ad

Gr
eg

or
y L

an
e

Lundy Lake Road

Lone Star Mine Road

Oil Plant Road

Ramp Road

South Road

BlackRock Mine Road

Offal Road

Hig
hw

ay

120

Petroglyph Road

Dross Road

Pumice Mine Roa
d

Pa
tri

cia
 La

ne

CrookedMeadows Road

Bo
di

eR
oa

d

ChidagoCanyon Road

Pine Cliff Road

Larson Lane

Bi
gS

pr
ing

s R
oa

d

Rainbow
Tarns Road

La
yto

nSprings Road

Benton Crossing Road

Van Loon

Cu
to

ff

Pa
rke

r L
ak

e R
oa

d

Conway RanchRoad

Airport Road

Fish
Slough

Road

Ob
sid

ian

Dome Roa
d Pumice Mill Road

Buckeye Creek Road

No
rth

sh
or

eD
riv

e

Bram
lette Ranch

Road

Owens River Road

Sa
wmill M

ea
do

ws Roa
d

Joe MainRoad

Ham
m

il Road
Ba

ld
Mo

un
tai

nR
oa

d

Lone
Star Road

Pedro Ranch Road

Ut
ilit

y R
oa

d

Ado
be

Ra
nc

h Ro
ad

Green Creek Road
Fo

ot
hil

lR
oad

Pit Road

Wet Meadow Road

Sipes Ranch Road

Hunew
ill R

anch Road

Hot Creek Ranch Road

Casa Diablo Mine Road

Cow
Cam

p Road

PilotSpringsRoad

Go
lde

nG
ate

Road

Airport Road

SageHen
Meadows Road

Bl
ac

k C
an

yo
n R

oa
d

Ra
nc

h R
oa

d

Cattle DriveRoad

Truman Meadows Road

Boundary Road

Chidago

Loop Road

Johnny Meadows Road

Deer SpringsRoad

Topaz Lane

DeadmanCreek Road
Dry CreekCutoff

W
hitmoreTubs

Road

Cunningham Lane

Rush Cr
ee

kR
oa

d

Li
ttl

eW
alk

er
Ro

ad

Mo
rri

s
Mi

ne
Ro

ad

Sheep Camp Road

West
Porta

l Roa
d

Rive
r S

prin
gs R

oad

McG
ee

Ca
ny

on
Ro

ad

BarkerMineRoad

Sand
Flat Cutoff

Round Mountain Road

Sa
wm

ill
Cr

os
so

ve
r R

oa
d

Lo
gg

ing

Camp Road

Coyote Springs Road

UpperSummers Meadows Ro
ad

Lobdell Lake Road

Maso
nicRoad

Du
nd

er
be

rg
Me

ad
ow

s R
oa

d Dobie Meadows Road

TOPAZ

COLEVILLE

WALKER

BRIDGEPORT

MONO CITY

VIRGINIA
LAKES

LEE VINING

JUNE
LAKE

MAMMOTH LAKES

CROWLEY
LAKE

BENTON

HAMMIL
VALLEY

CHALFANT

TWIN
LAKES

PARADISE

SWALL MEADOWS

MONO COUNTY CALIFORNIA
2021 County Maintained Roadways

2021 Maintained Miles
Paved Roads

Dirt Roads

0 5 102.5
Miles

1:7,000

1:10,000

1:15,000

1:24,000

1:12,000

1:24,000

1:24,000

1:24,000

1:15,000

1:10,000

1:12,000



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

TIME REQUIRED 1 hour PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Robert C. Lawton, CAO, Bryan
Wheeler, Public Health DirectorSUBJECT COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Update on Countywide response and planning related to the COVID-19 pandemic, including reports from the Emergency
Operations Center (EOC), Unified Command (UC), and the various branches of the EOC, including Community Support and

Economic Recovery, Joint Information Center (JIC), and Public Health. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
None, informational only.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Robert C. Lawton

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5415 / rlawton@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/7/2021 8:08 PM County Counsel Yes

 4/7/2021 12:18 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:11 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Finance
TIME REQUIRED 45 minutes (20 minutes presentation;

25 minutes discussion)
PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Janet Dutcher, Finance Director,
Megan Mahaffey, Accountant II

SUBJECT Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CAO and Finance will update the Board about the FY 2021-22 budget development process.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive information and discuss.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Janet Dutcher

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5494 (Janet) or 760-924-1836 (Megan) / jdutcher@mono.ca.gov or
mmahaffey@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff report

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/7/2021 8:09 PM County Counsel Yes

 4/7/2021 2:51 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:12 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25213&ItemID=13251


 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
   

Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 
Treasurer -  Tax Collector 

 
 
TO:  Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: Janet Dutcher – Mono County, Director of Finance 
  Megan Mahaffey – Mono County, Accountant II 
  Bob Lawton – Mono County, CAO 
  John Craig – Mono County, Assistant CAO  
 
DATE:    April 13, 2021 
 
RE:  FY 2021-2022 Budget Update #2 
 
 
On February 9, staff discussed next year's budget calendar with your Board.  The schedule 
includes four opportunities for updating you and the public about our budget process.  This is the 
second budget update. 

 
o March 2: discuss rate development results 
o April 13: update about economics, revenue estimates, base budget development, 

and structural status of GF deficit  
o May 11: budget workshop format, schedule and content, present framework of 

estimated recommended budget 
o June 8: present recommended budget 

 
Since the last update, the budget team has completed initial revenue forecasts, estimated fixed 
costs, set the base budget, and delivered budget training to department leaders and fiscal staff. 
The OpenGov budget project and department level budget unit proposals have been established 
and departments will have submitted their budget proposals by April 9. One-on-one meetings 
with departments begin Monday, April 12, and will continue until Thursday, April 29. 
 
  



2 
 

GF Forecast of Discretionary Revenues 
 
Finance forecast discretionary GF revenues and the results is summarized below: 
 

 
 
The CPI increment allowed by the Board of Equalization for increasing property tax values is 
1.01036%.  Over the past several years, this increment has been at the maximum 2%.  A small 
increase resulting from reassessment transfers is included until the Assessor is closer to closing 
out the property tax rolls for the year.  As vaccination efforts take effect, we anticipate TOT 
revenues to recover as the above projection indicates.  Also showing signs of recovery is sales 
taxes.  Interest income continues below previous years’ performance because the Federal 
authorities are keeping rates low to facilitate the recessionary recovery and control potential 
runaway inflation. 
 
Fixed Cost Trends 
 
The following discusses specific impacts to the FY 2021-22 County base budget, including: 

• Workers’ Compensation and Liability Insurance 
• Motor Pool 
• Tech Refresh 
• Civic Center Rent and Utilities 
• Pension costs 
• Health care costs 
• Retiree Post-employment Health costs 

 
Workers’ compensation costs are flat, increasing $9,457, or 0.67%.  General liability and 
property insurance costs fell slightly by $10,568, or 1.3%. 
 

Revenue Category Object  2019 Actual  2020 Actual  2021 YTD  2021 Amended Budget  2022 Base Budget 
 Increase

(Decrease) 

% Change
(FY 2021 budget 

vs FY 2022 
budget)

Taxes (10020) Prop Tax -Current Secured 16,567,131          17,816,893          10,700,641          17,692,000                       17,957,380                265,380               1.50%
Taxes (10100) Transient Occupancy Tax 2,642,657            2,342,365            1,517,814            1,616,832                         2,524,560                  907,728               56.14%
Taxes (10160) Vlf In Lieu 1,697,102            1,796,382            -                          1,796,382                         1,796,382                  -                          0.00%
Taxes (10030) Prop Tax -Current Unsecured 1,239,919            1,366,601            1,381,394            1,260,000                         1,300,000                  40,000                 3.17%
Taxes (10062) Prop Tax -Excess Eraf -                          1,103,211            1,273,212            650,000                            500,000                     (150,000)             -23.08%
Taxes (10090) Sales & Use Tax 690,854               650,259               494,410               547,242                            600,000                     52,758                 9.64%
Taxes (10061) Prop Tax -Unitary 436,576               533,195               311,813               468,000                            550,000                     82,000                 17.52%
Taxes (10110) Property Transfer Tax 262,407               252,065               439,689               240,000                            240,000                     -                          0.00%
Taxes (10080) Prop Tax -Penalties/Interest 271,843               264,394               57,384                 200,000                            200,000                     -                          0.00%
Taxes (10060) Prop Tax - Supplemental 291,654               241,949               92,599                 216,000                            220,000                     4,000                   1.85%
Taxes (10040) Prop Tax -Delinq Secured Redem 252,637               171,877               141,791               206,000                            180,000                     (26,000)               -12.62%
Charges for Services (16371) Professional Service Fees 1,558,353            1,682,327            2,169,412            2,169,412                         2,250,350                  80,938                 3.73%
Intergovernmental (15690) Fed: In Lieu Taxes (Pilt) 1,318,592            1,311,099            1,329,250            1,300,000                         1,311,099                  11,099                 0.85%
Intergovernmental (15630) Fed: Tobacco Settlement 145,693               139,682               -                          145,000                            145,000                     -                          0.00%
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties (13040) Court Fines & Penalties 610,390               546,487               217,822               539,000                            598,000                     59,000                 10.95%
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties (13010) Vehicle Code Fines 140,622               138,603               33,743                 138,000                            142,000                     4,000                   2.90%
Licenses, Permits & Franchises (12200) Franchise Permits 199,833               203,183               33,847                 195,000                            195,000                     -                          0.00%
Interest & Rents (14010) Interest Income 144,127               107,826               37,410                 100,000                            75,000                       (25,000)               -25.00%

Other Revenues 113,410               109,506               82,565                 99,356                              106,356                     7,000                   7.05%
TOTALS 28,583,800          30,777,904          20,314,796          29,578,224                       30,891,127                1,312,903            4.44%



3 
 

 
Public Works staff determine the initial motor pool costs allocated to departments by projecting 
individual vehicle mileage rates applied to an estimate of each department’s annual historical 
mileage usage.  Motor pool costs were estimated at $1,013,303, a decrease of $181,870 or 
15.2%. 

 
 
Technology charges to departments include the cost associated with employee desktop (or 
laptop), office 365, network server and storage, communications equipment, internet and phone 
charges, and enterprise software.  These costs are increasing because of a plan to transition these 
costs away from the cost plan (and accounted for in the General Fund) and move them into the 
Tech Refresh internal service fund (ISF), where costs are directly charged to user departments in 
the same year in which the costs are incurred.  Technology charges for FY 2021-22 are estimated 
at $503,290, increasing by $144,913 or 40.44%.  This increase represents the internet and land 
line communication services currently accounted for in the General Fund and included in the 
County’s A87 indirect cost plan. 
 
Annual Civic Center costs to be allocated to departments who reside in the facility compared to 
the prior year, is as follows: 



4 
 

 

 
The County’s annual payment toward the CalPERS unfunded liability increased by $678,605, or 
13.61% from the prior year. 
 

 
 
Pension costs over time are increasing and such increase is illustrated in the graph below. Factors 
affecting the escalation of these costs include workforce positions, salary costs, and the 
investment market’s effect on pension assets held by CalPERS. 
 

 
 

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22
 Increase 

(Decrease) 
Interest expense on debt service 936,675$       926,475$       (10,200)$       
Depreciation 524,215         524,215         -                    
Amortized issuance costs 10,803           10,803           -                    
Amortized net premium 75,537           75,537           -                    
Utilities 70,002           95,404           25,402           
Total Allocated Costs 1,617,232$    1,632,434$    15,202$         

Pension Plan Unit FY 2018/19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 Increase
Miscellaneous 2,355,936      2,699,077      2,767,443      3,177,070      409,627         
Peace Officers (Probation) - Classic 356,131         43,778           487,825         562,948         75,123           
Peace Officers (Probation) - PEPRA 1,003             2,164             2,347             2,617             270                
EMS - 1st tier 218,648         271,355         310,717         365,265         54,548           
EMS - 2nd tier 4,593             6,864             9,252             12,239           2,987             
EMS - PEPRA 481                984                1,830             3,035             1,205             
Sheriff & PSO - 1st tier 505,431         627,786         722,783         854,620         131,837         
Sheriff & PSO - 2nd tier 1,469             18,441           3,192             5,362             2,170             
Sheriff & PSO - PEPRA 266                601                1,214             2,052             838                
TOTAL UNFUNDED LIABILITY PAYMENT 3,443,958      3,671,050      4,306,603      4,985,208      678,605         
Percentage increase 13.61%



5 
 

Arrangement with Mono County bargaining units and at-will employees include incentivizing 
lower cost health care plans.  These arrangements result in control in the escalation of health 
care costs.  There are many factors affecting County health care costs in the aggregate that 
include the number of employees qualifying for employer-paid health care programs and the tier 
coverage in which each employee selects to participate. 
 

 
The County collects retiree post-employment health contributions using a predetermined 
percentage applied to each employee’s salary amounts calculated as an aggregate of the 
minimum “pay-as-you-go” amount, which is projected at $1,764,000 for FY 2021-22 (amount to 
pay to retirees).  This amount is the same amount used in this year’s budget. No contribution to 
the County’s retiree trust is recommended at this time as recent actuarial valuations show the 
annual contribution on a pre-funded basis to be approximately the same as the “pay-as-you-go” 
amount.  At June 30, 2020, the County’s trust account had a balance of $22,670,568, and the 
retiree post-employment health liability at June 30, 2019 (most recent valuation) is $9,038,821 
(after reduction for the trust account balance).  
 
Disappearing GF Carryover through June 30, 2022 
 
Assuming Mono County executes the current year exactly equal to its amended budget, the 
budget team recommends pursuing a structural deficit of $1,200,000 for the next budget cycle 
which leaves the County’s general fund with a projected carryover balance estimated at 
$28,000 at the close of FY 2021-22.  This is illustrated in the table below. 
 



6 
 

 
 
GF Target Budget Deficit and Net County Cost for FY 2021-22 
 
As in previous years, Finance and the CAO produced a base budget, which for the GF this next 
budget cycle is targeted to produce an overall aggregate net county cost of not more than 
$1,200,000, inclusive of all GF departments and budget units.  This process involves forecasting 
discretionary revenue reduced by non-departmental spending and the following costs: 
 

• Salaries and benefits – using known filled and vacant positions, anticipated pay rates 
and COLAs, and estimated benefit costs. 

• Workers compensation insurance 
• General liability insurance 
• Technology charges 
• Motor pool 
• Civic Center rents & utilities 

 
The net result from this process plus $1,200,000 in carryover fund balance is allocated to 
departments (GF allocation) equal to the allocation made in the previous budget development 
cycle and the remainder is held in reserve for unknown items and requested policy items.  One 
expenditure object which was overlooked in this process is the fuel object which previously was 
treated as a fixed cost allocated outside of the GF allocation. 
 
  



7 
 

A comparison of base budget between the current year and proposed base budget for next year is 
shown in the table below. 
 

 
 
Discretionary revenues are forecast using a conservative approach, especially considering 
reliance on the current fiscal year includes only six to seven months of actual results, an 
insufficient period to draw conclusions about the magnitude of economic recovery from the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  As we approach the month to adopt the recommended budget, Finance 
will update these forecasts, which may generate additional revenues to support additional 
spending while also being able to meet a deficit target that puts the County closer to its goal of a 
structurally balanced budget. 
 
In the budget process, policy items are being considered separately, and if approved, funded with 
an allocation from the $751,704 of excess resources set aside in part for this purpose.  Policy 
items are considered any of the following: 
 

• One-time initiatives 
• New positions or restructures 
• Capital spending more than $5,000 
• New services or programs 
• Expanded services 

 
Several items are not included in the FY 2021-22 proposed based budget at this time, including: 
 

• Contribution to the Road Fund beyond the County’s SB1 required MOE of $522,033. 
• Subsidization of costs to replace heavy equipment because of CARB regulations. 
• Contributions to improve the County-wide radio system. 



8 
 

• Unfreezing of Sheriff deputy and public safety positions not funded in the current budget. 
• Funding of the payout of accrued compensated absences (vacation, sick leave, overtime) 

to employees announcing their intention to retire during the next fiscal year. 
• Incorporating results from the compensation and class study being performed by Ralph 

Andersen & Associates, along with the resulting fiscal impact. 
• Any budget savings from vacant positions not anticipated to be filled on July 1, 2021 

when the next fiscal year begins. 
• Usual GF subsidies of certain activities were estimated for inclusion in the base budget, 

but these estimates are likely to change. 
• One-time contracted consultants whose unexpended services contract amounts are 

encumbered as of June 30, 2021 and included in the current year budget, but not included 
in the base budget for FY 2021-22.  

 
Mono County FY 2021-22 Key Budget Dates 
 
We look forward on the calendar at these key dates that are rapidly approaching: 
 

• April 12 – 30: Budget meetings with departments 
• May 11: Presentation from consultant of the Mono County 10-year forecast model 
• May 17, 18 & 19: Budget Workshop 
• June 15: Public hearing and anticipated budget adoption 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Labor Negotiations

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS. Government Code Section 54957.6. Agency designated representative(s):
Bob Lawton, Stacey Simon, Janet Dutcher, Dave Wilbrecht, and Anne Frievalt. Employee Organization(s): Mono County

Sheriff's Officers Association (aka Deputy Sheriff's Association), Local 39 - majority representative of Mono County Public
Employees (MCPE) and Deputy Probation Officers Unit (DPOU), Mono County Paramedic Rescue Association (PARA),

Mono County Public Safety Officers Association (PSO). Unrepresented employees: All.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

TIME REQUIRED PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

SUBJECT Closed Session - Public Employee
Evaluation

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION. Government Code section 54957. Title: County Administrative Officer.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

CONTACT NAME: 
PHONE/EMAIL:  /

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval

 

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Finance
TIME REQUIRED PUBLIC HEARING: 1:00 PM (15

minutes)
PERSONS
APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Megan Mahaffey. Finance Accountant
II

SUBJECT Community Development Block Grant
2021 Notice of Funding Availability

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

The CDBG 2021 NOFA was released on January 29, 2021.  This year’s Notice of Funding Availability is for approximately
$30 million of which Mono County is eligible for $1.5 million.  This is a public hearing required as part of the grant application

process. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Conduct a pubic hearing to gauge public interest in Mono County submitting a grant application for the 2021 NOFA. 
Provide feedback on the development of the Mono County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application for
homeownership assistance.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

CONTACT NAME: Megan Mahaffey

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1836 / mmahaffey@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 2021 NOFA

 History

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25191&ItemID=13259

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25214&ItemID=13259

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25188&ItemID=13259


 Time Who Approval

 4/7/2021 8:08 PM County Counsel Yes

 4/7/2021 2:01 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:12 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 



 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 

   
Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 
Treasurer -  Tax Collector 

 
 
TO:  Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM: Megan Mahaffey – Mono County, Accountant II 
   
DATE:   April 13, 2021 
 
RE:  Community Development Block Grant 2021 Notice of Funding Availability  
 
            
Recommended Action:  Provide feedback on the intention for Mono County to apply for the 
2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA)     
 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time.  
 
 
Background:  
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) is a federal program allocated through the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development, Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD). The CDBG program is available to all non-entitlement 
jurisdictions. A non-entitled jurisdiction is a County with fewer than 200,000 residents or 
unincorporated areas and cities with fewer than 50,000 residents. Mono County has a history of 
successful CDBG Applications. In previous years, CDBG funds have been used for projects 
including technical assistance, the June Lake Community Center, Courthouse and County park 
rehabilitation, Sierra East Mobile Home Park water purification, child care services, and the 
Homebuyer Assistance program. In the past year Mono County has been awarded funds for the 
following programs: Planning Assistance for public service districts (fire, water, and sewer) to 
evaluate capacity needs and potential system upgrades that would allow for low/mod housing 
development, Public Service to provide child care services in Bridgeport, and Economic 
Development funds for Microenterprise Technical and Financial Assistance Programs.  
 
The CDBG 2021 NOFA was released on January 29, 2021. This year’s NOFA is for 
approximately $30 million and will be allocated by the state as follows: 

1. Economic Development: 30 percent of the annual allocation, or approximately $8.7 
million, is estimated to be available for ED activities (Programs and Projects). Up to ten 
percent, approximately $873,000 of this allocation will be available for ED planning 
activities.  

2. Housing and housing-related Infrastructure: 51 percent of the annual allocation, or 
approximately $14.8 million is estimated to be available in a set-aside for housing 
assistance, housing services, housing rehabilitation, housing-related facilities, and 
housing related Infrastructure. Up to ten percent of the housing and housing-related 
Infrastructure allocation, approximately $1,500,000, will be available for planning.  



2 
 
 

a. Housing assistance programs for single-family housing Approximately $5.5. 
million is estimated to be available for housing assistance competitive programs. 
b. Multifamily housing rehabilitation and Infrastructure in support of housing 
OTC projects Approximately $7.8 million is estimated to be available for 
multifamily housing rehabilitation and Infrastructure in support of housing 
projects. These funds will only apply to applications carried over from the waitlist 
on the 2019-2020 NOFA.  

3. Public Service: no more than 15 percent of the annual allocation. Approximately $4.3 
million will be available for Public Services, including Public Services in support of 
housing. In addition to the $4.3 million, approximately $430,000 will be available for 
public facility and services planning. 

 
Jurisdictions are encouraged to partner with districts, agencies, nonprofit service providers, and 
other community organizations whenever appropriate to prepare and submit applications for 
CDBG funding. All grant applications must meet the national objective of benefiting low to 
moderate income (LMI) persons. A household is considered LMI if the income is 80% or less of 
the Area Median Income (AMI).  The HUD 2019 Area Median income for Mono was $81,200, 
making the 80% threshold a household of four making less than $62,300. Applications are due 
on a rolling basis with community development program applications due on April 30, 2021 and 
economic development applications due on May 31, 2021. No Community Development Project 
applications will be accepted this year as there is a wait list of shovel ready projects from 2020. 
Any unsubscribed funds will be rolled to fund shovel ready projects.        
 
Discussion:  
The purpose of the item today is to provide a platform for discussion for funding needs in our 
communities and provide information with regard to limits of applications for 2021. Current 
Standard agreements in process are for: Technical Assistance, Public Service and Economic 
Development. Staff would like to submit an application for the maximum amount of 
Homeownership assistance funds available in the 2021 NOFA, as well as use for up to $500,000 
of program income as needed.  Staff anticipates receiving program income this year.  
 
The following is a description of the program staff recommends the County apply for funding by 
the April 30 deadline: 
 

1. Homeownership Assistance – $500,000 for Mammoth Lakes Housing to operate a 
Homeownership Assistance Program in Mono County.  We currently have a portfolio 
of 14 loans ranging from $54,000 to $200,000.  All loans are 30-year deferred loans 
with the earliest term being August of 2036 (provided the First Time Homebuyers 
stay in their home and do not sell.)  The County’s First Time Homebuyer (FTHB) 
program is currently operated by Mammoth Lakes Housing (MLH) and is funded by 
the 2018 HOME award in the amount of $500,000. Total loan portfolio is $1.8 
million which had leveraged $2.7 million of private investment for a total of $4.49 
million in real estate investment in Bridgeport, June Lake, Mono City, Chalfant, 
Hammil Valley, Lee Vining, and Crowley Lake. This program has been run by 
Mammoth Lakes housing since 2006 and has benefited 15 families since 2005. 
 



3 
 
 

 
Constraints:  
 
Some constraints to consider with moving forward with the CDBG application are as follows: 

1. 50% rule applies to each activity awarded funds.  Any activity that has not spent 50% of 
awarded funds by next grant cycle precludes the County from applying for the 2021 
NOFA.     

2. Staff availability and capacity to oversee and/or administer these programs.  
3. Mono County is financially liable for all CDBG grant awards and responsible for 

ensuring that all awarded funds are spent in accordance to HCD CDBG guidelines and 
HUD requirements.      

4. Project “Readiness” is an extremely important component to be competitive.  A project 
should be capable of bidding within 90 days of grant funds being awarded.  If awarded 
OTC funds and does not go out to bid, standard agreements will be canceled. 

5. The CDBG 2021 NOFA funding limit is 1.5 million per jurisdiction for all applications 
submitted under the 2021 NOFA.  The NOFA allows for up to 3 application activities. 
Additionally, each activity had a funding limit listed below: 
Housing Activities  

a.  Single-Family Housing Rehabilitation Program, 1-4 units - up to $500,000  
b.  Homeownership Assistance Program - up to $500,000  

Non-Housing Community Development Activities  
a.  Public Services - up to $500,000  
e.  Planning & Technical Assistance - up to $250,000  

Economic Development Activities  
a.  Business Assistance - up to $500,000  
b.  Microenterprise Assistance - up to $250,000  
c.  Infrastructure in Support of Businesses - up to $1.5 million  

 
Attachments:  

1. 2021 NOFA 
2. Draft Resolution for application 



 

Page 1 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
 
 

R21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING AND THE 

EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO FROM 
THE 2020-2021 FUNDING YEAR OF THE 

STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM  
 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development is 
authorized to allocate Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds made available from the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors has determined that there is a need for 
CDBG funding within the jurisdictional boundary of Mono County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Citizen Participation requirements were met during the development 

of this application. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF MONO 

RESOLVES that: 
 
SECTION ONE:  The Mono County Board of Supervisors has reviewed and hereby approves 

the submission of an application to the State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development not to exceed $1 million for the following activities and/or programs as: 

 
Homeownership Assistance - $500,000 
 
SECTION TWO: Mono County approves the use of Program Income in an amount not to 

exceed $500,000 for the CDBG activities described in Section 1.  
 
SECTION THREE: Mono County acknowledges compliance with state and federal public 

participation requirements in the development of this application. 
 

 SECTION FOUR: The County Administrative Officer or his designee is hereby authorized 
and directed to prepare and execute the CDBG grant application and act on the County’s behalf in all 
matters pertaining to the application.   

 
SECTION FIVE: If the application is approved, The County Administrative Officer is 

authorized to enter into and sign the resulting grant agreement and any subsequent amendments with 
the State of California for the purposes of this grant.  

 
SECTION SIX: If the application is approved, The County Administrative Officer is 

authorized to sign funds requests and all required reporting forms and other documentation as may be 
required by the State of California from time to time in connection with the grant. 

 
 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, by the 

following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 



 

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
       Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board     County Counsel 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 670 
Sacramento, CA  95833 
(916) 263-2771  
www.hcd.ca.gov 

 

January 29, 2021 

MEMORANDUM FOR: All Potential Applicants 

FROM:   Jennifer Seeger, Deputy Director 

Division of Financial Assistance 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
2021 Notice of Funding Availability 

 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (Department) is 
pleased to announce the release of this Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for 
approximately $30 million in federal funds for the 2021 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) program. Funding for this program is available to the state from the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), pursuant to the 
Housing Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. 

CDBG funds are provided as grants for a wide range of activities directed toward 
economic development, improvement of community facilities and Infrastructure, 
neighborhood revitalization, and public services. All CDBG activities must meet one of 
the following National Objectives: benefit low- and moderate-income persons; aid in the 
prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or meet certain urgent community needs. 
This NOFA will provide detailed information on the application process for CDBG 
funding. 

The critical priority for this funding is to ensure all eligible persons receive equitable 
access to services, and are served with dignity, respect, and compassion regardless of 
circumstance, ability, or identity. This includes marginalized populations, including but 
not limited to, Black, Native and Indigenous, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islanders and other 
people of color, immigrants, people with criminal records, people with disabilities, 
people with mental health and substance use vulnerabilities, people with limited English 
proficiency, people who identify as transgender, people who identify as LGBTQ+, and 
other individuals that may not traditionally access mainstream support. The Department 
expects eligible Applicants to plan for how this funding will reduce disparities and 
increase racial equity in their communities. 

Applications for CDBG funding under this NOFA will be accepted via the Department’s 
online grant application and management system, Grants Network, supported by eCivis. 
Profile set-up instructions, and other technical assistance can be found on the CDBG  
  

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/


 

 

CDBG Program 2021 Notice of Funding Availability 
January 29, 2021 
Page 2 

 
webpage under Training and Technical Assistance at eCivis Grants Network User 
Manual. Community Development Program applications will be due April 30, 2021 at 
5:00 p.m. Pacific Daylight Time (PDT), and Economic Development (ED) program 
competitive applications and Over the Counter (OTC) Project applications will be due 
May 31, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. PDT. 

To receive CDBG program NOFA FAQs, emails, and other information and updates, 
please subscribe to the Federal Programs listserv. If you have any questions, please 
submit them to cdbg@hcd.ca.gov.  

All activities in this NOFA are subject to availability of funds and continuing HUD and 
legislative authority. 

Attachment 
  

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/cdbg-cd.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/hcd_external_user_manual_12182019.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/hcd_external_user_manual_12182019.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/HCD_SSI/subscribe-form.html
mailto:cdbg@hcd.ca.gov


 

 

Community Development Block Grant Program  
2021 Notice of Funding Availability  

 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 
State of California 

Lourdes M. Castro Ramírez, Secretary 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

Gustavo Velasquez, Director 
California Department of Housing and Community Development 

2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Telephone: (916) 263-2771 
Website: https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml 
Community Development Block Grant Program email: cdbg@hcd.ca.gov 

January 29, 2021 

  

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml
mailto:cdbg@hcd.ca.gov


 

 

Table of Contents 
I. Overview ................................................................................................................... 1 
A. Notice of Funding Availability ................................................................................. 1 
B. Tentative Timeline .................................................................................................... 1 
C. What is New in This NOFA ...................................................................................... 2 
D. Authorizing Legislation ........................................................................................... 3 
E. Definitions ................................................................................................................ 4 

II. Program Requirements ........................................................................................... 5 
A. Eligible Applicants ................................................................................................... 5 
B. Restrictions on multiple activities in the same political districts ........................ 6 
C. Allocation and funding ............................................................................................ 6 
D. State allocations ...................................................................................................... 7 
E. Special Allocations .................................................................................................. 7 
F. Federal limits ............................................................................................................ 8 
G. Activity Delivery ....................................................................................................... 9 
H. Insufficient demand ................................................................................................. 9 
I. Eligible activities maximum awards ....................................................................... 9 
J. Activity limits............................................................................................................ 9 

III. Application requirements ...................................................................................... 11 
A. National Objectives ................................................................................................ 11 
B. Milestones .............................................................................................................. 13 
C. Conditions .............................................................................................................. 13 

IV. Application threshold and initial requirements ................................................... 13 
A. Threshold requirements ........................................................................................ 13 
B. Application and Activity requirements ................................................................ 17 

V. Application review ................................................................................................. 20 
A. Competitive applications ...................................................................................... 20 

VI. Award recommendations ...................................................................................... 20 

VII. Application submission ........................................................................................ 21 
A. Application workshops ......................................................................................... 21 
B. Submission process .............................................................................................. 21 
C. Disclosure of application ...................................................................................... 21 

VIII. Appeal criteria and process .................................................................................. 22 
A. Criteria .................................................................................................................... 22 
B. Appeal process and deadlines ............................................................................. 22 
C. Appeal decisions ................................................................................................... 23 
D. Effectiveness .......................................................................................................... 23 

IX. Awards announcement and grant implementation ............................................. 23 
A. Awards announcements ....................................................................................... 23 
B. Standard agreements ............................................................................................ 23 

X. Federal program requirements ............................................................................. 24 
A. Federal cross-cutting requirements ..................................................................... 24 
B. Relocation plan requirement................................................................................. 24 
C. Procurement ........................................................................................................... 25  



 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A: Non-Entitlement CDBG Jurisdictions Census and American Community 
Survey Data Need Scoring 

Appendix B: Housing Element and Growth Control Requirements 

Appendix C: Citizen Participation, Public Hearings, and Public Information File 
Requirements 

Appendix D: Sample Resolution of Governing Body 

Appendix E: IDIS Matrix - CDBG Eligibility Activity Codes and National Objectives 

Appendix F: Accessing CDBG Income Limits by Country and HUD Low/Moderate-Income 
Area Benefit Data 

Appendix G: Determining Service Area 

Appendix H: CDBG Income Survey Information 

Appendix I: State Objective Criteria and Scoring 

Appendix J:  2021 CDBG Application Certifications and Statement of Assurances 

Appendix K: Sample DRAFT Standard Agreement 

Appendix L:  Scoring Matrix 

Appendix M:  Program Expectations for ED Activities 

Appendix N: Racial Equity 

Note – Appendices are located in the ‘Files’ tab on the HCD Program Solicitations under each 
specific program solicitation. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/dy2iv25navkx
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_redir/T/vyjsqf2kekyx


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        1 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

 

I. Overview 

A. Notice of Funding Availability 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (Department) 
announces the availability of approximately $30 million in funding available through 
the federal Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for 
the 2021 funding year. CDBG funds are provided as grants to Non-Entitlement 
Jurisdictions. The objectives of the CDBG program are to develop viable 
communities by the provision of decent affordable housing, a suitable living 
environment, and to expand economic opportunities, principally for the benefit of 
low- and moderate-income persons, families, households, and neighborhoods. LMI 
is defined as neighborhoods, families, households, and individuals whose income 
does not exceed 80 percent of the county median income, as adjusted by the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for family household 
size.  

All applications will be reviewed for completeness and compliance with state and 
federal requirements. Only complete and compliant applications will be eligible for 
application review, approval, and potential funding.  

B. Tentative Timeline 

The timeline below identifies deadlines for the 2021 program year application 
process.  

NOFA Deadlines 

NOFA Release January 29, 2021 

Housing and Community Development Programs 

Community Development 
Program Applications 

Application Due Date: 
April 30, 2021 5:00 p.m. PDT 

Economic Development Program Activity and Economic Development Capital 
OTC Project Activity Allocation  

ED OTC Project Applications 
and Competitive Applications 

Application Closing Date 
May 31, 2021, 5:00 p.m. PDT 

Undersubscribed ED OTC and Competitive program funds remaining at the close of 
the 2021 CDBG NOFA will be rolled into the Multifamily Housing, Housing 
Infrastructure, and Community Development OTC waitlist of projects submitted 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        2 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

under the 2019 Housing and Non-Housing OTC applications in the 2019-2020 
NOFA. 

Applications submitted before the application start date or after the respective 
due date or closing date will not be accepted. There will be no exceptions. The 
Department recommends Applicants plan to submit their application(s) well before 
the final due or closing date to provide opportunity for troubleshooting if needed. 
Each application will be digitally time stamped upon submittal.  

C. What is new in This NOFA 

1. New application configuration in Grants Network 

The Department has re-configured the Grants Network application space to 
better take advantage of system functionality and to respond from comments 
from stakeholders. Changes include:  

• re-arranging activities by application type  
• reducing the number of solicitations  
• adding set-aside solicitations for Colonias  
• removing redundant questions  
• re-organizing questions to improve application flow and usability 
• re-structuring threshold requirements to better align with the NOFA  
• creating dedicated applications for Program Income (PI) only-funded activities 

2. Capital improvement Projects 

The Department will not be accepting any new Community Development OTC 
capital improvement (Project) applications for the 2021 funding round. As part of 
the CDBG redesign, the Department implemented OTC applications for capital 
improvement Projects for multi-family housing, Infrastructure, and public facilities 
in the 2019-2020 NOFA. Applications received in excess of available funds have 
been put on a waitlist to be funded through dis-encumbered funds from prior year 
programs. OTC applications submitted under the 2019-2020 NOFA were 
required to be shovel ready. The Department will continue to fund down the 
existing waitlist of shovel-ready Projects through the 2021 program year. No new 
Community Development OTC applications will be accepted for grant year 
funding in 2021. Community Development Projects funded exclusively with PI will 
still be accepted.  

3. Workshops 

Workshops will be conducted virtually via Microsoft Teams. The schedule and 
registration information will be posted to the CDBG webpage. Training and TA 
are also available on the CDBG webpage. 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg.shtml


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        3 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

4. Online grant application and management system 

The Department will continue using Grants Network for submission, reviewing, 
and tracking applications. Improvements and modifications to Grants Network 
are ongoing. Grants Network supports Programs and Projects from application 
through implementation and closeout of contracts and will connect with other 
digital accounting and reporting systems used by both the Department and HUD. 

D. Authorizing Legislation 

Funding for the CDBG program is authorized pursuant to Title 42 United States 
Code (U.S.C.) §5301, et. Seq., and /subpart 1 of the Federal CDBG Regulations. 
The Federal Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 provides for state 
administration of the federal CDBG program. Additional authority includes, but is not 
limited to: 

• 24 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 570.480 et. seq, Federal CDBG 
Regulation 

• 24 CFR Part 58 Environmental Review Procedures 
• 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Grant Administration Requirements  
• 12 Health & Safety Code (HSC) §§ 50825-50834, State of California CDBG 

program 
• 2020-2024 State of California Consolidated Plan  
• 2021-2022 State of California Annual Action Plan (in progress) 
• CDBG Guidelines, California Department of Housing and Community 

Development 

If there are federal or state statutes or regulations, other laws governing the 
CDBG program, or funding is modified by Congress, HUD, the Department, or State 
Legislature, prior to completion of work to be done pursuant to awards made in 
connection with this NOFA, the changes may become effective immediately and 
apply to funded activities.  

In administering this NOFA, if there is a conflict between the federal statutes or 
regulations and state statutes or guidelines, the federal statutes and regulations 
shall prevail. All activities in this NOFA are subject to availability of funds and 
continuing HUD and California legislative authority. The Department reserves the 
right, at its sole discretion and at any time, to rescind, suspend or amend this NOFA 
and any or all its provisions. The Department will notify interested parties through 
listserv emails and by posting notification on the Department website if the 
Department rescinds, suspends, or amends this NOFA. This NOFA is not a 
commitment of funds to any Activity or Applicant. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-69
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/chapter-69
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-570/subpart-I
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-58
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=31.&title=&part=2.&chapter=12.&article=
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/index.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/final-cdbg-program-guidelines-2019.pdf


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        4 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

Note: The HCDA is codified as Title 42 U.S.C., §5301, et. seq.: thus, those citations 
are interchangeable and cite the same statute language. For example, the citation of 
HCDA 105(a)(22) and 42 U.S.C. §5305(a)(22) are references to the same statute 
language. For the purposes of this NOFA, we will use the 42 U.S.C. §5301 citations 
for references to the federal statutes.  

E. Definitions  

Activity – means any single eligible undertaking carried out as part of an Applicant's 
participation in the state CDBG program and as listed at 42 U.S.C. 5305. 

Colonia – means a rural community within the United States-Mexico border region 
that lacks adequate water, sewer, or decent housing, or a combination of all three, 
as defined by Section 916 of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990.  

Infrastructure – means the physical systems, such as roads, sidewalks, streetlights, 
water, and sewer facilities, which are necessary to provide basic community 
services. 

Jurisdiction – means the area within a unit of general local government, including a 
city, county, or town. Please see Appendix A for a list of eligible Non-Entitlement 
Jurisdictions. 

Microenterprise – means a commercial enterprise that has five (5) or fewer 
employees including the owner(s). 

Non-Entitlement – means Jurisdictions that either do not have sufficient population 
to participate in the HUD’s direct entitlement program, or that choose not to 
participate in HUD’s direct entitlement program in favor of participating in the state 
CDBG program. 

Program – means an eligible Activity that provides direct assistance to eligible 
participants within a defined service area. Programs include public services, housing 
assistance to households, and instances where an eligible person, household, or 
area is directly assisted with a unit of service. 

Program Income – means gross income received by the Grantee that is directly 
generated from the use of CDBG funds pursuant to 24 CFR § 570.489(e). 

Project – means eligible capital improvements to public facilities, Infrastructure, 
assets, and right-of-way. Projects may also include eligible capital improvements to 
privately owned facilities, Infrastructure, and assets that serve the public or that 
provide a public good, including shelters, community-based facilities, and utilities.  

Public Service – means a unit of service or assistance provided to an individual 
or household and per 42 U.S.C. 5305 (a)(8) involves provisions of public services 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5301
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5305
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5305
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.489
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5305


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        5 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

(including labor, supplies, and materials) including but not limited to public services 
concerned with employment, crime prevention, child care, health, drug abuse, 
education, fair housing counseling, energy conservation, welfare, homebuyer 
down payment assistance, or recreational needs. 

Except as otherwise defined herein, all defined terms have the meaning set forth in 
42 U.S.C. 5302 (a) and the State CDBG Guidelines. 

II. Program Requirements 

A. Eligible Applicants 

1. Non-Entitlement status 

CDBG program funds are provided as grants to Non-Entitlement Jurisdictions. 
Applications may only be submitted by Jurisdictions (city, county, or town). 
Jurisdictions are encouraged to partner with districts, agencies, nonprofit service 
providers, and other community organizations whenever appropriate to prepare 
and submit applications for CDBG funding, and to administer and complete 
CDBG funded Programs and Projects.  

Incorporated cities located in an urban county as defined by 42 U.S.C. 5302(a)(6) 
must formally elect to be excluded from participation in the urban county 
entitlement status. HUD must be notified that the city has elected to be excluded 
from the urban county participation as per 24 CFR § 570.307(g) for it to be 
eligible for the state CDBG program. Only eligible activities from eligible 
Applicants will be scored and ranked.  

2. Housing Element compliance 

As per HSC § 50829, the Applicant must submit a draft and adopted Housing 
Element to the Department in accordance with the requirements listed in 
Government Code (GC) § 65580, et seq. and GC §65585 (see Appendix B). 
Applicants that fail to comply with the procedural requirements (i.e., GC §65585) 
of the Housing Element law are ineligible for funding through the state CDBG 
program. Eligibility cannot be restored until the Applicant has met such 
procedural requirements.  

3. Growth control limitations 

Applicants that have adopted growth controls, including, but not limited to 
restrictions on residential building permits and residential buildable lots, that do 
not meet the exception criteria in HSC §50830 (b) and (c) are ineligible for 
funding as per HSC §50830. Applicants intending to apply for CDBG funds are 
required to submit a signed 2021 CDBG Application Certifications and Statement 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5302
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/Final-CDBG-Program-Guidelines-2019.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5302
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.307
https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-50829.html
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=65580.&lawCode=GOV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&sectionNum=50830.


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        6 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

of Assurances that certifies that the Applicant has not adopted any residential 
growth controls, or that adopted residential growth controls meet the applicable 
exception criteria. Failure to submit an executed Application Certifications and 
Statement of Assurances will result in Applicant ineligibility. 

4. Application submittal 

Applicants must meet the following requirements when the application is 
submitted to be eligible to apply for funding under this NOFA:  

1. An eligible Applicant may apply on its own behalf  
2. An eligible Applicant may apply on behalf of one or more other eligible 

Applicants  
3. Two or more eligible Applicants, which share a program, may submit a joint 

application  
4. In addition to Activity and application limits identified in the NOFA, an eligible 

Applicant may apply for activities in service areas within or outside of the 
Applicant's Jurisdiction when there are concentrations of Native Americans 
(HSC §50831) or where there is a designated Colonia as described by 
Section 916 of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, provided the 
concentration is within an eligible city or county. 

B. Restrictions on multiple activities in the same political districts 

Applications for eligible activities outside the Applicant's Jurisdiction must include a 
legally binding agreement, acceptable to the Department, with the city or county in 
which the eligible Activity is located. Applicants may not apply to both the state 
CDBG program and to a CDBG program administered by an Urban County or other 
entitlement entity during the same program year.  

C. Allocation and funding 

Funds will be allocated according to federal regulations found in 24 CFR § 570 and 
state statue, as found in HSC § 50827 et seq. For more information, please 
reference the CDBG Guidelines. The tables below include the estimated percentage 
of funding available for set-asides and funding caps for the 2021 allocations. The 
amount of total funding available and the allocations of those funds are only 
estimates and are subject to change without notice. Funding awarded through this 
NOFA will have a 36-month expenditure and liquidation period. Awards will be 
limited to $1.5 million per Jurisdiction, including all applications submitted under this 
2021 NOFA.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=31.&title=&part=2.&chapter=12.&article=
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-570
https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-50827.html
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/final-cdbg-program-guidelines-2019.pdf


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        7 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

D. State allocations 

1. Economic Development  

As per state statute, 30 percent of the annual allocation, or approximately 
$8.7 million, is estimated to be available for ED activities (Programs and 
Projects). Up to ten percent, approximately $873,000 of this allocation will be 
available for ED planning activities. 

2. Housing and housing-related Infrastructure  

As per state statute, 51 percent of the annual allocation, or approximately 
$14.8 million is estimated to be available in a set-aside for housing assistance, 
housing services, housing rehabilitation, housing-related facilities, and housing-
related Infrastructure. Up to ten percent of the housing and housing-related 
Infrastructure allocation, approximately $1,500,000, will be available for planning. 

a. Housing assistance programs for single-family housing 

Approximately $5.5. million is estimated to be available for housing-
assistance competitive programs. 

b. Multifamily housing rehabilitation and Infrastructure in support of housing 
OTC projects 

Approximately $7.8 million is estimated to be available for multifamily housing 
rehabilitation and Infrastructure in support of housing projects. These funds 
will only apply to applications carried over from the waitlist on the 2019-2020 
NOFA. 

3. Public Services  

Per federal statute, no more than 15 percent of the annual allocation. 
Approximately $4.3 million will be available for Public Services, including Public 
Services in support of housing. In addition to the $4.3 million, approximately 
$430,000 will be available for public facility and services planning. 

E. Special Allocations 

1. Colonias  

Per HUD agreement, 5 percent of the annual allocation. Approximately 
$1.5 million is estimated to be available to Colonias Jurisdictions. The Colonias 
allocation is exempt from the $1.5 million per Jurisdiction limit. Eligible Activity 
includes housing assistance, Infrastructure, and public services. 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        8 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

2. Non-federally recognized tribes  

Per state statute, 1.25 percent of the annual allocation. Approximately $375,000 
is estimated to be available to non-federally recognized tribes. The non-federally 
recognized tribe allocation is exempt from the $1.5 million per Jurisdiction limit. 
Eligible activities include housing assistance, Infrastructure, and public services. 

F. Federal limits 

1. Program Administration 

The Department can use 3 percent of total funding for administration costs. 
Approximately $1 million will be available for state administration. 

2. General Administration  

Applicants may request up to a flat 7 percent of the total 2021 CDBG grant 
funding requested per Activity for General Administration (GA). GA costs may 
include, but are not limited to, the following categories: 

• Salaries, wages, and related costs of the Grantee's staff engaged in activities 
associated with the general administration of the CDBG program, including 
general management, general legal services, accounting, and auditing  

• Travel costs incurred in carrying out the general management of the program  
• Administrative services performed under third-party contracts, including 

contracts for such services as general legal services, accounting services, 
and audit services  

• Other costs for goods and services related to the general management of the 
program, including rental and maintenance of office space, insurance, utilities, 
office supplies, and rental or purchase of office equipment  

• Costs incurred in providing information and resources to individuals, families, 
and households in the LMI group, and to citizen organizations participating in 
the planning, implementation, or assessment of the Grantee's program  

• Administrative funding can also be used for fair housing activities in 
compliance with the requirements of state CDBG Guidelines §103. If a cost 
cannot be associated with one of the above listed groups and cannot be 
associated with direct project costs, the Department will, upon the Grantee's 
request, decide whether it is an administrative cost, an Activity Delivery cost, 
or an ineligible cost according to 24 CFR §§ 570.489 and 570.482. 

• GA NEPA. 

Applicants may elect to assign more funds to Activity costs and take less 
than the 7 percent as GA allocation. GA for PI funds is 17 percent. For project 
budgets with both grant award and PI as funding sources, please identify how 

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/cdbg/docs/final-cdbg-program-guidelines-2019.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.489
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.482


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        9 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

much GA will be from each source to ensure that GA stays within the program 
caps. 

Note: The above allocations and limits do not total the amount available. These 
allocations and limits overlap, and applications may be counted against multiple 
allocations and/or limits. Please see the application solicitations for the available 
funding for each application type.  

G. Activity Delivery 

Activity Delivery (AD) costs are those costs directly related and necessary to 
successfully complete a specific Activity, such as loan underwriting costs, 
architectural and engineering design costs, and labor compliance review costs.  

The Department is re-evaluating AD limitations to improve overall budgeting and 
Activity performance. AD limits for all activities except housing Rehabilitation 
Administration have been eliminated. Applicants must include a budget line item 
inside the Activity category of their budget for AD if there will be AD costs as part of 
the Activity. The AD limit for Housing Rehabilitation administration will be 20 percent 
of the total grant award. AD for Rehabilitation Administration will be charged as a 
total of the award, not on a loan-by-loan or, in the case of emergency repair 
programs, grant-by-grant, basis.  

H. Insufficient demand 

If there is insufficient demand for an identified allocation, the Department may make 
awards to other qualifying activities in other allocations, to meet the timeliness of 
federal funds requirements. 

I. Eligible activities maximum awards 

For a complete list of eligible activities allowed under the HCDA, go to 42 U.S.C. 
§5305. CDBG program activities should be in predominantly residential areas or 
should serve predominantly residential areas to be eligible. 

J. Activity limits 

Jurisdictions will submit one application per Activity. Each Jurisdiction can submit 
up to three (3) applications during this NOFA cycle. Each Activity must have a 
unique application with a complete budget, national objective, scope of work, and 
milestone timeline. There will be no “combo” activities or applications accepted in 
this NOFA. Each application will have a stand-alone Standard Agreement for that 
Activity. Applicants are encouraged to review the sample draft Standard Agreement 
in Appendix K as a sample of the applicable terms and conditions required for CDBG 
funded activities. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5305
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/5305


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        10 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

1. Housing and community development activities 

The maximum grant award for all Community Development Activities is 
$1.5 million per Jurisdiction. Per Jurisdiction limits do not apply to Colonia and 
Native American set-asides. The below limits are new grant awards limits per 
Activity. PI included in an Activity budget does not count against the Jurisdiction 
maximum grant award. Total Activity budgets may exceed the award limits when 
PI is budgeted to the Activity; however, the new grant award, per Activity, shall 
not exceed the maximums below. Per-Activity limits do apply to Colonia and 
Native American set-asides. 

Pursuant to 24 CFR § 570.482, eligible activities and maximum grant award 
amount for funding the CDBG program include, but are not limited to: 

a. Housing assistance to single-family units 
• Single Family (1-4 units) Homebuyer Assistance - up to $500,000 
• Single Family (1-4 units) Housing Rehabilitation - up to $500,000 

b. Non-housing community development activities1 
• Public Services - up to $500,000 
• Planning & Technical Assistance - up to $250,000 

2. Economic Development activities 

The maximum total Jurisdiction grant award for ED activities is $1.5 million. 
When applying for ED and CD activities, the combined maximum may not exceed 
$1.5 million. These maximums do not include PI. PI may be included in addition to 
the new program award. The below limits are new grant awards limits per Activity. 
Per-Activity limits do not apply to Colonia and Native American set-asides. 
ED activities and grant award include: 

a. Business Assistance - up to $500,000 
b. Microenterprise Assistance (including both Micro-Financial Assistance and 

Technical Assistance) - up to $250,000 
c. Infrastructure in Support of Businesses - up to $1.5 million 

 

 

1 Applications submitted under the 2019-2020, including capital facility and Infrastructure improvement, multifamily (5 or more units) acquisition 

and/or rehabilitation, and Infrastructure in support of housing are grandfathered into the 2019-2020 activity limits. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.482


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        11 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

III. Application requirements 

A. National Objectives 

CDBG funded activities must meet one of three National Objectives: 

• Benefit LMI persons 
• Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight 
• To meet an urgent need 

At least 70 percent of the funds awarded must benefit LMI individuals or households. 
No Activity or portion of a program assisted by these funds may exclude from its 
benefits the lowest income-eligible group. Individual activities shall meet one of the 
following National Objectives: 

1. Low- to Moderate-Income (LMI) 

Persons, households, and/or neighborhoods benefiting from LMI activities must 
meet HUD’s LMI requirements. HUD updates income limits annually. Applicants 
will be notified via a news blast email and information will be posted on the 
Department’s website when the HUD Adjusted Median Family Income (HAMFI) 
limits and low- to moderate-income areas (LMA) are updated. Applicants are 
required to use the updated income limits as soon as they are available. The 
LMI National Objective consists of the following categories:  

a. Low- to moderate-income Limited Clientele (LMC), as defined by income 
limits or presumed benefit refers to persons who earn 80 percent or less of 
HAMFI for the county of residence, as updated annually by HUD. Presumed 
benefit LMC refers to persons who, as a category, are typically low income. 

 Seniors 
 Persons with a disability 
 Homeless persons 
 Abused children and battered spouses 
 Illiterate adults 
 Persons living with acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) 
 Migrant farmworkers 

b. LMA are identified using census tracts and block groups. LMA may also be 
identified through an income survey. See Appendix H for additional 
information regarding CDBG income surveys, which:  

• Are based on the American Community Survey using Census 
Geographies  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        12 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

• Contain at least 51 percent of households in the area earning at 
80 percent or below HAMFI to meet LMA  

• Must be contiguous and the area should be mapped to show eligibility  
• Must be an Activity with public benefit for the area, such as streets and 

sidewalks, sewer/water Infrastructure, community facilities, or park 
improvements  

• Should be determined to be LMA eligibility from the map application at 
HUD’s Low- and Moderate-Income Summary Data Application page. 
Instructions for HUD’s mapping application are available to assist in using 
the map application. 

c. Low- to Moderate-Income Housing (LMH) defined by household income limits 
is a household earning 80 percent or less of HAMFI. 

d. LMI Job Creation or Retention Activities (LMJ)  

• LMJ is based on the number of full-time equivalent jobs created or 
retained 

• Must create or retain jobs, and 51 percent of those jobs must be for 
LMI persons 

• To meet the public benefit requirements for LMJ activities, for every 
$35,000 spent, one full-time equivalent job must be created/retained  

2. Slums and Blight 

a. Areas must be geographically defined and publicly identified as slums or 
blighted, typically by a council or board resolution, before the Activity is 
considered.  

b. Activities must aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight as 
described in 24 CFR § 570.482. 

3. Urgent Need 

For the purposes of this NOFA, no Urgent Need2 applications will be accepted 
through the NOFA application process without prior Department approval. If you 
have a program or a project that meets the criteria of Urgent Need, as 
established at 24 CFR § 570.483(d) and you believe your proposed project or 
program must use Urgent Need as a National Objective to be program eligible, 
please contact your Department representative for further instructions. 

 

 

2 Special requirements apply to Urgent Need. Please contact the Department for more information. 

https://hud.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ffd0597e8af24f88b501b7e7f326bedd
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/acs-low-mod-summary-data/acs-low-mod-summary-data-block-groups-places/
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.482
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.483


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        13 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

B. Milestones 

All CDBG program-funded activities must be implemented according to the 
milestones defined in the Standard Agreement. Applicants must include at least 
five milestones per Activity application: 

• Milestone 1 Activity initiation 
• Milestone 2 First draw of grant funds 
• Milestone 3 Fifty percent completion 
• Milestone 4 Final draw of grant funds  
• Milestone 5 Activity closeout  

Additional milestones are optional, though encouraged for best practice of Activity 
implementation. Milestones may be adjusted for delays in application review and 
standard agreement execution. Applicants are encouraged to evaluate feasibility of 
meeting milestones and build time for unexpected delays into milestone schedules. 
Milestones may not extend beyond the expenditure deadline of an award. 

C. Conditions 

Applicants and awardees acknowledge that the funding opportunities referenced in 
this NOFA, and all obligations of the Department herein, are expressly subject to 
and conditioned upon the ongoing availability of funds, as well as the continued 
authority of the Department to operate the CDBG program. In the event that funds 
are not available, the CDBG program or act under this NOFA is eliminated, or in any 
way restricted, the Department shall have the option, at its sole discretion, to amend, 
rescind, suspend, or terminate this NOFA and any associated funding pursuant to 
the provision set forth immediately above. This NOFA is not a commitment of 
funds to any Activity or Applicant. 

IV. Application threshold and initial requirements 

All applications are required to pass threshold requirements. Failure to meet threshold 
will result in immediate disqualification. Applications that do not meet threshold will not 
move on to scoring, or in the case of ED OTC, review for award.  

A. Threshold requirements 

The following threshold requirements must be met at the time of application: 

1. The Applicant must demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Department that it is in 
compliance with the financial management requirements of 2 CFR § 200. The 
Applicant must provide the Department with its most recent single audit (as 
submitted to the State Controller’s Office), if applicable. If the Applicant has any 
open single audit findings and does not have a plan or agreement to remediate 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        14 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

those findings, the Applicant will be deemed ineligible for funding through the 
state CDBG program until the findings are resolved or a remediation plan or 
agreement is established. Any and all single audit findings are included in this 
evaluation. This requirement is not limited to federal funds administered by the 
Department. If an Applicant is not subject to single audit requirements, the 
Applicant is not required to submit an audit. Applicants that fail to disclose 
findings on their most recent single audit will be disqualified without exception or 
appeal. 

2. Pursuant to 24 CFR § 578.25, acceptable evidence of site control is a deed or 
lease. Absent a current deed or lease, an Applicant may use assessor’s parcel 
information to establish ownership for Applicant or subrecipient-owned sites. If 
grant funds will be used for acquisition, acceptable evidence of site control will be 
a purchase agreement. Site control must be maintained through the operation 
period of the Activity. Activities that are expected to last one year must have 
documented site control for that year. If site control is expected to expire during 
the open Activity period, the Applicant must document that either an alternative 
site will be made available or that the Activity operators intend to extend or renew 
the lease on the existing site.  

3. Applicants must include the Jurisdiction name, initial all pages, sign, and 
submit the Certifications and Statement of Assurances (Appendix J) with their 
application to meet threshold. Please review the Statement and confirm 
compliance with each requirement. Failure to comply with the certifications and 
assurances may result in disqualification, recapture of federal funds, and 
debarment. Applicants that fail to submit complete Certifications and Statement 
of Assurances at application submittal will be disqualified without exception or 
appeal. 

4. Pursuant to 24 CFR § 570.486, applications must follow CDBG Public 
Participation regulations. Applicants must provide documentation that the Citizen 
Participation requirements have been met. Documentation must include proof of 
public noticing, information provided during the public hearing or public meeting, 
and public comments received during the public participation, including 
Jurisdiction responses to comments. Additional information about public 
participation requirements can be found in Appendix C. 

5. The application includes a completed Authorizing Resolution approved by the 
Applicant’s governing board. The authorizing resolution designates a person or 
persons responsible for, and authorized to, execute all documents related to the 
application of CDBG funds. Applicants are required to use the Department’s 
Sample Resolution of the Governing Body. For reference, please see 
Appendix D. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/578.25
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.486
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/docs/amended-citizen-participation-requirements-for-the-states-annually-appropriated-federal-programs-plans-and-reports-ada.pdf
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/policy-research/plans-reports/docs/amended-citizen-participation-requirements-for-the-states-annually-appropriated-federal-programs-plans-and-reports-ada.pdf


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        15 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

6. Applicant must submit the required Government Agency Taxpayer ID (TIN) Form  
found in the Files tab of each program solicitation. Submitted TIN forms must 
include DUNS numbers and accurate payment information to be complete.  

7. CDBG budgets as found in the Grants Network portal are required at application 
submission. Required budget information includes direct costs only. Direct costs 
for Activity, GA, PI, and ‘Other’ if applicable, must be completed and clearly 
identified. Do not include any information on indirect cost, match, or cost share. 
Applications submitted without a complete CDBG Budget will be disqualified 
without exception or appeal. 

In addition, if funding, other than CDBG dollars, are to be used, Applicants are 
required to upload their Sources and Uses for all funds applicable to the CDBG 
Activity. The application will guide Applicants that are using multiple funding 
sources to finance their Activity to upload a comprehensive Activity Sources 
and Uses.  

8. Based on the 50 percent rule, Applicants with one or more current and open 
CDBG Standard Agreements (SAs), for which the expenditure deadline 
established in the agreement(s) has not yet passed, shall be ineligible to apply 
for any additional CDBG funds for the same type of Activity(ies) included in those 
open CDBG SAs, unless the Applicant has expended at least 50 percent of 
CDBG funds previously awarded, including PI, for that Activity, or unless a waiver 
to the rule has been approved by the Department’s Director, as allowed at HSC 
§ 50833(f). This includes PI only SAs approved for the same type of Activity(ies). 
The requirements of this subsection do not apply to OTC awards. Applications 
coming in under CDBG-CV are exempt from this requirement. Applicants will be 
required to submit their most recent Request for Funds and documentation of 
compliance with the 50 percent rule requirement. For awards managed through 
Grants Network, a screenshot of the grant administration screen at the time of 
submittal of the application will work as documentation for compliance with the 
50 percent rule.  

9. Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 5, all CDBG Applicants are required to verify they and 
their principals, or any/all persons, contractors, consultants, businesses, sub-
recipients, etc., that are conducting business with the Applicant are not presently 
debarred, proposed for debarment, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in the covered transaction or in any proposal 
submitted in connection with the covered transaction. Applicants and their 
partners, contractors, consultants and subrecipients must register with the 
System for Award Management (SAM) to do business with the U.S. government. 
Debarments checks that return “No Results” or “No Record Found” indicate that 
either the Applicant is not searching under the correct name, or that the Applicant 
or Applicant partner is not registered. The Department will not award any CDBG 
program funds to Applicants and Applicant partners, including contractors, 

https://fiscal.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/GovtTINForm_000.pdf
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=50833&lawCode=HSC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=50833&lawCode=HSC
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-5
https://sam.gov/SAM/


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        16 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

subrecipients, and consultants that are debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment and declared ineligible, voluntarily excluded from participation, or that 
are unregistered in SAM from federally assisted programs. Applicants are not 
required to perform debarment checks on individual Applicant or partner 
employees or individual persons unless that person is acting as a contractor, 
consultant, subrecipient, or program partner and will be receiving payment 
directly from CDBG funds. Applications with incomplete Debarment information 
will be disqualified without exception or appeal. 

10. The Applicant must demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Department, that it is 
meeting the State Objectives as described in Appendix I.  

11. Pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), 
Environmental Standards must be met. Applicant must demonstrate compliance 
by submission of fully complete, current, and applicable Environmental Review 
Record forms and supporting documentation. Required NEPA process, training 
and current forms are available on the HUD Exchange under the ‘Formats’ 
option. Additional HUD guidance can be found at the Orientation to 
Environmental Reviews page also on HUD Exchange. If Applicants intend to use 
CDBG funding for GA Activities, a GA NEPA review will also be required at 
application submission, specifying the applicable exemption in 24 CFR 
§ 58.34(a). For ED Business Assistance and CD housing assistance activities 
that operate as a program but, as per HUD, require site specific environmental 
reviews for NEPA clearance, only a GA NEPA review is required at application. 
Applicants using a Tiered Review process are strongly encouraged to submit 
their Tier 1 review at application. 

12. ED applications only - The Applicant must demonstrate capacity and experience 
to operate an ED Activity. Capacity and experience may be documented through 
one of the following commitments: 

a. The Applicant has hired staff that are able to dedicate capacity to the 
operation of a CDBG-funded ED Activity. These staff must have at least: 

• three years of CDBG ED experience, or 
• five years of commercial underwriting experience plus two years of 

general CDBG experience. 

b. The Applicant has a draft contract or subrecipient agreement with a qualified 
consultant or non-profit ED group with direct experience in CDBG ED 
implementation. The agreement must be fully executed, and a copy provided 
to the Department within 30 days of receipt of SA. Final contracts and/or 
subrecipient agreements must be with the same entities as proposed in draft 
at the time of the application. Substitutions will invalidate the application and 
cancel the award. 

https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/environmental-review/
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/environmental-review/orientation-to-environmental-reviews/#overview
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/environmental-review/orientation-to-environmental-reviews/#overview
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/58.34
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/58.34


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        17 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

c. The Applicant commits to partnering with the Small Business Development 
Centers or similar organization that has direct experience in CDBG ED 
program design, implementation, and commercial underwriting. This 
commitment will be a resolution, memorandum of understanding, or similar 
formal statement and will be required at application. 

B. Application and Activity requirements 

At time of application submission, all applications must comply with and provide 
documentation of HUD’s federal cross cutting requirements found at 24 CFR 
§ 570.600 et seq, and summarized in section X Federal Program Requirements of 
this NOFA, and state overlays. Failure to comply with these requirements may result 
in disqualification of the application. State overlays are as follows: 

1. Application verification 

Applicants must certify upon submission that their application is true and correct 
to the best of their knowledge. The application included required input fields, 
required attachment uploads, and required budgets. Selecting an input field or 
uploading a blank document to circumvent the application requirements 
invalidates the application certification and will result in immediate 
disqualification, without exception or appeal. Applicants that intentionally input 
false information or that intentionally upload blank documents will have their 
good standing with the Department revoked and may be determined to be 
ineligible for other Department funding. Intentionally providing false information is 
fraud. Applicants that rely on consultants or grant writers to prepare the CDBG 
application are strongly encouraged to review the application for completeness 
and correctness prior to submittal. If an input field, upload requirement, or 
application component is not functioning correctly or if there are system outages 
or other system failures prior to submittal, please contact cdbg@hcd.ca.gov as 
soon as possible to document the issue so that applications are not disqualified 
due to technical difficulties. Failure to contact the Department with system issues 
will not exempt Applicants from application verification requirements.  

2. Gap funding and duplication of benefits 

CDBG is intended to provide stop-gap funding for crucial Infrastructure, public 
safety, housing, and social service projects. CDBG funds may not be obligated to 
Activities that are documented to already have sufficient funding for the Activity 
as described, or that have identified multiple funding sources for the same costs, 
resulting in a duplication of benefits and overfunding of the Activity. CDBG funds 
must be “but-for” funding for every Activity and may not be used to supplant local 
or state resources. CDBG grant funds cannot be used to replace funds that have 
been budgeted and/or expended from another funding source for the same 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.600
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.600
mailto:cdbg@hcd.ca.gov


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        18 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

Activity. Pre-agreement costs are eligible provided that the initial funding for 
those costs is identified as a temporary funding source (such as a loan from a 
local fund where in the loan is float funding the CDBG Activity pre-agreement 
costs, but must be repaid so that the temporary loaned funds may be used as 
originally intended) and that the costs are actually budgeted to be part of the 
CDBG Activity. 

3. Good standing 

The Applicant, and any co-Applicant, together with all respective affiliates, must 
be in good standing with the Department (i.e., are current on all loan and/or grant 
obligations, have a satisfactory past performance history in all of their prior 
dealings with the Department, and are in full compliance with all Department 
contracts and reporting requirements). Applicants not meeting the foregoing 
requirements shall be ineligible to apply for or receive funding under this NOFA. 

4. Article XXXIV 

Applicants engaging in low-income housing project activities that are subject to 
Article XXXIV of the California Constitution must show that the project approval 
process complies with Article XXXIV requirements. The state statutes 
implementing Article XXXIV can be found at HSC § 37000. Exceptions to 
Article  XXXIV can be found at HSC § 37001. 

5. Racial equity 

Applicants should prioritize the advancement of racial equity in all CDBG 
programs and across systems and units of government in the Jurisdiction. 
The Department asks Applicants to be leaders in the community, facilitating 
partnerships among service organizations, housing providers, units of 
government, businesses, the homelessness response system and other partners 
to promote racial equity practices. All Applicants must identify the work 
performed to ensure racial equity in access to programs, projects, and activities 
funded with CDBG resources. Applicants must commit to analyzing 
disproportionality in access to housing, access to services, quality of service 
provision and desired outcomes in Programs and Projects and affirmatively 
further equitable access, quality of service provision and outcomes for protected 
classes, including but not limited to Black, Native and Indigenous, 
Latino/Latina/Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islanders, and other people of color who have 
been historically marginalized and are disproportionately impacted by housing 
segregation, poverty, homelessness, and COVID-19. 

Applicants cannot simply rely on delivering a standardization of services to 
address equity. Applicants must commit to reviewing their current policies and 
procedures and examining available data to ensure all eligible persons receive 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&division=&title=&part=&chapter=&article=XXXIV
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=HSC&division=24.&title=&part=8.&chapter=&article=
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=37001.&lawCode=HSC


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        19 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

equitable services, and support, and are served with dignity, respect and 
compassion regardless of circumstances, ability, or identity. See Appendix N for 
Racial Equity Resources and Tools. 

When applying for 2021 CDBG funds, Applicants should consider: 

• What are the community’s racial demographics and the demographics of 
those experiencing homelessness, housing, and economic insecurity? 

• What are the outcomes of the CDBG programs based on race? What are 
the requirements for all sub-grantees to look at data to determine racial 
disparities and then put a plan in place to address them? 

• How do underserved and marginalized communities learn about and access 
CDBG program? What marketing and communication strategies are used to 
increase equitable access to CDBG programming? 

• How does the grant-making process include prioritization for programs that 
are addressing the disproportionate impacts that housing insecurity, 
homelessness, economic insecurity, lack of access to equitable health care, 
and COVID-19 has on communities of color, particularly Black, Latinx, Asian, 
Pacific Islander, and Native and Indigenous communities? 

• How are the voices of Black, Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, and Native and 
Indigenous communities and those having lived with experience of housing 
insecurity, homelessness and economic insecurity being centered in a 
meaningful, sustained way in creating effective approaches to addressing 
these challenges? How are they involved in the funding decision-making 
process? 

• How are these funds accessible to smaller and non-traditional organizations 
that have historically been serving communities of color but may not have 
previously participated formally in government grant programs; how would 
these funds address the capacity of organizations that are led by Black, 
Latinx, Asian, Pacific Islander, and Native and Indigenous people? 

• Provide a list of partner organizations that are addressing racial equity in the 
housing and homeless response system, the economic development sector, 
and the health care sector and how do you partner with them. 

The Department will require Applicants to submit related racial and ethnic data 
metrics of their CDBG programming on a quarterly reporting basis. 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        20 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

V. Application review  

All applications that pass threshold will be reviewed for Activity eligibility. Activities that 
do not meet program eligibility requirements will be disqualified.  

A. Competitive applications 

Qualifying competitive applications will be scored according to the evaluation criteria 
outlined in the application under the Readiness Section. Scores include two 
components: 

1. Need score  

Need scores use publicly available data from the U.S. Census Bureau's 
American Community Survey to measure poverty, housing, and economic 
development needs. These statistics are used to rank all eligible Non-Entitlement 
Jurisdictions and the rankings are translated into numeric scores. Need scores 
summarize the severity of a community's need for a specific Activity relative to 
other communities. The Department prepares the need scores and will provide 
the scores as Appendix A to this NOFA. 

2. Activity readiness  

Activity readiness is an indicator of Applicant preparedness for Activity 
implementation. Applicants are expected to have necessary contracts and 
subrecipient agreements in place at the time of application submittal. Fully 
executed contracts and agreements will score higher than draft contracts and 
agreements. Applicants that will not be using contracts or subrecipient providers 
to carry out the Activity and will instead use Applicant staff, must clearly 
document that staff have the experience and capacity necessary to successfully 
complete the Activity. Documentation will include position description(s) for the 
identified staff, resumes or Curriculum Vitates for each staff person involved in 
the implementation of the Activity, organizational chart, and estimated workload.  

Applications will be ranked based on highest score. Applicants will be notified of their 
point score, and the Final Point Score and Awardee List will be posted to the CDBG 
webpage. 

VI. Award recommendations 

Applications that are eligible, complete, and that satisfy readiness requirements may be 
recommended for funding. Applicants recommended for award will officially be notified 
of awards through the eCivis Grants Network. The award notification will include 
instructions for accepting or declining the award, as well as an executable Standard 
Agreement. Applicants that are not recommended for awards or that fail threshold will 



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        21 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

be officially notified via email that their application was not awarded or failed to pass 
threshold. The Final Award List will be posted on the CDBG webpage. Applicants may 
request a copy of their application reviews after the review has been completed and the 
Applicant has been notified of the results.  

VII. Application submission 

A. Application workshops 

The Department will hold application workshops beginning in February 2021. 
Applicants are strongly encouraged to attend these virtual workshop sessions. 
Please visit the Department’s website for upcoming information. Applicants are also 
strongly encouraged to review available webinars and Training and Technical 
Assistance materials on the CDBG program, the CDBG Redesign, using Grants 
Network, and preparing a CDBG program application in Grants Network.  

B. Submission process 

Applicants must follow instructions in this NOFA, the online application, and the 
CDBG Program Guidelines. The Department strongly encourages Applicants have 
these documents on hand when completing the application. Failure to follow 
instructions and submit all required documentation will result in disqualification. 
Once submitted, applications must stand on their own. It is the Applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure that the submitted application is clear, complete, and 
accurate. Department staff may request clarifying information but are unable to 
accept any new documentation that would provide an unfair advantage over other 
applications. 

The CDBG Application and all required attachments must be submitted to the 
Department through the eCivis Grants Network Portal. Applicants must certify that 
all information is true and complete to the best of their knowledge, on penalty of 
perjury.  

Applicants that do not have an account with eCivis should log into the eCivis portal. 
Use the “Create an account” option to initiate a profile. See the available training on 
the CDBG webpage to learn how to open a. There is no cost associated with an 
eCivis account.  

C. Disclosure of application 

Information provided in the Application will become public record available for review 
by the public pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code 
§ 6250, et. seq). As such, the Department may disclose any materials provided by 
the Applicant to any person making a request under this Act. The Department 
cautions Applicants to use discretion in providing information not specifically 

https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-37001.html
https://gn.ecivis.com/GO/gn_home
https://youtu.be/_W-fsUFETJg
https://youtu.be/_W-fsUFETJg
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=7.&chapter=3.5.&lawCode=GOV&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=7.&chapter=3.5.&lawCode=GOV&title=1.&article=1.


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        22 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

requested, including, but not limited to, bank account numbers, personal phone 
numbers, home addresses, or other personally identifying information. By providing 
this information to the Department, the Applicant is waiving any claims of 
confidentiality, and consents to the Department’s disclosure of the Applicant’s 
material upon receipt of a Public Records Act request.  

VIII. Appeal criteria and process 

A. Criteria 

Upon receipt of the Department’s notice that an application has been determined to 
be incomplete or fails threshold, Applicants under this NOFA may appeal such 
decision(s) to the Department pursuant to this section, with the exception of the 
threshold items that specifically state they are exempt from appeal. No Applicant 
shall have the right to appeal a decision from the Department relating to another 
Applicant’s eligibility, point score, award, denial of award, or any other matter 
related thereto. The appeal process provided herein applies solely to decisions the 
Department made in this NOFA and does not apply to any decisions made with 
respect to any previously issued NOFAs, or decisions to be made pursuant to future 
program NOFAs.  

B. Appeal process and deadlines 

In order to lodge an appeal, Applicants must submit to the Department a written 
appeal by the filing deadline set forth below, which states all relevant facts, 
arguments, and evidence upon which the appeal is based. Furthermore, the 
Applicant must provide a detailed reference to the area(s) of the Application that 
provide clarification and substantiation for the basis of the appeal. No new or 
additional information will be accepted if this information would result in a 
competitive advantage to an Applicant. Once the written appeal is submitted to 
the Department, no further information or materials will be accepted or considered 
thereafter.  

Appeals are to be submitted to the Department via email at cdbg@hcd.ca.gov.  

Emails to the email address listed above will be accepted so long as the email time 
stamp is prior to the appeal deadline.  

Filing Deadline: Appeals must be received by the Department no later than 
five (5) business days from the date the Department notifies the Applicant that their 
application has failed to meet eligibility, threshold, or has failed to score high enough 
in readiness to qualify for award. Late appeals will not be reviewed. 

mailto:cdbgnofa@hcd.ca.gov


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        23 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

C. Appeal decisions 

It is the Department’s intent to render its decision in writing within 
fifteen (15) business days of receipt of the Applicant’s written appeal. All decisions 
rendered shall be final, binding, and conclusive, and shall constitute the final action 
of the Department with respect to the appeal.  

D. Effectiveness 

If the applicable statutes and/or Guidelines governing the CDBG program contain an 
existing process for appealing decisions of the Department with respect to NOFA 
awards, then this section shall be inapplicable, and such existing authority shall 
govern all appeals.  

IX. Awards announcement and grant implementation 

A. Awards announcements 

The Department anticipates awards will be announced no later than 
September 2021. OTC awards will be announced as applications are approved for 
funding. Until awards are announced, the CDBG staff will not be able to discuss the 
status of applications.  

Within 60 days from the award announcement date, unsuccessful Applicants will 
have the opportunity to request an interview with Department staff to discuss their 
application. Applications and agreements are public information and are available for 
review upon request. 

B. Standard Agreements 

Successful Applicants (awardees) will enter into a Standard Agreement with the 
Department. A draft sample Standard Agreement is included as Appendix K to this 
NOFA. The Standard Agreement contains all the relevant state and federal 
requirements, Activity performance and management requirements, and 
disbursement requirements. A condition of award will be that a Standard Agreement 
must be executed by the awardee within 30 days (contracting period) of the 
awardee’s receipt of the Standard Agreement(s). Failure to execute and return the 
Standard Agreement(s) to the Department within the contracting period will result in 
award cancellation. Award cancellations are final.  



 

Department of Housing and Community Development        24 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

X. Federal program requirements 

A. Federal cross-cutting requirements 

The CDBG program is administered under the rules and regulations promulgated 
primarily in 24 CFR § 570.600 et seq. These primary regulations are known as the 
federal cross-cutting requirements and form the basis of the programmatic 
requirements. The Department incorporates all federal cross-cutting requirements 
into the state CDBG program, and the regulations in Part 570 are translated into 
required actions on the part of all Grantees of the state CDBG program. 

This following is a summary of the federal cross-cutting requirements: 

1. Environmental Standards (based on National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 
[NEPA]) 

2. Labor Standards (Davis-Bacon and related laws) 
3. Achieving a HUD National Objective 
4. Public participation requirements 
5. Fair Housing and Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
6. Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination in federal Grant Programs 
7. Federal Procurement Guidelines 
8. National Flood Insurance Program compliance  
9. Relocation and displacement requirements 

10. Employment and Contracting Opportunities Section 3 Compliance 
11. Lead-based paint requirements 
12. No use of debarred, ineligible, or suspended contractors or sub-recipients 
13. Uniform Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles 
14. Conflict of interest prohibitions 
15. Compliance with the Architectural Barriers Act and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act 
16. Compliance with Eligibility Restrictions for certain resident aliens 
17. Federal reporting requirements 
18. Grant and subrecipient monitoring requirements 

B. Relocation plan requirement 

Applicants engaging in project-specific activities that may or will cause the temporary 
or permanent relocation and displacement of persons, property, or businesses must 
provide a project-specific relocation plan as part of the application. The plan must 
meet the standards established in the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA). Applicants must successfully 
demonstrate that they have met URA requirements prior to the start of the project or 
displacement Activity. Applicants should include relocation costs in project budgets. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.600


 

Department of Housing and Community Development        25 
CDBG 2021 NOFA 

 

Applicants must provide General Information Notices to persons who may be 
displaced if the Activity in the grant application is funded. This plan must outline 
how the Grantee will enforce and manage the project’s temporary relocation and 
displacement activities and estimate what relocation benefits will be required so 
those costs can be included in the project’s development budget. 

C. Procurement 

Pursuant to 24 CFR § 570.489(g), all grantees must comply with federal 
procurement requirements. The Department will review the grantee’s procurement 
documents for services (i.e., administrative sub-contractor, Davis-Bacon consultant, 
etc.) at time of monitoring.  

Requirements for federal procurement can be found at 2 CFR § 200.317-326. 
Applicants are responsible for meeting all federal procurement standards for 
goods and services funded through federal programs. Failure to meet procurement 
requirements may result in disqualification, recapture of federal funds, and 
debarment.  

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/administration/hudclips/handbooks/cpd/13780
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/570.489
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200/subpart-D


OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Finance
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Megan Mahaffey, Finance Accountant
II, Patricia Robertson, Mammoth Lakes
Housing Executive DirectorSUBJECT Mono County Revolving Loan Fund

(RLF) Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Mammoth Lakes Housing has utilized the RLF for a total of five (5) purchases of deed-restricted properties between
September 26, 2017 and December 31, 2019.  The outstanding loan that received a 6-month extension was paid back on

March 24, 2021. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
No action; informational only. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
$3,053 of interest earned on the recent loan payoff was moved into the Mono County Affordable Housing Fund.

CONTACT NAME: Megan Mahaffey

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-924-1836 / mmahaffey@mon.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO:

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Attachment 1: Financial Information

History

Time Who Approval
4/2/2021 10:22 AM County Counsel Yes

4/2/2021 10:10 AM Finance Yes

4/9/2021 12:11 PM County Administrative Office Yes

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25160&ItemID=13217

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25161&ItemID=13217


 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
COUNTY OF MONO 

 
   

Kim Bunn 
Assistant Finance Director 
Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 
Director of Finance 

Gerald Frank 
Assistant Finance Director 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 

 

TO:  Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:  Janet Dutcher, Finance Director 
  Megan Mahaffey, Accountant 
  Patricia Robertson, Mammoth Lakes Housing Executive Director 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2021 
 
RE:  Mono County Revolving Loan Fund (Affordable Housing) quarterly update 
 
 
Recommended Actions 

(1) Receive update from Mammoth Lakes Housing (“MLH”) staff on use of Mono County 
Revolving Loan Fund (Affordable Housing) (“RLF”) as required by Resolution Nos. 15-81,17-
86 and R20-104; 

 
Fiscal Impact 

None at this time. 
 
Strategic Plan 

The RLF program moves Mono County towards the Mono County Strategic Plan by enhancing quality of life 
for county residents by addressing the housing crisis through policy, assistance, and development programs.  
 
Background 

MLH has utilized the RLF for a total of five (5) purchases of deed-restricted properties between September 
26, 2017 and December 31, 2019.  
 
Discussion 

As of the last quarterly update, there was one outstanding loan due to the RLF for Meridian Court #H-101, 
which closed escrow on December 18, 2019. This loan was utilized to purchase a 3-bedroom, 2-bath home at 
Meridian Court, which is a complex in the Town of Mammoth Lakes that does not allow for long-term 
rentals. This home has a one-car garage and one surface parking space. This unit was occupied by long-term 
tenants who were unable to secure alternative housing during the holiday season.  A short-term lease was 
entered with the tenants through May 2020.  The tenants vacated the unit in June 2020 and repairs have been 
underway.  The unit has been painted and new carpet was installed. The unit was listed for sale on February 
11, 2021 at the 120% AMI level and received a lot of interest from the community.  MLH entered escrow on 
the home on February 23, 2021 with an income-eligible household in the real estate sector. Escrow closed on 
March 24, 2021.  
 
Upon transfer to the new owners, a resale restriction agreement was executed and recorded.  These 
agreements preserve the affordability and below-market-rate value of the home for 60 years from the date of 



Mono County Board of Supervisors 
RE: Mono County Revolving Loan Fund (Affordable Housing) Presentation and Update 
April 13, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
execution.  This is an asset to the community and region that helps to ensure there are quality homes 
affordable to members of the community and workforce. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this agenda item or staff report, please contact Megan Mahaffey at (760) 
924-1836 or mmahaffey@mono.ca.gov. 
 
 
 
Attachment: 

1. Financial Information 

 

mailto:mmahaffey@mono.ca.gov


Mono County RLF

SCHEDULE OF CASH TRANSACTIONS

Beginning 

Balance date

Transaction 

Amount

Ending 

balance Activity detail

300,000$              9/26/2017 (20,000)$      280,000$        Loan issued for home 

280,000$              9/30/2017 222$             280,222$        Interest

280,222$              11/14/2017 (220,000)$    60,222$          Loan issued for home 

60,222$                12/11/2017 20,000$        80,222$          Loan repaid after 76 days

80,222$                12/26/2017 220,000$      300,222$        Loan repaid after 42 days

300,222$              12/31/2017 517$             300,739$        Interest

300,739$              2/28/2018 (191,220)$    109,519$        Loan issued for home 

109,519$              3/31/2018 811$             110,330$        Interest 

110,330$              6/1/2018 191,200$      301,530$        Loan repaid after 94 days

301,530$              6/30/2018 719$             302,249$        Interest

302,249$              6/30/2018 (2,249)$         300,000$        transfer interest to GF

300,000$              11/21/2019 (196,000)$    104,000$        Loan issued for home 

300,000$              12/17/2019 (104,000)$    (0)$                   Loan issued for home 

-$                           10/26/2020 196,000$      196,000$        Loan repaid after 340 days 

196,000$              3/22/2021 104,000$      300,000$        Loan repaid after 450 days

300,000$              3/25/2021 300,000$        Current Balance

SCHEDULE OF LOAN TRANSACTIONS

Loans Issued

Ending 

balance Days outstanding

61 Callahan Way, Unit 12, Door E2 20,000$        -$                     76 days

550 Mono Street, Unit A202 220,000        -                        42 days

550 Mono Street, Unit C101 191,220        -                        93 days 

550 Mono Street, Unit B202 196,000        -                        340 days 

550 Mono Street, Unit H101 104,000        -                        436 days

731,220$      -$                     

RLF Quick facts

Creation: 11/17/15 R15-81

Modified: 12/ 5/17 R17-86 & 12/8/2020 R20-104

Interest to date 9,467$          

Average days for repayment: 203

Loans issued to date: 5

Property Address



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Mountain View Fire Emergency Operations Center
TIME REQUIRED 10 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Justin Nalder, EOC Director

SUBJECT Mountain View Fire Update

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Update on the Mountain View Fire in Walker, California.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive update from Incident Command for the Mountain View Fire and involved staff regarding impacts of the fire, recovery
efforts, County response, debris removal and related topics. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No impact from this update.

CONTACT NAME: Justin Nalder

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5453 / jnalder@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

No Attachments Available

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/7/2021 8:09 PM County Counsel Yes

 4/7/2021 12:18 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:11 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 

javascript:history.go(0);


 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Mountain View Fire Emergency Operations Center
TIME REQUIRED 5 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Justin Nalder, EOC Director

SUBJECT Proposed Agreements Supporting
County Effort to Facilitate the
Provision of Trailers to Residents in
Mono County in Need of Temporary
Housing as a Result of the Mountain
View Fire, the COVID-19 Pandemic
or Otherwise

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

The proposed agreements facilitate and support the transfer of trailers by the City of Los Angeles to IMACA and ultimately
to residents of Mono County experiencing homelessness and include: 

1)  MOU among the City of Los Angeles, Mono County, and Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) governing
the transfer of 36 trailers by the City of LA to IMACA in return for indemnification by IMACA and Mono County. 

2)  MOU between Mono County and IMACA indemnifying Mono County against any and all claims relating to the transfer of
the trailers from the City of Los Angeles to IMACA and use by IMACA to serve homelessness in the County and possibly the

tri-county region under certain, specified circumstances. 
3)  Agreement among Mono County, IMACA and any trailer recipient indemnifying Mono County against any and all claims

relating to the transfer of the trailers from IMACA to the individual recipient.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve County entry into and authorize CAO’s signature on the proposed agreements and authorize the CAO, in
consultation with County Counsel, to administer said agreements, including making minor amendments as the CAO may
deem necessary provided such amendments do not substantially alter the scope of the agreements and are approved as to
form and legality by County Counsel. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Trailers are being transferred at no cost. Transportation fees and needed supplies will be paid for by donated funds from
Direct Relief, not to exceed $80,000.

CONTACT NAME: Justin Nalder

PHONE/EMAIL: 760-932-5453 / jnalder@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

 

javascript:history.go(0);


ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 MOU - County/City of Los Angeles/IMACA

 MOU - County/IMACA

 Transfer Agreement - County/IMACA/Trailer Recipient

 Exhibit A To TRANSFER AGREEMENT

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/8/2021 1:49 PM County Counsel Yes

 4/8/2021 1:58 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:12 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 


                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25219&ItemID=13229

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25222&ItemID=13229

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25223&ItemID=13229

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25220&ItemID=13229

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25221&ItemID=13229


 MONO COUNTY 
 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 SOLID WASTE DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 457 � 74 NORTH SCHOOL STREET � BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA  93517  

760.932.5440 � FAX 760.932.5441 � monopw@mono.ca.gov � www.monocounty.ca.gov 
 

Parks • Community Centers • Roads & Bridges • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries • Fleet Maintenance 

Date: April 13, 2021 

To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Supervisors 

From: Justin Nalder, Mountainview Fire EOC Director 

Subject: Proposed agreements supporting County effort to facilitate the provision of trailers to residents in 
Mono County in need of temporary housing as a result of the Mountain View Fire, the COVID-19 Pandemic or 
otherwise. 
 
Recommended Action: 

Approve and authorize the CAO’s signature on the following agreements: 

1. MOU among the City of Los Angeles, Mono County, and Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action 
(IMACA) governing the transfer of 36 trailers by the City of LA to IMACA in return for indemnification by 
IMACA and Mono County. 

2. MOU between Mono County and IMACA indemnifying Mono County against any and all claims relating 
to the transfer of the trailers from the City of Los Angeles to IMACA and use by IMACA to serve 
homelessness in the County and possibly the tri-county region under certain, specified circumstances. 

3. Agreement among Mono County, IMACA and any trailer recipient indemnifying Mono County against 
any and all claims relating to the transfer of the trailers from IMACA to the individual recipient.  

 

Fiscal Impact: 

Travel trailer procurement, transportation fees and needed supplies will be paid for by donated funds from Direct 
Relief, not to exceed $80,000. 
 
Discussion: 

In November 2020, the Mountain View Fire ravaged the community of Walker in Mono County and destroyed 
approximately 143 structures, including at least 96 homes and the County’s solid waste transfer station. In 
response to the destruction, the Mono County Board of Supervisors declared a local state of emergency on 
November 17, 2020; the Governor issued a Proclamation of a State of Emergency on November 19, 2020; and 
the Mono County Health Officer declared a local health emergency due to conditions of extreme peril caused by 
the Mountain View Fire, also on November 19, 2020. 
 
Shortly thereafter, incident command was transferred to CAO Robert Lawton who initiated the Mountain View 
Fire Emergency Operations Center (EOC) with a mission of neutralizing the impacts of the wildfire by setting 
conditions to re-establish everyday life in Walker. Included in the EOC mission objectives are ensuring needs 
assessments are completed and providing immediate to mid-term housing for displaced families of the Mountain 
View Fire. 
 
Immediate sheltering options were provided to the homeless through Red Cross assistance and needs 
assessment interviews were completed during this time. Qualified parties were then identified for mid-term 
housing. A rare opportunity arose for the acquisition of travel trailers which would meet the needs of mid-term 
housing through surplus trailer inventory held by the City of Los Angeles. Accordingly, an Agreement has been 
reached for the transfer of 36 trailers, identified by VIN (and purposefully selected to match the needs of select 
fire victims), by the City of Los Angeles to IMACA in return for indemnification by IMACA and Mono County.  
 
To support the transfer, Mono County will be inspecting and arranging for transport of 31 trailers from Los 
Angeles to Mono County to be delivered to the Antelope Valley Community Center; the additional five trailers 
will be delivered to IMACA, in Inyo County, for homelessness services in Mono County, and in Inyo and Alpine 
counties, provided those counties agree to indemnify Mono County and LA City. IMACA will inspect, receive, 



 
April 20, 2021 LA City Trailers Page 2 of 2 

Road Operations • Parks • Community Centers • Land Development • Solid Waste 
Fleet Maintenance • Building Maintenance • Campgrounds • Airports • Cemeteries 

and take possession as sole owner of the trailers, from the City of Los Angeles, and ensure the transfer of the 
Unit(s) to the individual recipients.  
 
As additional support to the recipients, the County will provide accessories to hookup and install the trailers. 
These items include freshwater hose, sewer hose with fittings, a 30- or 50- amp adapter, heat tape, wheel 
chalks and a high-water pressure adapter. It is not intended that the County will install, arrange for install or pay 
the cost of installation of these items. Items will be purchased with donated funds from Direct Relief.  Once the 
recipients are in possession of the travel trailers, as approved through a Temporary Emergency Dwelling (TED) 
permit provided by Community Development Department, all responsibility for use and upkeep lies with them. 
Note that if the owner no longer needs or wants the unit(s), it shall be offered to IMACA at no cost for first right 
of refusal.  
 
Agreements governing and supporting each of the above-mentioned endeavors are included in today’s agenda 
packet for Board approval. Staff respectfully requests Board approve and authorize CAO Lawton to execute said 
agreements on behalf of the County and thus enabling the fulfillment of critical mission objectives for the 
Mountain View Fire recovery effort. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact me at (760) 932-5453. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Justin Nalder 
Solid Waste Superintendent / Environmental Director 
 
Attachments: 
 

- Agreement among the City of Los Angeles, Mono County, and the Inyo Mono Advocates for Community 
Action (IMACA) governing the transfer of 36 trailers by the City of LA to IMACA in return for 
indemnification by IMACA and Mono County. 

- Agreement between Mono County and IMACA indemnifying Mono County and the City of LA against 
any and all claims relating to the transfer of the trailers from the City of Los Angeles to IMACA and use 
by IMACA to serve homelessness in the County. 

- Agreement among Mono County, IMACA and any trailer recipient indemnifying Mono County against 
any and all claims relating to the transfer of the trailers from IMACA to the individual recipient.  

  



1 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

Inc., a private 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF STATE PROVIDED TRAILERS BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES, MONO COUNTY, AND THE INYO MONO ADVOCATES 

FOR COMMUNITY ACTION, INC. FOR HOMELESSNESS RELIEF 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter MOU), is created 
among the City of Los Angeles, a municipal corporation (hereinafter City), and Mono 
County, a governmental agency (hereinafter County), and Inyo Mono Advocates for 
Community Action, Inc., a non-profit agency (hereinafter IMACA or Recipient) to 
transfer ownership of State of California provided trailers in possession of the City to 
IMACA for homelessness response needs related to COVID-19 and fire relief. 

  
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, in January of 2020 the World Health Organization (“WHO”) declared 

the outbreak of novel Coronavirus 2019 (“COVID-19”) a global health emergency and 
on March 11, 2020 the WHO designated the outbreak as a pandemic; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Mayor of the City of Los Angeles (“Mayor”) 

declared a local emergency pursuant to Los Angeles Administrative Code (“LAAC”) 
Section 8.21 et seq., (“Declaration of Local Emergency”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 6, 2020, the City Council approved a resolution ratifying 

the Declaration of Local Emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2020, the Governor of the State of California 
(“Governor”) declared a state of emergency as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act and section 8625 of the California 
Government Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 

and Department of Public Health declared a local and public health emergency in 
response to the increased spread of COVID-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, between March 20, 2020 and April 2, 2020, the State donated to the 

City trailers, purchased by the State, to be used for the City’s homelessness response 
to COVID-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to transfer to IMACA thirty-six (36) trailers for public 

services to be rendered to those experiencing homelessness in Mono, Inyo and Alpine 
Counties; and 

 
WHEREAS,  in accordance with a separate agreement entered into between IMACA 

and County, IMACA will utilize the trailers to house individuals experiencing homelessness in 
Mono, Inyo and Alpine Counties as a result of the recent Mountain View Fire and to house 
those in need of temporary housing, or a location for quarantine and/or isolation due to COVID-
19; and 



2 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, use of the trailers for those experiencing homelessness or a need to isolate 
or quarantine due to the COVID-19 pandemic, or homelessness as a result of the Mountain 
View Fire, serves a public purpose by aiding in COVID-19 response, providing shelter and 
facilitating community fire recovery; and 

 
WHEREAS, the use of the trailers for public service for those experiencing homelessness 

constitutes a public purpose; and 
 

WHEREAS, all or some of the trailers being transferred have been used by the City prior 
to the transfer for the City’s response to the homeless crisis and are being transferred as is; and 
 

WHEREAS, use of the trailers for 24 hour homeless shelters may void the manufacture’s 
warranties; and 
 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the public purposes described above and the benefits 
provided to its citizens, County is willing to indemnify the City in the manner and to the degree 
outlined in the below provisions in order to facilitate transfer of the trailers to IMACA; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto covenant, represent and agree as follows: 
 

1. The City shall provide thirty-six (36) trailers to Recipient for the 
purpose of providing housing to the homeless community in Mono, Inyo and 
Alpine  Counties, and to serve as facilities for isolation and/or quarantine of 
individuals affected by COVID-19. Transfer of the trailers, identified by VIN 
number in the attached Schedule A, fully incorporated herein, shall be deemed to 
have taken place when IMACA has accepted delivery of the trailers at a time and 
place to be determined by the Parties. 

 
2. Recipient and the County understand and agree that the trailers 

shall be transferred to Recipient with no express or implied warranties. The City 
expressly disclaims any warranties of fitness for purpose and merchantability. 
The City makes no representation that the trailers can be operated in any 
capacity. Recipient shall perform any inspection it desires prior to receipt of the 
trailers, and Recipient shall accept the trailers in “as is” condition. Recipient and 
the County releases the City from any and all claims of defect of the trailers or 
due to failure of the trailers to perform as intended by Recipient. 

 
3. Recipient and County expressly waive any and all rights under 

Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, or any other federal or 
state statutory rights or rules, or principles of common law or equity, or those of 
any jurisdiction, government, or political subdivision, similar to Section 1542 
(“Similar Provision”). Thus, Recipient may not invoke the benefits of Section 1542 
or any similar provision in order to prosecute or assert in any manner any claims 
released. 

 
Section 1542, provides as follows: 



3 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

 
“A general release does not extend to claims which the 
creditor does not know or suspect to exists in his favor at the 
time of executing the release, which if known by him must 
have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.” 

 
4. County shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 

officers, employees and agents, from any third party claims of personal or real 
property damage arising from the use of the trailers after transfer of the trailers to 
Recipient. 

 
5. Recipient shall make all necessary arrangements for the 

transportation of the trailers to its facilities. 

 

6. Recipient shall complete transfer of title in the aforementioned 
trailers to reflect IMACA as the registered owner of the subject trailers. Proof of 
title paperwork being filed within the Recipient’s jurisdiction must be provided to 
City prior to the physical transfer of the trailers can take place. 

 
7. The contact for the City of Los Angeles shall be: Richard Coulson, 

Assistant General Manager, Fleet and Fuel Services, General Services 
Department, 111 E First Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012, (213) 928-9575, 
richard.coulson@lacity.org. 

 
8. The contact for Mono County shall be: Robert Lawton, County 

Administrative Officer, P.O. Box 696, Bridgeport, CA 93517, (760) 932-5415, 
rlawton@mono.ca.gov. 

 
9. The contact for IMACA shall be: Larry Emerson, Housing and 

Planning Director, 137 E. South Street, Bishop, CA 93514, (760) 873-7709, ext. 
1026, lemerson@imaca.net. 

 
10. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California. 
 
 

(Signature Page to Follow) 

mailto:richard.coulson@lacity.org
mailto:
mailto:lemerson@imaca.net


4 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the California State Department of General Services, 
City of Los Angeles and  , have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives. 

 
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

 
By:   Date:  
TONY M. ROYSTER, General Manager 
Department of General Services 
 
IMACA 

 

By:    Date: _________________________ 

ROBERT HUGHES  

Executive Director, IMACA 

 
MONO COUNTY 

 
By:    Date:_________________________ 
Robert Lawton 

CAO, Mono County 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

MICHAEL N. FEUER, City Attorney 
 

By    Date:  
KIMBERLY MIERA 
Deputy City Attorney  

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

HOLLY L. WOLCOTT, City Clerk 
 
 

By:   
Deputy City Clerk 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM and RISK: 
 
______________________________  
Stacey Simon, Mono County Counsel 
   
_______________________________ 
Jay Sloane, Mono County Risk Manager  

Date:   
 
 



5 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

SCHEDULE A 
VIN NUMBERS OF TRAILERS TO BE 

TRANSFERRED: 
 
 

1UJBJ0BM4L75N0237     

1UJBJ0BMXL75N0145 

1UJBJ0BN0L1T80390 

1UJBJ0BN0L75U0202 

1UJBJ0BP5L75W0415 

1UJBJ0BP8L75W0473 

1UJBJ0BR5L75D0196 

1UJBJSBP9L75Y0159 

4YDT21521LY936994 

4YDT24324LM932417 

4YDT2432XLX433538 

4YDT24421LY936108 

4YDT24426LY936105 

4YDT24428LY931732 

4YDT24S2XLC508117 

4YDT2512XLM932480 

4YDT25723LX432280 

4YDT26224LY933766 

4YDT26226LY932599 

4YDT26326LY936697 

4YDT26329LY936127 

4YDT28323LM937454 

4YDT2832XLM936155 

4YDT29026LX433599 

5SFB3227LE432873 

5SFNB2727LN433337 

5SFNB272XLN420520 

5SFNB3125LN424358 

5SFNB3529LN430450 

5SFNB3622LN430143 

5SFNB3628LN434133 

5SFPB2624LE435413 

5SFPB2625LE429345 



6 
M:\GOVERNMENT COUNSEL\KIMBERLY MIERA\ 

 

 

5SFPB2627LE429346 

5SFPB2628LE425063 

5SFPB3220LE429409 



1 

 

 

Inc., a private 

A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MONO AND THE INYO 
MONO ADVOCATES FOR COMMUNITY ACTION, INC. GOVERNING THE TRANSFER AND 
DELIVERY OF TRAILERS TO QUALIFIED RESIDENTS EXPERIENCING HOMELESSNESS 
 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU), is created between Mono 

County, a political subdivision of the State of California (County), and Inyo Mono 
Advocates for Community Action, Inc., a non-profit agency (IMACA) to establish and 
govern the process for transfer and delivery of trailers, suitable for living, to qualified 
residents in Mono Counties for homelessness response needs.   

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, following the World Health Organization’s designation of novel 

Coronavirus 2019 (“COVID-19”) as a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, the 
Governor of the State of California declared a state of emergency on March 3, 2020 
and subsequently, on March 15, 2020, the Mono County Health Officer declared a local 
health emergency, which was ratified by the Mono County Board of Supervisors on 
March 17, 2020, at which time the Board also declared a state of emergency under the 
California Emergency Services Act all related to the pandemic; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the pandemic and related economic hardship, many 

Mono County residents are experiencing or may experience homelessness; and 
 
WHEREAS, in November 2020, the Mountain View Fire ravaged the community 

of Walker in Mono County and destroyed approximately 143 structures, including at 
least 96 homes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors declared a local state of 

emergency on November 17, 2020; the Governor issued a Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency on November 19, 2020 and on that same date, the Mono County Health 
Officer declared a local health emergency due to conditions of extreme peril caused by 
the Mountain View Fire; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the fire, over 70 families and individuals lost their 

homes, many of whom have no permanent alternative place of residence and no 
means to protect their property as they begin the slow process of clearing their land, 
addressing hazards and safety issues, and rebuilding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mono County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution R20-

103 on December 15, 2020, authorizing, among other things, the temporary placement 
of recreational vehicles (RVs) on vacant property during construction of a main building 
without a Director Review Permit subject to Temporary Emergency Dwelling (TED) 
Standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care (CoC), to which the County 

and IMACA belong, is an unincorporated organization designated by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development to service and implement 
homelessness prevention programs throughout Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counties; and 



2 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, between March 20, 2020 and April 2, 2020, the State of California 

donated to the City of Los Angeles trailers, purchased by the State, to be used for the 
City’s homelessness response to COVID-19; and 

 
WHEREAS, in return for indemnification by the County and IMACA, and 

conditioned upon approval of this agreement, in March 2021, the City of Los Angeles 
agreed to transfer ownership of thirty-six (36) trailers to IMACA to be provided to 
individuals experiencing homelessness in Mono County; and 

 
WHEREAS, in return for the County’s assistance in transportation and delivery of the 

trailers, and its agreement to join IMACA in indemnifying the City of Los Angeles, IMACA will 
transfer ownership of thirty-one (31) of the trailers to victims of the Mountain View Fire who are 
in need of temporary housing in Mono County and retain and utilize the additional five (5) 
trailers for CoC homelessness services in Mono County.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto covenant, represent and agree as follows: 
 

1. The County shall facilitate and aid in the transfer to IMACA by the 
City of Los Angeles of thirty-six (36) trailers for the purpose of providing 
temporary housing for victims of the Mountain View Fire in Mono County; 
providing housing to homeless individuals and to serve as facilities for isolation 
and/or quarantine of individuals affected by COVID-19 in Mono County. Transfer 
of the trailers, identified by VIN number in the attached Exhibit A, fully 
incorporated herein, shall be deemed to have taken place when IMACA has 
accepted delivery of the trailers at a time and place to be determined by IMACA, 
the County and the City of Los Angeles. 

 
2. On behalf of IMACA, the County shall inspect, fund and arrange for 

the transportation and delivery of thirty-one (31) trailers (selected from the list in 
Exhibit A) from Los Angeles to the Antelope Valley Community Center in the 
community of Walker in Mono County and of five (5) trailers (selected from the 
list in Exhibit A) from Los Angeles to a specified location in Inyo County to be 
determined by the Parties.  

 
3. IMACA shall complete transfer of title in the aforementioned trailers 

to reflect IMACA as the registered owner of the subject trailers. Proof of title 
paperwork being filed within IMACA’s jurisdiction must be provided to County 
within thirty (30) days of the execution of this MOU. 

 
4. The Parties agree that the thirty-one (31) trailers transported and 

delivered to the Antelope Valley Community Center in Mono County shall be 
distributed to victims of the Mountain View Fire and that IMACA and the County, 
in their sole discretion, shall determine distribution of trailers to victims using 
mutually agreed upon criteria. Each recipient hereto shall execute an agreement 
under Paragraph 8 below and shall become the sole owner of the trailer(s) 
thereby received from IMACA. IMACA understands and agrees that trailers shall 



3 

 

 

not be distributed to any Tribe or to any individual for use on Tribal Land without 
the written permission of the Mono County CAO and unless the Tribe agrees, in 
writing, to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Mono County and the City of Los 
Angeles from liabilities associated with such use as provided below. 

 
5. The Parties further agree that the five (5) trailers transported and 

delivered to a specified location in Inyo County shall remain under IMACA’s sole 
ownership and that IMACA shall distribute, transfer and/or use these trailers as a 
function of the CoC to or on behalf of residents of Mono County, exclusively, who 
are experiencing homelessness or a need to isolate or quarantine as a result of 
COVID-19. IMACA understands and agrees that the five (5) trailers shall not be 
distributed, transferred or used for a resident of any other county without the 
written permission of the Mono County CAO and unless the county of residence 
agrees, in writing, to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Mono County and the 
City of Los Angeles from liabilities associated with such use as provided below. 

 
6. IMACA understands and agrees that the trailers shall be delivered 

with no express or implied warranties. The County expressly disclaims any 
warranties of fitness for purpose and merchantability. The County makes no 
representation that the trailers can be operated in any capacity. IMACA shall 
perform any inspection it desires prior to receipt of the trailers, and IMACA shall 
accept the trailers in “as is” condition. IMACA releases the County from any and 
all claims of defect of the trailers or damage to the trailers incurred during 
transport from Los Angeles or due to failure of the trailers to perform as intended 
by IMACA. 

 
7. IMACA expressly waives any and all rights under Section 1542 of 

the Civil Code of the State of California, or any other federal or state statutory 
rights or rules, or principles of common law or equity, or those of any jurisdiction, 
government, or political subdivision, similar to Section 1542 (“Similar Provision”). 
Thus, IMACA may not invoke the benefits of Section 1542 or any similar 
provision in order to prosecute or assert in any manner any claims released. 

 
Section 1542, provides as follows: 

 
“A general release does not extend to claims which the 
creditor does not know or suspect to exists in his favor at the 
time of executing the release, which if known by him must 
have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.” 

 
8. IMACA shall indemnify, defend with Counsel acceptable to County, 

and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents, from any third-
party claims of personal or real property damage arising from the use of the 
trailers after transfer of the trailers to any recipient. IMACA shall require any third-
party recipient of a trailer subject to this Agreement to execute an agreement 
releasing the County from any and all claims arising out of ownership and 
possession of the trailers. 
 



4 

 

 

 
 

9. INSURANCE 
 
IMACA shall procure and maintain, during the entire term of this Agreement or, if work or 
services do not begin as of the effective date of this Agreement, commencing at such 
other time as may be authorized in writing by the County Risk Manager, the following 
insurance (as noted) against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the 
results of that work by IMACA, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors: 
 
Workers’ Compensation. IMACA shall provide Statutory Workers' Compensation 
insurance coverage and Employer’s Liability coverage for not less than $1 million 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or operations 
under this Agreement. Any insurance policy limits in excess of the specified minimum 
limits and coverage shall be made available to County as an additional insured. The 
Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor 
of County for all work performed by IMACA, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. 
 
General Liability. A policy of Comprehensive General Liability Insurance which covers all 
the work and services to be performed by IMACA under this Agreement, including 
operations, products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury (including 
death) and personal and advertising injury. Such policy shall provide limits of not less 
than $1,000,000.00 per claim or occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 
 
Automobile Liability Insurance. A policy of comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 
for bodily injury (including death) and property damage which provides total limits of not 
less than $1,000,000.00 per claim or occurrence applicable to all owned, non-owned and 
hired vehicles.  
 
Coverage and Provider Requirements. Insurance policies shall not exclude or except from 
coverage any of the services and work required to be performed by IMACA under this 
Agreement. The required polic(ies) of insurance shall be issued by an insurer 
authorized to sell such insurance by the State of California, and have at least a 
“Best’s” policyholder’s rating of “A” or “A+”. Prior to commencing any work under this 
agreement, Contractor shall provide County: (1) a certificate of insurance evidencing the 
coverage required; (2) an additional insured endorsement for general liability applying to 
the County of Mono, its agents, officers and employees made on ISO form CG 20 10 
11 85, or providing equivalent coverage; and (3) a notice of cancellation or change of 
coverage endorsement indicating that the policy will not be modified, terminated, or 
canceled without thirty (30) days written notice to the County. 
 
Deductible, Self-Insured Retentions, and Excess Coverage. Any deductibles or 
self-insured retentions must be declared and approved by Mono County. If possible, the 
Insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect 
to Mono County, its officials, officers, employees, and volunteers; or the IMACA shall 



5 

 

 

provide evidence satisfactory to Mono County guaranteeing payment of losses and 
related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. Any insurance 
policy limits in excess of the specified minimum limits and coverage shall be made 
available to County as an additional insured. 
 
Subcontractors. IMACA shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain 
insurance (including Workers’ Compensation) meeting all the requirements stated 
herein and that County is an additional insured on insurance required of subcontractors. 

 
10. The contact for Mono County shall be: John Craig, Assistant 

County Administrative Officer, P.O. Box 696, Bridgeport, CA 93517, (760) 932-
5415, jcraig@mono.ca.gov. 

 
11. The contact for IMACA shall be: Larry Emerson, Housing and 

Planning Director, 137 E. South Street, Bishop, CA 93514, (760) 873-7709, ext. 
1026, lemerson@imaca.net. 

 
12. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California. 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement on the Execution Date 
 

MONO COUNTY      IMACA 
 
          

By:      By: ______________________________ 
  Robert Lawton                        Date   Robert Hughes   Date 

       CAO, Mono County     Executive Director, IMACA 

 

Approved as to Form: 

By:                                                     
Stacey Simon                    Date  

 Mono County Counsel 
 

Approved by Risk Management: 

 
By:   

Jay Sloane                     Date 
        Risk Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:
mailto:lemerson@imaca.net


6 

EXHIBIT A 

1UJBJ0BM4L75N0237 
1UJBJ0BMXL75N0145 
1UJBJ0BN0L1T80390 
1UJBJ0BN0L75U0202 
1UJBJ0BP5L75W0415 
1UJBJ0BP8L75W0473 
1UJBJ0BR5L75D0196 
1UJBJSBP9L75Y0159 
4YDT21521LY936994 
4YDT24324LM932417 
4YDT2432XLX433538 
4YDT24421LY936108 
4YDT24426LY936105 
4YDT24428LY931732 
4YDT24S2XLC508117 
4YDT2512XLM932480 
4YDT25723LX432280 
4YDT26224LY933766 
4YDT26226LY932599 
4YDT26326LY936697 
4YDT26329LY936127 
4YDT28323LM937454 
4YDT2832XLM936155 
4YDT29026LX433599 
5SFB3227LE432873 
5SFNB2727LN433337 
5SFNB272XLN420520 
5SFNB3125LN424358 
5SFNB3529LN430450 
5SFNB3622LN430143 
5SFNB3628LN434133 
5SFPB2624LE435413 
5SFPB2625LE429345 
5SFPB2627LE429346 
5SFPB2628LE425063 
5SFPB3220LE429409 



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF A RESIDENTIAL TRAILER  
TO CERTAIN RESIDENTS OF MONO COUNTY  

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is executed at Bridgeport, California, on 

________________, 2021 (“Execution Date”) by and among the County of Mono, a political 
subdivision of the State of California (“County”), Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action 
(“ IMACA” ) and ___________________, a resident of Mono County (“Transferee”). County, 
IMACA and Transferee are referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. IMACA is in possession of trailers, which it received from the City of Los 
Angeles, and which it is willing to make available to serve as Temporary Emergency Dwelling 
(TED) units for residents of Mono County. 

 
B. County has facilitated the transfer and delivery of these trailers, from IMACA, to 

serve as TED units for those individuals, qualified pursuant to criteria established by the County, 
residing in Mono County who have been displaced by the Mountain View Fire or who are 
otherwise affected by homelessness. 

 
C. Transferee meets the criteria established by the County for receipt of a TED and 

has a need for such temporary replacement housing. 
 
D. County is willing to facilitate the provision of trailers (“Unit(s)”) to Transferee, 

based upon the needs of the Transferee, on the following terms and conditions. 
 

AGREEMENT: 

1. Term:   This Agreement shall remain valid so long as Transferee is in possession 
of the Unit(s) delivered to Transferee pursuant to this Agreement. However, the terms of 
Section 7 shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

2. Party Obligations:   
a. IMACA  – IMACA shall inspect, receive, and take possession as sole 

owner of the trailers, from the City of Los Angeles, and ensure the transfer of the Unit(s) 
to the Transferee pursuant to the terms set forth herein.  

 
b. County – County shall inspect, fund and arrange for transport of the 

trailers from Los Angeles to Mono County and delivery to the Antelope Valley 
Community Center (“Community Center”) located at 442 Mule Deer Road in Walker, 
California. In the event Transferee cannot arrange for pickup of the Unit(s) from the 
Community Center, County shall deliver the Unit(s) to a location decided upon, in 
advance, by the Parties.  
 

i. Utility Connections – County shall provide Transferee with the 
following installation accessories to support hookup and installation of 



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

the Unit(s): freshwater hose, sewer hose with fittings, a 30- or 50-amp 
adapter, heat tape, wheel chocks and a high-water pressure adapter. 
However, neither County nor IMACA shall have any obligation to 
install such connections, arrange for their installation, or pay any costs 
or fees associated therewith. 

 
c. Transferee – agrees to accept, as sole owner and possessor, the Unit(s) from  

IMACA. Transferee shall arrange to pickup the Unit(s) at the Community Center at a 
time agreed upon, in advance, by the Parties. In the event Transferee cannot arrange for 
pickup of the Unit(s) from the Community Center, Transferee shall notify the County in 
advance and arrange for delivery by the County to an alternative location agreed upon, in 
advance, by the County and Transferee.  
 

i. Utility Connections – Notwithstanding the installation accessories 
provided by the County, Transferee shall arrange for, and pay all costs 
associated with, the installation of utility connections, including, but 
not limited to: water, electricity, internet, sewer or septic, etc. Neither 
County nor IMACA shall have any obligation to install such 
connections, arrange for their installation, or pay any costs or fees 
associated therewith.  
 

ii.  Use as Residence -- Transferee shall use the Unit(s) as a residence for 
Transferee and Transferee’s household. Transferee shall not use or 
permit the Unit(s) to be used for any other purpose without the prior 
written consent of County and IMACA. 

 
iii.  No Nuisance – Transferee shall not do or permit any act or thing to be 

done that will unlawfully obstruct or interfere with the rights of any 
other person or injure or annoy others. Transferee shall not cause, 
maintain, or permit any nuisance or waste on or about the Unit(s), or 
allow the Unit(s) to be used for any unlawful purpose.  

 
iv. No Transfer – If, within the first 12-months of ownership, Transferee 

no longer needs or wants the Unit(s), Transferee shall offer to return 
the Unit(s) to IMACA at no cost to IMACA. Should IMACA decline 
to accept return of the Unit(s), Transferee shall be solely responsible 
for offloading the Unit(s).   

 
3. Condition of Unit(s):  Neither County nor IMACA warrants the condition of the 

Unit(s) or of the installation accessories provided, and each expressly disclaims all liability for 
the condition of any Unit(s) and of any installation accessories provided to Transferee.  
Transferee accepts the Unit(s) and the installation accessories provided in “as-is” condition, 
subject to and including all defects, latent, and/or patent. 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

4. Repair and Maintenance: 
a. Transferee’s Responsibilities – Transferee shall have sole responsibility 

for all aspects of repair and maintenance to all exterior and interior portions of the 
Unit(s) and any installation accessories, including but not limited to roof, plumbing, air 
conditioning, heating, electrical systems, lighting fixtures, including ballast and lamp 
replacement, glass replacement, exterior and interior surfaces, floor coverings, annual 
servicing of fire extinguishers, and other repair, replacement, maintenance, and upkeep 
of any kind.  Transferee shall be responsible for pest control, and other upkeep as 
necessary.   

 
b. Compliance – Transferee shall comply with all applicable state and local 

laws and regulations in the maintenance, use and enjoyment of the Unit(s), including but 
not limited to the Mono County TED Standards which are attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
5. Taxes and Assessments:  Transferee shall be responsible for and shall pay any 

and all taxes, fees and assessments, including but not limited to fees for registering the Unit(s) or 
fees owed to the California Department of Motor Vehicles, which may be due and owing in 
connection with the Unit(s). 

 
6. Damage and Destruction:  If the Unit(s) is damaged or destroyed by fire or 

casualty, the damaged Unit(s) shall be repaired or disposed of by Transferee at its sole cost. 

7. Indemnification: 
a. In General – Transferee shall indemnify and hold harmless IMACA and 

County, their governing boards, commissions, elected and appointed officials, employees, 
agents, volunteers, and authorized representatives, and each of them (“Indemnified 
Parties”), against any and all actions, lawsuits, proceedings, losses, costs, expenses, 
claims, fines, liabilities, fees and costs of legal counsel, costs of staff time, investigation, 
expert and consultant fees and costs, and damages, including liability for personal injuries 
or death or property damage, and workers’ compensation claims or suits arising from or 
related to this Agreement or the provision of the Unit(s) pursuant hereto (“Claims”). 

 
b. Survival of Indemnification Obligations – Transferee’s obligations 

under this Section 7 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

8. Release and Waiver; Waiver of Civil Code Section 1542: 
a. Release and Waiver – Transferee releases the Indemnified Parties from 

all Claims, and waives all Claims against the Indemnified Parties, that it may have as of 
the Execution Date, relating to this Agreement and any acts or omissions the Indemnified 
Parties. 

b. Waiver of Civil Code Section 1542 – Transferee waives all rights under 
California Civil Code 1542, and all rights arising under any similar laws, whether local, 
state, or federal. Section 1542 provides: 

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does 
not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

which if known by him must have materially affected his settlement.” 
 

9. No Waiver of Breach:  The waiver of any term, covenant, or condition contained 
in this Agreement must be in writing and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent 
breach of the term, covenant or condition contained in this Agreement, and no custom or practice 
that may arise between the Parties during the course of this Agreement shall be construed to 
waive or lessen the right to the performance by Transferee in strict accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 

10. No Assignment – Transferee shall not assign, transfer, or otherwise convey this 
Agreement, or any of its rights and interests hereunder, without the prior written consent of 
County and IMACA. 
 

11. Notices:  All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given, by 
either Party to the other shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and 
deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

 
To Transferee:   
 
    
    
 
To County:  John Craig 
   Assistant CAO 
   P.O. Box 696 
   Bridgeport, CA 93517 
   jcraig@mono.ca.gov 
    
  
To IMACA:  Larry Emerson 
   IMACA Housing and Planning Office 
   137 E. South Street 
   Bishop, CA 93514 
   lemerson@imaca.net 
   (760) 873-7709 
 

The address to which the notices shall be mailed to a Party may be changed by written notice 
given by such Party to the others, but nothing shall preclude the giving of any such notice by 
personal service. 

12. Miscellaneous Provisions: 
a. Negation of Partnership – Neither County nor IMACA shall become or be 

deemed a partner or joint venturer with Transferee by reason of the provisions of 
this Agreement. Transferee shall not for any purpose be considered an agent, 
officer, or employee of County or IMACA. 

mailto:lemerson@imaca.net


 

Page 5 of 6 
 

b. Conflict of Interest – The Parties have read and are aware of the provisions of 
Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the Government Code relating 
to conflict of interest of public officers and employees. All Parties agree that they 
are unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or 
employee of County relating to this Agreement. It is further understood and 
agreed that if such a financial interest does exist as of the Execution Date, County 
may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to 
Transferee. The Parties shall comply with the requirements of Government Code 
Section 87100 et seq. during the term of this Agreement. 

c. Incorporation of Prior Agreements – This Agreement contains all agreements 
of the Parties with respect to any matter mentioned herein. No prior agreement or 
understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be effective. 

d. Remedies Not Exclusive – The use of any remedy specified herein for the 
enforcement of this Agreement is not exclusive and shall not deprive such Party of, 
or limit the application of, any other remedy provided by law, at equity, or 
otherwise. 

e. Severability – If any part, term, portion, or provision of this Agreement is 
decided finally to be in conflict with any law of the United States or the State of 
California, or otherwise be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the 
remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions shall be deemed severable and 
shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or provisions can 
be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the Parties intended 
to enter into in the first instance. 

f. Governing Law; Venue – The Parties agree that the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be construed pursuant to the laws of the State of California. If 
either Transferee or County initiates an action to enforce the terms of this 
Agreement or declare rights hereunder, including actions on any bonds and/or 
surety agreements, the venue thereof shall be the County of Mono, State of 
California, it being understood that this Agreement is entered into, and will be 
performed, within the County of Mono. 

g. Compliance with Laws – Transferee shall, at its sole cost, promptly comply with 
all Applicable Laws, including Environmental Requirements, and the standards 
outlined in Attachment A, which may in any way apply to the use, operation, 
repair, maintenance, occupation of, or operations or construction on, the Unit(s). 

h. Successors – Subject to Section 7, all terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Agreement shall extend to, be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective Parties. 

i. No Third Party Beneficiaries – This Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the 
Parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, 
and no other persons shall have any right of action hereon. 

j.  Modification  – This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written 
document signed by the Parties. 

k. Authorization  – Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of a Party 
represents and warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this 
Agreement on behalf of that Party, and that this Agreement is binding upon all 
Parties in accordance with its terms. 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

l. Construction – The Parties acknowledge that each Party and its counsel have 
reviewed and revised this Agreement, or have had the opportunity to do so and have 
declined, and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities 
are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not be employed in the 
interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits to this Agreement. 

m. Recitals – Each of the recitals is incorporated in this Agreement by reference as if 
fully set forth, is deemed to be the agreement and a reflection of the intent of the 
Parties, and is relied upon by the Parties in consenting to the provisions of this 
Agreement and in interpreting its provisions. 

n. Captions – Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this 
Agreement. 

o. Time of Essence – Time is hereby expressly declared to be of the essence of this 
Agreement and of each and every provision thereof, and each such provision is 
hereby made and declared to be a material, necessary, and essential part of this 
Agreement. 

 
 
The Parties have executed this Agreement on the Execution Date. 
 
 
COUNTY OF MONO:     TRANSFEREE:  
 
 
By______________________________   By___________________________ 
     Robert Lawton, CAO   
                                                                                                Print Name:____________________ 
  
IMACA : 
 
By______________________________ 

Robert Hughes 
Executive Director 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of County Counsel 
  
By______________________________ 
      
 
APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
By______________________________ 
     Risk Manager 
 
 



Exhibit A 

4 
 

EXHIBIT A 

TEMPORARY EMERGENCY DWELLING (TED) STANDARDS 

To protect the residents, the following conditions are set forth for occupancy on parcels with structures 
destroyed by the fire.  

1. Right of entry to the parcel is subject to the Mono County Public Health Department Public Health 
Order dated 19 November 2020 until modified or rescinded. 

2. A Temporary Emergency Dwelling (TED) shall include provisions for sleeping, eating, cooking, 
sanitation and water supply and includes: 

a. A recreational vehicle (RV) registered or licensed with the CA Department of Motor Vehicles 
that is mobile under its own power or through towing/carrying by another vehicle and is not 
intended to be inhabited on a permanent basis. Examples include a motor home, travel trailer, 
fifth wheel, free standing cab-over camper, tiny home on wheels, and similar units designed for 
human habitation and emergency occupation. 

b. Mobile home / Manufactured Dwelling, which is a structure certified under the National 
Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974 and designed for, or 
occupied exclusively by, one family. 

3. Placement of a TED is subject to the following requirements of the Mono County Environmental Health 
Division: hazardous waste material management and clean up, well and septic approvals and permits. 

4. No other imminent health and safety hazards exist on the parcel, as determined at the discretion of the 
Director of Environmental Health. 

5. Addressing:  
a. Locations:  Existing addresses for the property shall be placed in a visible location at the 

entrance to the property and/or near the TED at the following location: 
i. If the driveway branches within the property to multiple dwellings on the property, an 

address sign shall also be placed at the intersection indicating the direction to each 
dwelling.  

b. Size and Type of address numbers / letters: Per Section 505.1 of the 2019 California Fire Code, 
lettering shall be a minimum of 4 inches in height with a 0.5-inch stroke on a reflective or 
contrasting background. 

6. The following requirements apply to the placement of a TED: 
a. One TED is allowed per destroyed residence; an exception may be made if the square footage 

or number of bedrooms of the TED is significantly less than the original residence, as 
determined by the Community Development Director. No more than two (2) TEDs are permitted 
per parcel, unless otherwise approved by the Community Development Director based on proof 
of more than two legal residences. 

b. The TED is only occupied by persons who resided on the parcel in the damaged/destroyed 
home and are now displaced due to the fire. An exception may be made for displaced persons 
to occupy a TED on a different property while rebuilding the damaged/destroyed residence 
provided the APN of the damaged/destroyed residence and the APN of the TED are both 
recorded and other standards are also met. 

c. Use of any TED is subject to the following timelines: 1) Up to three years to submit a complete 
building permit for the permanent reconstructed residence from the date of written notification 
from the property owner to the Community Development Department, which may be extended 
by the Community Development Director based on a written quote or contract from a design 
professional exceeding the allotted timeframe; and 2) Up to three years to complete 
construction of the permanent reconstructed residence or until the certificate of occupancy is 
issued, whichever occurs first. The Building Official may issue extensions for the building permit 
beyond three years provided sufficient evidence of extenuating circumstances. The TED must 



Exhibit A 

5 
 

no longer be occupied as a temporary dwelling upon issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy or 
expiration of the timeframes, whichever occurs first. Unless otherwise approved by the 
Community Development Director, the TED must be removed from the parcel once no longer 
used for that purpose.  

d. Placement of the TED meets the following setbacks: 
i. Minimum setbacks for the property’s land use designation.  
ii. A TED shall not be placed in any easements. 

e. Use of the TED is not detrimental to public health, safety or general welfare or create 
a public nuisance. 

f. If applicable, separate access to the fire debris cleanup work area and to TED should 
be provided or residents should refrain from utilizing shared access during those 
periods when active fire debris clean-up operations are occurring.  

g. Residents should take proper precautions to protect from ash, hazardous materials, 
and injury, which may include sheltering in the TED while on the parcel when not 
otherwise performing essential outdoor on-site, work and wearing appropriate PPE 
including N95 respirators, appropriate clothing, and if applicable, gloves. Residents 
shall refrain from approaching active cleanup operations. Contact the Environmental 
Health Division for further guidance. 

7. The Community Development Director, within her sole discretion, may accept alternatives to 
these standards that offer similar protections, or impose additional requirements, based on 
specific site conditions to protect public health. 

 

 

MY SIGNATURE BELOW ACKNOWLEDGES THAT I FULLY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
STATED ABOVE: 

PROPERTY APN/ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT NAME (printed): _________________________________________________________________________ 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________DATE:_____________________________ 



 

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR AGENDA REQUEST
 Print

 MEETING DATE April 13, 2021

Departments: Probation
TIME REQUIRED 15 minutes PERSONS

APPEARING
BEFORE THE
BOARD

Karin Humiston, Chief Probation
OfficerSUBJECT Allocation List Amendment -

Probation Department

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:
(A brief general description of what the Board will hear, discuss, consider, or act upon)

Proposed resolution authorizing the County Administrative Officer to amend the County of Mono List of Allocated Positions
to add one (1) Behavioral Health Services Coordinator, remove one (1) Deputy Probation Officer III position and add one (1)

Deputy Probation Officer IV position in Probation.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Adopt proposed resolution R21-___, Amending the County of Mono List of Allocated Positions to add one (1) Behavioral
Health Services Coordinator, remove one (1) Deputy Probation Officer III position and add one (1) Deputy Probation Officer
IV position in Probation. Provide any desired direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No fiscal impact to the General Fund. The cost of promoting the existing Deputy Probation Officer from a III to a IV position
for the remainder of this fiscal year is $1,203 and $5,105 annually. The salary and benefits for the Behavioral Health
Services Coordinator position for the remainder of this fiscal year is $17,284 and $89,877 annually. Additional salary and
benefit costs are to be paid for from a combination of the new Department of Social Services Family Urgent Response
System (FURS) fund and SB 678 fund. 

CONTACT NAME: Karin Humiston

PHONE/EMAIL: 7609325572 / jlmills@mono.ca.gov

SEND COPIES TO: 

MINUTE ORDER REQUESTED:
 YES  NO

ATTACHMENTS:
Click to download

 Staff Report

 Resolution

 Current Organizational Chart

 

javascript:history.go(0);

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25217&ItemID=13244

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25212&ItemID=13244

                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25152&ItemID=13244


 Proposed Organizational Chart

 History

 Time Who Approval
 4/2/2021 10:22 AM County Counsel Yes

 4/7/2021 12:43 PM Finance Yes

 4/9/2021 12:12 PM County Administrative Office Yes

 


                                                AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=25153&ItemID=13244


                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MAILING: P.O. BOX 596, BRIDGEPORT, CALIFORNIA 93517 
                                                                     BRIDGEPORT OFFICE (760) 932-5570•FAX (760) 932-5571 
                                                                        MAMMOTH OFFICE (760) 924-1730•FAX (760) 924-1731 

   
Mark Magit 
Presiding Judge 
Superior Court 
 

  

 
Dr. Karin Humiston  
Chief Probation Officer 
 

                                                     
                                                     

 

 
Date:  April 13, 2021 
 
To:  Honorable Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Karin Humiston, Chief of Probation 
 
Subject:  Allocation List Amendment 
 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
Adopt proposed resolution authorizing the County Administrative Officer to amend the 
County of Mono List of Allocated Positions to add one (1) Behavioral Health Services 
Coordinator, remove one (1) Deputy Probation Officer III and add one (1) Deputy 
Probation Officer IV (nonsupervisory, lead) in Probation. 
 
Discussion 
 
Within the past 10 years, California law has changed considerably with a focus on 
evidence-based and treatment-based practices for probation clients. Recently, 
Assembly Bill 1950 reduced term limits for probation for specific crimes, specifically one 
(1) year for misdemeanors and two (2) years for felonies.  The shortened length of 
sentences reduces time for rehabilitative services. The addition of the Behavioral 
Health Services Coordinator shall expedite services, assist with crisis intervention, and 
case management services to mental health, substance abuse and dual diagnosis 
clients and provide a staff member to spend time with those clients needing attention. In 
their role under the FURS system, the Behavioral Health Coordinator will serve as a 
“lead” FURS response team member and will ensure all WRAP/FURS team members 
are prepared to manage crises, offer parenting coaching, develop resource and safety 
plans for families, and work closely with the Social Services Analyst on FURS program 
development/implementation. 
 



 
Family Urgent Response System (FURS) is a coordinated statewide, regional, and 
county-level system designed to provide collaborative and timely state-level phone-
based response, as well as county-level in-home, in-person mobile response during 
situations of instability for purposes of preserving the relationship of the caregiver and 
the child or youth. Pursuant to Department of Social Services County Fiscal Letter NO. 
20/21-52 Family Urgent Response System (FURS) General Fund Planning Allocation, 
Mono County could receive up to $443,508. It is the intention of Probation and Social 
Services to share the Behavioral Health Services Coordinator for dual purposes, 
including FURS implementation, with Probation retaining supervisory authority. 
 
The current organizational chart reflects seven (7) Deputy Probation Officers I/II/III and 
two (2) Deputy Probation Officer V – Managers. One Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 
position shoulders many duties of including intensive supervision, high risk supervision, 
Post Release Community Supervision and Mandatory Supervision, Drug Court, Safety 
Officer, Court Report Reviewer in the absence of supervisors, Peer Support Officer and 
is lead officer on the Field Unit Team. It is recommended that a Deputy Probation 
Officer I/II/III position be removed, and a Deputy Probation Officer IV non-supervisory 
position be added. 
 

Position Title 

FTE Budgeted Salary FTE Budgeted Salary

Chief Probation Officer 1.00 132,163.00$           1.00 132,163.00$          

Deputy Probation Officer V 1.00 80,392.00$             1.00 80,392.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer V 1.00 76,565.00$             1.00 80,392.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer IV 0.00 -$                         1.00 77,999.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 69,284.00$             0.00 -$                        

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 69,284.00$             1.00 69,284.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 65,977.00$             1.00 65,977.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 65,977.00$             1.00 65,977.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 62,837.00$             1.00 62,837.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 62,837.00$             1.00 62,837.00$            

Deputy Probation Officer I/II/III 1.00 56,929.00$             1.00 56,929.00$            

Probation Aide II 1.00 59,696.00$             1.00 59,696.00$            

Fiscal and Administrative Services Officer 1.00 83,116.00$             1.00 83,116.00$            

Behavioral Health Services Coordinator 0.00 -$                         1.00 52,023.00$            

Total Personnel Allocations: 12.00 885,057.00$           13.00 949,622.00$          

FY 2020-21 Current Approved 

Allocations

FY 2020-21 Proposed 

Allocation Changes

 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The increased cost for the Deputy Probation Officer IV position for the remainder of this 
fiscal year will be $1,203.00 ($877.00 for salary and $326.00 for benefits). The 
increased cost for fiscal year 2021-2022 will be $5,105.00 ($3,802.00 for salary and 



 
$1,303.00 for benefits). The Behavioral Health Services Coordinator position for the 
remainder of this fiscal year will be $17,284.00 ($10,824.00 for salary and $6,460.00 for 
benefits). For fiscal year 2021-2022 the cost will be $89,877.00 ($56,283.00 for salary 
and $33,594.00 for benefits). SB678 funds will be used for the increased cost of the 
Deputy Probation Officer IV position. The Behavioral Health Services Coordinator will 
be funded 50% by the Department of Social Services Family Urgent Response System 
(FURS) fund and 50% by Probation Department SB678 fund. No fiscal impact to the 
General Fund. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Current Organizational Chart 
Proposed Organizational Chart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

 

- 1 - 

 
 

R21-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER TO AMEND THE 

COUNTY OF MONO LIST OF ALLOCATED POSITIONS TO ELIMINATE ONE (1) 
DEPUTY PROBATION OFFICER I, II, III POSITION AND ADD ONE (1) DEPUTY 

PROBATION OFFICER IV POSITION AND ADD ONE (1) BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
SERVICES COORDINATOR IN PROBATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Mono maintains a list of County job classifications, the pay 
ranges or rates for those job classifications, and the number of positions allocated by the Board 
of Supervisors for each of those job classifications on its List of Allocated Positions (or 
“Allocation List”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Allocation List identifies approved vacancies for recruitment and 

selection by Human Resources and implements collective bargaining agreements related to job 
classifications and pay rates; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County seeks to provide public services in the most efficient and 

economical manner possible, which at times requires the modification of the job classifications 
on the Allocation List; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is currently necessary to amend the Allocation List as part of 

maintaining proper accounting for hiring employees to perform public services. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DOES  

HEREBY FIND AND RESOLVE that the County Administrative Officer shall be authorized 
to amend the County of Mono List of Allocated Positions to reflect the following changes: 
 

  Remove the allocation of one (1) full -time permanent Deputy Probation Officer I, II, 
III (new total 6) (salary range $4,175 - $6,183 per month). 

 
Add the allocation of one (1) full -time permanent Deputy Probation Officer IV (new 

total 1) (salary range $5,615 - $6,824 per month). 
 
Add the allocation of one (1) Behavioral Health Services Coordinator (new total 1) 

(salary range $4,335 - $5,269 per month). 
 
 

 
 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

 

- 2 - 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2021, 
by the following vote, to wit: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

            
      Jennifer Kreitz, Chair 
      Mono County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
            
Clerk of the Board    Mono County Counsel’s Office 






	Meeting Agenda
	#5A - Budget Policy
	#5B - Resolution Approving Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant Program
	#5C - 2021 Maintained Mileage
	#7A - COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Update
	#7B - Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget Update
	#9A - Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	#9B - Closed Session - Public Employee Evaluation
	#11A - Community Development Block Grant 2021 Notice of Funding Availability
	#11B - Mono County Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Update
	#11C - Mountain View Fire Update
	#11D - Proposed Agreements Supporting County Effort to Facilitate the Provision of Trailers to Residents in Mono County in Need of Temporary Housing as a Result of the Mountain View Fire, the COVID-19 Pandemic or Otherwise
	#11E - Allocation List Amendment - Probation Department



